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DATE:   12/12/2017 

TO:  The Citizens of Jefferson Parish 

FROM:   The Jefferson Parish Office of Inspector General 

REF:       Jefferson Parish Finance Authority – 2016-0021 

The Jefferson Parish Office of Inspector General (JPOIG) performed an audit of the operational 
and fiscal practices of the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority (JPFA) for fiscal years 2015 and 
2016. The audit covered four (4) functional areas: (1) Staff and Board Expenses, (2) Professional 
Services Expenses; (3) Loans; and (4) Governance.  

The JPOIG reached (12) findings and made associated recommendations.  Recommendations 
address, where applicable, needed corrective actions by the Parish and/or the JPFA. These 
findings and recommendations spread across all four audit areas: 
 Staff and Board Expenses  

Findings in this area relate to (1) the Parish’s misclassification of JPFA employees as Parish 
employees, (2) permitting JPFA employees to participate in Louisiana’s Parochial 
Retirement System via the Parish, (3) JPFA salary and benefits, (4) excessive trustee per 
diem payments, (5) and JPFA travel expenses. 

 Professional Services Expenses  
Findings in this area relate to (1) the engagement and compensation of professionals by 
JPFA to provide services without any competitive process; and (2) JPFA compensating 
professionals without executed written contracts or documentation supporting work 
performed and expenses incurred. 

 Loans 
Findings in this area relate to the JPFA down payment assistance program which is 
advertised by JPFA as a grant that does not have to be repaid. The audit determined that the 
amount of down-payment assistance is returned to the JPFA within 30-45 days after the loan 
closes via a circular financing method. Further, participating borrowers re-pay the “grant” 
assistance through increased interest rate and fees over the life of the loan.  The amount 
repaid by borrowers can be as much as 8 times the amount of the original down payment 
assistance received. Lastly, it was determined that neither JPFA nor its lending partners 
fully educate borrowers that down-payment assistance received is repaid via increased 
interest rates and fees over the life of the loan.  
 
 
 

This audit revealed a break-down at the highest level of local government with numerous 
failings and deficiencies resulting in unnecessary, unsupported and imprudent 
entanglement between the Parish and the JPFA. 



 
 
 Governance 

Findings in this area relate to the JPFA handling of finances, to include inadequate 
budgetary practices and self-governance.  Findings related to self-governance address the 
lack of policies and procedures, receipt of fiscal information by Board of Trustees, and 
trustee appointment terms.  This area also addresses the substantial decline in JPFA assets 
($100 Million between 2012 and 2016).  

The findings and recommendations follow the report in table format. 
 
The audit determined cost exceptions totaling in excess of 2.7 Million in the following general 
areas: 

The draft report, dated 10/05/2017, was directed to the Parish President, all Parish 
Councilmembers, the Parish Attorney and the JPFA. One request for an extension of time to 
provide a response was received and granted.  
 
The JPOIG received three separate, written responses to the audit report: (1) Greg G. Faia, 
Chairman of the Board of Trustees for JPFA, received 11/16/2017, (2) Marcy Planer, Board 
member of JPFA, received 11/16/2017, (3) Councilwoman Jennifer Van Vrancken, received 
11/27/2017.  These responses were made a part of the final report.  See Attachments R through T.   
 
For ease of reference, a summary of all findings and responses is attached to this letter. See 
Summary of Audit Findings and Responses. 
  
Of the twelve findings reached by the JPOIG, the most pervasive finding and challenge to the 
audit process was the factual and legal entanglement between the JPFA and the Parish. The JPFA 
operations fall outside the direct supervision of Parish government.  The JPFA operations, 
including its fiscal responsibilities and liabilities, are controlled by its Board of Trustees.  Yet in 
many instances, the JPFA was treated like a Parish department, and its employees were 
recognized by the Parish as Parish employees. 
 
The JPOIG is encouraged by Councilwoman Van Vrancken’s response and her acknowledgment 
that, “The Parish must recognize JPFA as an entity distinct from Parish Government, severing the 
entanglements that have unfairly burdened Jefferson Parish with liability for JPFA and its 
employees, while lacking the requisite authority and oversight to the same.”  
 
Similarly, the JPOIG is encouraged by the written response of Ms. Marcy Planer, JPFA Board 
member, who voiced support to many of the JPOIG findings related to the JPFA operations.  She 
writes, “I have been critical on multiple occasions of our weekly meetings.  My efforts to 

Description of Cost/Revenue Amount Identified Questioned Avoidable 
 Exec Staff & Board Expenses $830,798.56  $549,509.98  $281,288.58  $890,238.56  
 Professional Service Fees $555,000.48  $20,000.00  $535,000.48  $20,000.00  
 Loan Programs Fees and Expenses $6,843.67  $5,000.00  $1,843.67  $5,000.00  
 Financials: Bond Retirement/Revenue $1,397,000.00  $1,217,000.00  $180,000.00  $1,217,000.00  

Totals: $2,789,642.71  $1,791,509.98  $998,132.73  $2,132,238.56  

This audit Identified and questioned costs totaled in excess of $2.7 Million and  
a decline in assets of nearly 100 Million since 2012. 



 
 
convince other board members that weekly meetings are unnecessary and wasteful have failed…. 
We can easily amend our by-laws to reduce the number of meetings.” 
 
The JPOIG remains optimistic that the JPFA will take affirmative steps toward developing 
meaningful corrective action plans for audit findings related directly to its operations.  Although 
the JPFA did not fully accept findings reached in the audit report, the JPFA response suggests a 
willingness to engage in a full assessment of its operations which heretofore had not occurred.  
 
In addition to written responses, the JPOIG staff met with the Parish and the current JPFA 
management to review the report, its findings and recommendations.  This included meetings with 
Valerie Brolin, the newly appointed JPFA Executive Director; Keith Conley, Parish Chief 
Operating Officer; and all seven Councilmembers. These meetings proved beneficial to the 
JPOIG’s understanding of their positions.  The JPOIG is always appreciative of the opportunity 
for an open dialogue on a draft report.  
 
The JPOIG would like to thank the management and staff of the JPFA, the Administration, the 
Council and the Parish Attorney’s Office for their assistance and cooperation throughout this 
audit.  

 
Respectfully,  
 
  
David McClintock 

 
cc:  
Michael S. Yenni, Parish President 
Chairman Chris Roberts, At-Large “A” 
Councilwoman Cynthia Lee-Sheng, At-Large “B” 
Councilman Ricky J. Templet 
Councilman Paul D. Johnston 
Councilman Mark D. Spears, Jr. 
Councilman Dominick Impastato  
Councilwoman Jennifer Van Vrancken 
Keith A. Conley, Chief Operating Officer 
Michael J. Power, Parish Attorney 
Gregory Faia, Chairman, Board of Trustees, Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 
Marcy Planer, Board Trustee, Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 
Jerry Sullivan, Ethics and Compliance Commission Attorney 
 



Summary of Audit Findings and Responses 
No. Title JPFA Board Response Board Trustee Response Councilperson Response 

#1 Employees Misclassified as 
Parish Employees 

Agreed, but deferred to the Administration 
for corrective action. No response Agreed, and committed to work with the 

Administration on corrective actions. 

#2 Executive Director Misclassified 
as a Parish Employee 

Agreed, corrective action referenced with 
the hiring of the new Executive Director. No response Agreed, and committed to work with the 

Administration on corrective actions. 

#3 Retention of the Assistant 
Director as a Parish Employee 

Agreed, JPFA does not intend to fill the 
position. No response Agreed, and committed to work with the 

Administration on corrective actions. 

#4 Parish Retirement Benefits Disagreed, JPFA maintains that employees 
may participate in PERSLA. No response Agreed, and committed to work with the 

Administration on corrective actions. 

#5 Excessive Trustee Per Diem 
Payments 

Disagreed, JPFA maintains weekly Trustee 
meetings are necessary. 

Agreed, with corrective action 
plan to amend by-laws proposed. No response 

#6 Travel Expenses 
Agreed, with corrective action plan to 
evaluate and strengthen policies and 
controls. 

No response No response 

#7 Professional Service Fees 

Agreed, with corrective action plan to 
evaluate and strengthen policies and 
controls.  Attorney General's opinion 
sought on compensation structure for 
Professional Service fees. 

Agreed, with corrective action 
plan for professional services, 

and to refer legal professionals to 
the Louisiana Ethics Board and 

the Louisiana Disciplinary 
Counsel. 

No response 

#8 Premium Pricing to Borrowers-
SMAP 

Disagreed, with no corrective action plan 
disclosed. No response No response 

#9 Overpaid HOME Fund Service 
Fees 

Disagreed, with no corrective action plan 
proposed. No response 

Agreed, with corrective action to recover 
all HOME funds from the JPFA, and to 
implement policies to ensure agreements 
include compliance with grant terms and 
requirements. 

#10 Agency Financial Position and 
Future Sustainability 

Disagreed, with no corrective action plan 
proposed. No response No response 

#11 Questionable Operating 
Transfers 

Disagreed, with no corrective action plan 
proposed. No response No response 

#12 Lack of Self-Governance 

Agreed, with corrective action proposed for 
comprehensive policies and procedures, 
and further refinement of the relationship 
with the JPFA and the Parish. 

No response No response 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Jefferson Parish Office of Inspector General (JPOIG) has completed an audit of the Jefferson 
Parish Finance Authority (JPFA) for the fiscal years 2015, 2016 and 2017 through June.   
 
The Parish established a public trust through a Trust Indenture on 02/02/1979, and through the 
Trust Indenture, created a Board of Trustees (the “Board”) to hold, manage and invest for the “use 
and benefit of the Parish of Jefferson.”1 The JPFA, for purposes of this audit, refers to the Board 
of Trustees (the “Board”), its staff, and operations.  
 
Objectives 
The objectives of this audit were to provide assurance that: 

• The JPFA is operating in accordance with the agency’s enabling Public Trust Indenture 
and the Board of Trustee’s adopted by-laws. 

• Sufficient internal controls are in place to reduce the risk of fraud, waste and abuse. 
• Financial transactions are accurately accounted. 
• Expenditures and receipts are adequately supported by documentation for each 

transaction, and that expenditures are fiscally prudent and reasonable in nature.       
 
Audit Results 
The JPFA was audited across four (4) functional areas. They are (1) Staff and Board Expenses, 
(2) Professional Services Expenses, including engagement of outside professionals; (3) Loans; 
and (4) Governance. As a result of the audit, the JPOIG determined the following:  
 The JPFA is a separate entity from the Parish and employees of the JPFA are not 

employees of the Parish. 
 Employees of the JPFA have been carried by the Parish as Parish employees which has 

afforded JPFA employees access to Parish benefits, including retirement benefits, to 
which the JPFA, a non-Parish government entity, does not otherwise have access.  

 Employees of the JPFA, and specifically its Executive Director and Assistant Executive 
Director, have received salary increases along with Parish employees and at the discretion 
of the JPFA, either through Board action or action of its Executive Director. Payroll 
expenses for 2016 total $424,000 of which the Executive Director and Assistant Executive 
Director receive more than $240,000, or greater than 50% of total payroll.  

 Employees of the JPFA, and specifically its Executive Director, receive the benefit of 
car/cell phone allowance at the discretion of the JPFA in addition to reimbursement of 
rental car expenses for in-state travel. In 2016, the Executive Director received a car/cell 
phone allowance of $11,086.  

 JPFA Board members, who “shall serve without compensation” under the Trust Indenture, 
annually receive on average $7,550 per member. The JPFA Board meets weekly for an 
average of 36 minutes, and Board members receive $150.00 per meeting. 

 The JPFA has engaged professionals, including attorneys, without contracts and has paid 
professionals without detailed billing or description of services received. In 2016, the 
JPFA spent a total of $407,126.71 on professional services. 

                                                 
1 Trust Indenture, page 1. 
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In 2016, the JPFA received operating income of $181,000. That year, JPFA spent a total of 
$668,000 in operating expenses, including the above mentioned payroll costs and professional 
service fees. JPFA operating expenses exceed its operating revenue year after year. In order to 
meet its operating expenses, the JPFA has sold its bond assets and transferred the residual income 
generated from bond sales into its operating fund. The sale and transfer are not reflected in the 
JPFA annual budget. However, costs associated with sale of bond assets, specifically professional 
service fees, is reflected in total operating expenses. 

As a result of the audit, the JPOIG also determined that the JPFA advertises its Southern 
Mortgage Assistant Program (SMAP) as a grant for down-payment assistance a to qualified 
borrowers. In fact, borrowers pay a premium interest rate over the life of the loan for participating 
in the program. Further, some borrowers pay additional fees over the life of the loan which 
benefits JPFA. Meanwhile, the JPFA is fully reimbursed for the down-payment assistance shortly 
after the borrower’s loan closes escrow. Audit data demonstrated that JPFA does not adequately 
disclose or inform borrowers that they are being charged a premium rate at compounded interest 
for participating in the “grant” program resulting in a higher payments over the life of the loan. 

Background information on the JPFA and detailed data analysis on the above can be found in the 
full report.   
 
Recommendations 
Based upon the data analysis, the JPOIG reached twelve (12) separate findings.  The findings 
contain separate recommendations for the Parish and the JPFA where appropriate. The findings 
and recommendations follow the report and are found at Attachment 1.   
 
The JPOIG recommendations to the Parish can be summarized, in part, as follows:  
 
 The Parish should recognize the JPFA as an entity separate from Parish government, and 

employees of the JPFA as employees of JPFA and not the Parish.  Severing the 
inappropriate co-dependency between the Parish and the JPFA will underscore the 
fiduciary obligations and responsibilities owed by the JPFA to Jefferson Parish, as the 
beneficiary of the trust.   

 The Parish should seek to clarify and redress any past reporting that has been made to 
third parties concerning employment status of JPFA employees. 

 The Parish should require the JPFA Board to develop a policy and procedure for 
informing the Parish of its intentions to sell trust assets and its planned use of the residual 
sale proceeds before the actual sale of assets occurs. 
 

The JPOIG recommendations to the JPFA can be summarized, in part, as follows: 

 The JPFA develop and implement policies and procedures for all employees, to include a 
salary and benefits plan. 

 The JPFA reduce Board meetings, absent exigent circumstances, to monthly and evaluate 
current policies relating to payment of per diems to Board members. 

 The JPFA develop and implement adequate procurement and contracting policies and 
procedures for professional services, to include competitive advertisements which include 
scope of work and contract language which requires detailed description of services 
rendered and time spent. 
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 The JPFA develop a process and procedure to ensure that borrowers are fully informed 
and educated about the premium rate at compounded interest they will pay on their loan 
because of their participation in the SMAP “grant” program. 

 The JPFA develop and adopt a comprehensive annual budget which reflects both 
anticipated expenses and anticipated revenue from all sources. 

 The JPFA develop a long-term strategic plan, to include an assessment and strategy for the 
long-term financial viability and sustainability of the JPFA trust operations. 

 
Below is a summary of key monetary findings. 

 COST EXCEPTIONS 
Description of Cost/Revenue Amount Identified Questioned Avoidable 

Retirement Benefits-Executive Director $549,509.98  $549,509.98    $549,509.98  
Retirement Employer Contributions $159,603.58    $159,603.58  $159,603.58  
Board Member Per Diem Payments $120,750.00    $120,750.00  $181,125.00  
Travel  $935.00    $935.00    
Sub-Total Exec Staff & Board Expenses $830,798.56  $549,509.98  $281,288.58  $890,238.56  
Attorney Fees Retainer Agreement $84,000.00    $84,000.00    
Attorney Fees Excess Payments $20,000.00  $20,000.00    $20,000.00  
Outside Legal Services $93,723.75    $93,723.75    
Other Professional Services $357,276.73    $357,276.73    
Sub-Total Professional Fees $555,000.48  $20,000.00  $535,000.48  $20,000.00  
Federal HOME Funds- Staff Fees $1,843.67    $1,843.67    
Federal HOME Funds- Legal Review $5,000.00  $5,000.00    $5,000.00  
Sub-Total Loan Programs $6,843.67  $5,000.00  $1,843.67  $5,000.00  
Residual from Bond Retirement $1,217,000.00  $1,217,000.00    $1,217,000.00  
Bond Fund Revenue $180,000.00    $180,000.00    
Sub-Total Financials $1,397,000.00  $1,217,000.00  $180,000.00  $1,217,000.00  

Totals $2,789,642.71  $1,791,509.98  $998,132.73  $2,132,238.56  
 

This audit has revealed a break-down at the highest and most fundamental level of local 
government. The result is an inappropriate entanglement of two separate entities and confusion of 
their relative relationship, Trust beneficiary and Trustee.  Recognition of this key aspect is the 
first step on the road to corrective action.   
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INTRODUCTION 
In accordance with JPCO §2-155.10 (11) (a), the Jefferson Parish Office of Inspector General 
(“JPOIG”) has completed an audit of the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority (hereinafter 
“JPFA”). The audit period was from 01/01/2015 through 12/31/2016, and 01/01/2017 to 
06/30/2017. 
 
OBJECTIVES, SCOPE AND METHODOLGY 
Objectives 
The objectives of this audit were to provide assurance that: 
●    The JPFA is operating in accordance with the agency’s enabling Public Trust Indenture and 

the Board of Trustee’s adopted by-laws. 
●     Sufficient internal controls are in place to reduce the risk of fraud, waste and abuse. 
●     Financial transactions are accurately accounted. 
●     Expenditures and receipts are adequately supported by documentation for each transaction, 

and that expenditures are fiscally prudent and reasonable in nature.       
 
Scope and Methodology 
The entity was audited across four (4) functional areas and the scope included administrative and 
management activity. These are:  

1. Staff and Board Expenses  
2. Professional Service Expenses 
3. Loans 
4. Governance 

 
 

 
Date of Report:  
12/12/2017 

PUBLIC AUDIT REPORT  
Case #2016-0021 
 

 
Period of Audit: 
Fiscal Years 2015, 2016, 
and 2017 through 
6/30/2017 

 
Fieldwork By: 
Ashley Neyland 

 
Status: Public 

Subject of Audit 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority Public Trust 



2 
 

The audit considered relevant financial data, records, systems, policy, procedure, personnel 
actions and other information as necessary under the circumstances to achieve the audit 
objectives. In many instances, JPFA’s records concerning receipts, disbursements, and 
supporting material were reviewed to determine efficiency and effectiveness. Any instances of 
fraud, waste, abuse were identified and investigated as necessary as well as instances of fiscal or 
operational noncompliance.1  
 
The JPOIG performed detailed 
transaction testing of over 450 
expenditure transactions paid by the 
JPFA in calendar year 2016. In total, the 
JPOIG’s testing covered 68% of  the 
approximately $1.1M in total expenses. 
See Table #1.  
 
The JPOIG reviewed all supporting documentation for the selected samples and tested each 
transaction against five (5) compliance and internal control attributes. These are: (1) supporting 
documentation for authorization of expense (i.e. contract, invoice, etc.), (2) approval of 
disbursement, (3) detailed written information on the nature of the expense and verifiable 
evidence of time worked or the function performed, (4) whether the expense appeared necessary 
for JPFA operations, and not duplicative, and (5) supporting documentation of Request For 
Proposal or public bidding process(es) in accordance with Jefferson Parish guidelines, when 
applicable. 
  
Standards 
The JPOIG conducted the audit in accordance with the Institute of Internal Auditor’s Principles 
and Standards (the Red Book). These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis for our findings and 
conclusions based on our audit objectives. We believe that the evidence obtained provides a 
reasonable basis for our findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives. 
 
Acronyms 
The following acronyms are used in this document. 
JPFA Jefferson Parish Finance Authority SMAP Southern Mortgage Assistance Program  

CAFR  Combined Annual Financial Report  HOME Home Investment Partnership Program  

MBS  Mortgage Backed Securities  FreddieMac Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp 

HUD  U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development   

JP Jefferson Parish  

 

 
                                                 
1 Bonds that initially financed the JPFA programs were excluded from the scope of this report . A financial and 
compliance review of the most recent bonded debt issuances and early bond defeasances will be included in a 
separate report issued by the JPOIG in the near future. Findings, best practices, and recommendations will be 
communicated to all parties involved upon completion of this audit.  

Table #1 JPFA Expenses by Area and Testing 

JPFA Expenses  
2016 Audited 

Financials 
JPOIG 
Tested 

Operating Expenses $667,700 $302,500 
Fees to Retire Bonds $285,000 $285,000 
Servicing Fees $152,000 $152,000 
Trustee Fees $46,000 $46,000 
Total Expenses $1,150,700 $785,500 

JPOIG Audit Coverage  68% 
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BACKGROUND 
Pursuant to state law, the Parish established a public trust through a Trust Indenture on 
02/09/1979.2  The JPFA, including its Board of Trustees (the “Board”), is a creature of state law 
by virtue of the Trust Indenture.3 The JPFA is not an agency, department or special district of 
Jefferson Parish government because its powers and authorities are controlled by the Trust 
Indenture and not by Parish ordinance. Jefferson Parish is the named beneficiary of the trust. The 
trust was established to promote and provide for the development of residential housing. 
 
Table #2 at right shows there are eight (8) 
members appointed to serve on the JPFA Board.  
Seven (7) members are appointed by the Parish 
Council, and the eighth member is appointed by 
the Parish Council on nomination by the Parish 
President.4  
 
Under the Trust Indenture, the Board may adopt 
by-laws for the orderly administration and 
regulation of the Trust, subject to approval by the 
Parish Council.5 The JPFA adopted by-laws which established the rights, powers and duties of 
the Board of Trustees and its officers. 6 Under the terms of the Trust Indenture, the JPFA also has 
the authority to appoint a general manager and to employ clerical, professional, legal and 
technical assistance including, but not limited to, accountants, attorneys and financial and fiscal 
advisors and agents, as they may deem necessary to operate the business of the Trust.7 The JPFA 
can establish their own policies and procedures regarding personnel, procurement and 
contracting.  
 
DATA REVIEW & ANALYSIS  
The JPFA’s operations are funded by self-generated revenue. Historically, revenue was 
generated from utilization of bond issuances associated with the JPFA’s housing assistance 
programs.8 Beginning in 2013, JPFA operations were supplemented by revenue generated 
through the Southern Mortgage Assistance Program (SMAP). Under the JPFA By-Laws, Article 
VI, Section 1 reads, in part, that: 

“…the Board of Trustees may authorize any officer, or officers, agent or agents, 
to execute and deliver any instrument in the name and on behalf of the trust, and 
such authority may be general or confined to specific instances.” Further, Article 
VI, Section 2 states, “All checks, drafts or other orders for payment of money, and 

                                                 
2 La.R.S. 9:2341 Public Trusts, Chapter 2A.  See also JPFA Trust Indenture, dated February 9, 1979. 
3 La.R.S. 9:2341 et al. See also La. AG Opinion 08-0225 (Feb. 5, 2009).  
4 JPFA Trust Indenture, dated February 9, 1979, provided for seven members, each member being appointed by the 
governing authority of the Parish, or the Parish Council. The Trust Indenture was amended by JPCO 22043 on 
10/29/2003, to provide that the Board of Trustees “shall number eight, seven of whom shall be appointed by the 
governing body of the Parish, and one of whom shall be first nominated for appointment to the Board by the Parish 
President and subsequently appointed by the governing body of the Parish. 

5 JPFA Trust Indenture, Article VII, Paragraph (3).  
6 JPFA By-laws, August 20, 1979. 
7 JPFA Trust Indenture, dated February 9, 1979, Article VII, Powers and Duties of the Trustees.  
8 As of 12/31/2016, the JPFA maintains a series of mortgage revenue bonds totaling $26.5 million. 

Table #2  
JPFA Trustee  Appointing Entity 

Mr. Jackie Berthelot District 1 
Mr. Mitchell Boyter At-Large Division B 
Mr. Dennis DiMarco Parish President 

 Mr. Frank Muscarello At-Large Division A 
Mr. Greg Faia District 4 
Mr. Sam Schudmak District 2 
Mr. Dalton Simmons District 3 
Ms. Marcy Planer District 5 
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all notes, bonds, or other evidences of indebtedness issued in the name of the 
Trust and in such manner as shall from time to time be determined by resolution 
of the Board of Trustees.” 

 
The Board summarily approves and/or ratifies expenditures from a weekly report prepared by 
JPFA staff and presented at the JPFA meetings. The Board’s approval is reflected in meeting 
minutes before payments are released.    
 
The 2016 JPFA operating expenses totaled approximately $668,000. Operating costs included:  

1. $424,000 in payroll and benefits;  
2. $58,000 in Board Member Per Diem,  
3. $94,000 in professional services expenses, and  
4. $92,000 in other costs.  

In addition to the listed operating expenses, the JPFA also incurred costs associated with bond 
sales totaling $285,000.  
 
Below is a summary of all identified, questioned, and avoidable costs/revenues that were noted 
by the JPOIG. See Table #3.  

Table #3 COST EXCEPTIONS 
Description of Cost/Revenue Amount Identified Questioned Avoidable 

Retirement Benefits-Executive Director $549,509.98  $549,509.98    $549,509.98  
Retirement Employer Contributions $159,603.58    $159,603.58  $159,603.58  
Board Member Per Diem Payments $120,750.00    $120,750.00  $181,125.00  
Travel  $935.00    $935.00    
Sub-Total Exec Staff & Board Expenses $830,798.56  $549,509.98  $281,288.58  $890,238.56  
Attorney Fees Retainer Agreement $84,000.00    $84,000.00    
Attorney Fees Excess Payments $20,000.00  $20,000.00    $20,000.00  
Outside Legal Services $93,723.75    $93,723.75    
Other Professional Services $357,276.73    $357,276.73    
Sub-Total Professional Fees $555,000.48  $20,000.00  $535,000.48  $20,000.00  
Federal HOME Funds- Staff Fees $1,843.67    $1,843.67    
Federal HOME Funds- Legal Review $5,000.00  $5,000.00    $5,000.00  
Sub-Total Loan Programs $6,843.67  $5,000.00  $1,843.67  $5,000.00  
Residual from Bond Retirement $1,217,000.00  $1,217,000.00    $1,217,000.00  
Bond Fund Revenue $180,000.00    $180,000.00    
Sub-Total Financials $1,397,000.00  $1,217,000.00  $180,000.00  $1,217,000.00  

Totals $2,789,642.71  $1,791,509.98  $998,132.73  $2,132,238.56  

• Identified Amounts: are unallowable expenditures that are recoverable.9  
• Questioned Costs: are potentially allowable expenditures that are questioned due to a 

lack of supporting documentation; a potential legal issue, or are considered unnecessary 
or unreasonable. Questioned costs may be curable. 

                                                 
9 These unallowable expenditures have been documented as being not supported by law, regulation, contract, grant, 

agreement, or other document. Identified costs are not curable. Identified amounts may be revenues either not 
collected, or improperly recorded in the books and records of the agency or department under audit.  
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• Avoidable Costs: are a projection of costs over a three year period, or other term based on 
existing agreements, if the issue is not modified or corrected.10 The above table of 
identified, questioned, and avoidable costs/revenues are based upon the audit of four 
functional areas: 1) Staff and Board Expenses, 2) Professional Service Expenses, 3) 
Loans, and 4) Governance.  Data review and analysis of these areas is discussed below in 
greater detail.  

STAFF AND BOARD EXPENSES 
The JPFA, as a separate entity, is not covered by the Parish’s pay plan(s). Notwithstanding this,  
the Parish has carried JPFA staff, including its Executive Director, as Parish employees without 
any decipherable legal obligation or support to do so. Total salary and benefits paid by the Parish 
for JPFA employees were $388,319 for 2015 and $463,239 for 2016.11 These costs were 
reimbursed to the Parish by JPFA from JPFA self-generated revenue. 

Executive Director-Misclassification as a Parish Employee  
The Trust Indenture authorizes the JPFA to appoint a “general manager” or an “administrator”  
to properly operate the business of the JPFA.12 In 2009, the JPFA appointed Terry McCarthy 
(“Mr. McCarthy”) to be Executive Director of JPFA and executed an Employment Agreement 
with him on 05/05/2009.13 At the time, Mr. McCarthy was an Executive Assistant to Parish 
President Aaron Broussard.  Tim Whitmer, the Chief Operating Officer for Parish President 
Aaron Broussard directed the Parish Finance Department to create “this new position” of 
Executive Director of JPFA within the Parish payroll system. 14 Then, Tim Whitmer requested 
the Director of Finance to “move Mr. McCarthy from one department to another, thereby 
transferring his sick and annual leave balances to a new department.” 15 As a result of this legally 
unsupported action, the newly appointed Executive Director of the JPFA, Mr. McCarthy, 
retained all of the benefits and privileges of being a Parish employee while the JPFA controlled 
the terms and conditions of employment, including but not limited to salary.  
 
Under the original Employment Agreement between the JPFA and Terry McCarthy, the 
Executive Director’s salary was set at $105,000, which represented a 15% increase in salary for 
Mr. McCarthy from his previous position with the Broussard Administration.  At the time, the 
Employment Agreement referenced and incorporated the Jefferson Parish Executive Pay Plan.  
 
In 2014, the Employment Agreement was amended by JPFA.16 The amendment removed all 
references to the Jefferson Parish Pay Plan and related restrictions, permitting salary increases 
that exceed limits set by the Parish Executive Pay Plan. The agreement, as amended, provided, 
“[a]ll salary and benefits adjustments shall be approved by resolution from the Board of 
Trustees.” 
 

                                                 
10 Avoidable costs are calculated based upon either identified or questioned costs. This metric reflects the potential 

three-year savings that could be realized through the recovery of identified costs and/or the discovery of 
questioned costs which should have been denied. 

11 2017 JPFA Budget Report. 
12 JPFA Trust Indenture, dated February 9, 1979, Article VII, Powers and Duties of the Trustees.  
13 Employment Agreement between the JPFA and Terry McCarthy. 
14 E-Mail from Tim Whitmer to Gwen Bolotte, Director of Finance, dated 05/14/2009. 
15 E-Mail from Tim Whitmer to Gwen Bolotte, Director of Finance, dated 05/14/2009. 
16 Amended Employment Agreement between the JPFA and Terry McCarthy. 



6 
 

Still, the Executive Director later received an automatic 5% increase in salary when the Parish 
approved a 5% cost of living 
increase on 12/26/2015, for Parish 
employees.17 When external 
auditors took note of the increase 
without Board approval, the Board 
retroactively approved the 5% raise 
for Mr. McCarthy.18 Thus, Mr. 
McCarthy received $6,909.54 in 
compensation during this time 
period that was not authorized by 
the JPFA Board.19     
 
Since 2009, McCarthy’s salary has increased a total of 36%. See Chart # 1 above. Between 2014 
and 2016, Mr. McCarthy’s total salary package increased 16%.20 In addition to raises, Mr. 
McCarthy received a car and cell phone allowance as the Executive Director of JPFA. Mr. 
McCarthy’s compensation package as JPFA Executive Director represented 26% of the 2016 
JPFA total operating expenses. Table #4 below shows the Executive Director’s total 
compensation over this three (3) year period. Further, Mr. McCarthy did not submit timesheets 
or utilize any other method to account for time. 

Table #4 Executive Director Compensation 
Audited Financials 2014 2015 2016 
Salary $121,993.22  $128,661.63  $134,743.00  
Benefits $15,040.45  $15,199.18  $23,390.00  
Car Allowance $11,086.08  $11,086.08  $11,086.00  
Travel/Other Fees $2,565.83  $5,177.90  $5,720.00  

Total $150,685.58  $160,124.79  $174,939.00  

Misclassification of the Assistant 
Director  
Mr. McCarthy as the JPFA Executive 
Director, with the cooperation of the 
Parish, created the position of the 
Assistant Director for the JPFA 
within the Parish Classified Service 
Plan.  This action reinforced the 
misperception created by Tim 
Whitmer that JPFA employees are 
entitled to the benefits and privileges 
of Parish employees even though the 

                                                 
17 JP Summary Ordinance No. 24352, Ordinance No. 25057, Section 6, dated 12/09/2015,  granting a 5% raise 

effective 01/01/2016. 
18 Minutes JPFA Regular Meeting February 20, 2017. 
19 Annual salary increase of $6,416 paid for 28 pay periods from 12/26/2015-02/20/2017. 
20 2014, 2015, and 2016 Year End Audited Financial Reports. 
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Parish did not retain any authority over them as JPFA employees. 21 

Ms. Rodrigue, a JPFA clerical person, was, for all intents and purposes, the only candidate for 
the position because of the qualifications.  Ms. Rodrigue, who started with the JPFA in 2000, 
was hired for the position of JPFA Assistant Director by Mr. McCarthy in 2009.22 After 2009, 
Ms. Rodrigue received an overall increase in salary of 57% through 2016.23 See Chart #2 above. 

Essential functions listed in the job description for the Assistant Director include but are not 
limited to: 

• Assigned total authority to approve/disapprove all decisions in the absence of the 
Executive Director. 

• Compiles executive correspondence, reports, financial information, and statistical bond 
loan information from the Authority's inception.  

• Prepares annual budget with the approval of the Executive Director. Attend Administrative 
Committee meetings where the budget is reviewed to answer any questions. 

• Approves all office operating checks and expenditures. Reviews for accuracy all financial 
statements.  

• Maintain accounting system by resolving any computer errors or problems that arise 
when inputting information. 

• At year end, review all entries on JPFA accounting system in preparation for yearly audit 
and meet with the CPA concerning input of corrections or adjustments into accounting 
system. 

• Develop and/or revise Excel spreadsheets needed by CPA for year-end audit. 
• Review draft year-end audit for any errors/corrections and discuss with CPA and 

auditors. 
• Prepares, maintains and updates manuals on operational procedures and office related work 

manuals.24  

Importantly, the job description does not specify any education or certification requirements 
customary to a position involving fiscal and management responsibilities.25 However, the 
position did include these qualifications:  
 Current employment and permanent civil service status with Jefferson Parish, PLUS, 
 At least seven (7) years of work experience in the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

with responsibility for technical market rate programs and/or bond issues. 
 

                                                 
21 Parish Council Ordinance No. 25093, 02/17/2016, eliminating the position of Assistant to the Jefferson Parish 

Finance Authority, Pay Grade 22 and creating the position of Assistant Director-Jefferson Parish Finance 
Authority, Pay Grade 30 with same duties. Parish Council Ordinance No. 24393, 12/12/2012, the Parish Council 
created the position of Assistant to the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority, Pay Grade 22, under a proposal 
“forwarded to this Council as necessary and in the best interest of Parish Service…”.  

22 Request for Hire-Sheila Rodrigue. 
23 JP Payroll -Sheila Rodrigue. 
24 Assistant Director- JPFA. 
25 The position is also tasked with the essential functions of accounting, operations, management, reporting, and 

compliance that may exceed her actual qualifications.   
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In the course of its audit, the JPOIG noted the following relating to Ms. Rodrigue’s performance 
as Assistant Director: 

• Accounting errors in the books and records she maintained;26 
• A lack of knowledge and skills in basic accounting practices;27 
• Resistance to basic audit functions and requests resulting in audit delays and obstruction 

of access to information.28 
 
In fiscal year 2016, the external audit firm made a total of 7 reclassifying journal entries and 2 
adjusting journal entries, totaling $1,829,342.  This amount, while not considered as material to 
the external audit firm, represents 5% of the authority’s net assets as of 12/31/2016 and 58% of 
the authority’s revenues for fiscal year 2016.29 These errors are reasonably related to Ms. 
Rodrigue’s knowledge, skills and abilities related to the position of Assistant Director as well as 
that of Mr. McCarthy, as her supervisor. 

Notably, the JPFA does not employ a CPA, and relies on the volunteer services of an external 
party for accounting questions, as needed, by the Assistant Director.30 The external professional 
does not currently have a contract with the JPFA, yet that individual is tasked with approving the 
external auditor’s adjusting journal entries, and reviewing all financial information.  

Staff – Jefferson Parish Civil Service 
Because JPFA’s employment power and authority are controlled by the mandates of the Trust 
Indenture, JPFA employees are not a part of Parish government.  

Nevertheless, all employees of the JPFA, with the exception of the Executive Director, are 
included in the Jefferson Pay Plan for the Classified Service.31 This has been the practice for the 
JPFA employees since the Personnel Director issued a memorandum on 03/14/1988, concluding 
that they should be included in the pay plan for classified service.32  Based upon documents 
reviewed, it does not appear as though the Parish sought any clarity regarding the position taken 
by the Personnel Director nearly 30 years ago. Based upon the terms and conditions of the Trust 
Indenture, it would appear that the position taken by the Personnel Director was without legal 
support.33  

Inclusion of these employees in the Parish Civil Service system has resulted in JPFA employees 
being afforded coverage and representation in a system that is reserved for employees within 

                                                 
26 The Trial Balance provided by the JPFA excluded the bank accounts for the Federal HUD HOME Funds Program. 

The JPFA Budget was not inclusive of all funds.  A prior period adjustment in the amount of $50,000 had to be 
made for professional services recorded in the incorrect fiscal period. Two accounts in two separate funds for the 
GASB 31 gain/loss adjustments were misstated by $12,335.46 and $30,557.26 respectively, due to an error in 
posting December transactions. The Trial Balance and corrected Trial Balance provided showed funds (1991-R & 
1991-DED) to be out of balance by the same amount of $37,405.30. 

27 When a subsidiary ledger and evidence of surety bonds were requested on separate occasions, the Assistant 
Director responded that she had no idea what these items were. 

28 JPOIG Cover Letter-Request for Records 04/28/2017. 
29 Audited Financial Report JPFA for the Year Ended December 31, 2016. 
30 William A. Murhammer, Jr., CPA. 
31 See Letter by Martin Schwegmann, Personnel Director, dated 03/23/1988.  See also Pay Plan for the Classified 

Service. 
32 Memorandum from Martin Schwegmann, Personnel Director, 03/14/1988. 
33 La.AG Opinion 08-0225 (Feb. 5, 2009). 
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Jefferson Parish government. Further, the inclusion of JPFA employees in the Classified Service 
is incongruent and irreconcilable with the provisions of the Trust Indenture.  Likewise, the 
inherent authority of Personnel cannot logically extend to employees of JPFA when these 
employees are supervised by an Executive Director who is not responsible to Parish government.    

Parish Retirement Benefits 
While JPFA employees have enjoyed salary increases and other benefits at the discretion of the 
JPFA Board, the Parish actions resulting in them being carried as Parish employees has afforded 
the JPFA employees access to retirement benefits through the Parochial Employees Retirement 
System (PERSLA) to which they are not otherwise entitled.34  

JPFA Employees - Retirement benefits 
Jefferson Parish government provides retirement benefits for Parish employees through 
participation in PERSLA. All permanent parish government employees who work at least 28 
hours a week shall become members of PERSLA on the date of employment.35 An employee 
must have seven years of service in order to become vested to receive retirement benefits.  
On a bi-weekly basis, the Parish forwards employer and employee contributions to PERSLA for 
all Parish employees as a function of processing payroll. By way of contributions, the Parish 
affirms to PERSLA the identity of individual participants on whose behalf contributions are 
made. This data is later relied upon by PERSLA to determine retirement eligibility and 
benefits.36 The Parish has been identifying JPFA employees and submitting contributions for 
them as if they were Parish employees.  Thus, the Parish has afforded at least five (5) JPFA 
current employees access to retirement benefits through PERSLA for which they are not entitled.   

Executive Director McCarthy – Retirement Benefits 
During the audit period, Mr. McCarthy retired from his position as Executive Director. The 
JPOIG observed that Mr. McCarthy’s eligibility for retirement benefits through PERSLA raises 
obvious questions of eligibility as he did not have seven years of service as a Parish employee, 
required for vesting, without inclusion of his tenure with the JPFA.37 Mr. McCarthy’s 
employment history shows approximately four (4) years of creditable service as a Parish 
government employee:  

02/14/2005  A Coordinator.  
07/01/2006  Director of Citizens Affairs. 
01/01/2008  Executive Assistant to the Parish President, for then Parish President Aaron 

Broussard.38 

                                                 
34 There are provisions under state law for eligible entities to petition for participation in PERSLA. JPFA has not 

petitioned PERSLA for participation. 
35 PERSLA Summary, Section 2 Members.  http://www.persla.org/new_pdf/Summary16.pdf. 
36 PERSLA Summary, Section 4 Vesting.  http://www.persla.org/new_pdf/Summary16.pdf. 
37 Parish Council discussed concerns regarding Mr. McCarthy’s eligibility to receive Jefferson Parish retirement 

benefits based upon JPFA’s status as a separate legal entity at its meeting on 05/24/2017. The JPOIG was 
concurrently inquiring with the Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (PERSLA), the Jefferson 
Parish Retirement Board, and the PAO’s office regarding this issue. JP Resolution # 129290 dated 05/24 2017. 

38 JP Payroll - Terry McCarthy. 

http://www.persla.org/new_pdf/Summary16.pdf
http://www.persla.org/new_pdf/Summary16.pdf
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05/15/2009  “Appointment Ended” as Executive Assistant to the Parish President, for then 
Parish President Aaron Broussard.39  

05/15/2009 Began Service with the JPFS as Executive Director. 40 

Therefore, Mr. McCarthy’s total years of service as a Jefferson Parish employee is calculated to 
be 4.15 years running from 03/21/2005 to 05/15/2009.41  

On 06/12/2017,  the Jefferson Parish Attorney’s Office (PAO) wrote to PERSLA to confirm that 
Mr. McCarthy’s employment with Jefferson Parish government ended on 05/15/2009.42  The 
PAO did not include any assessment or direction as it relates to Mr. McCarthy receiving 
retirement benefits.  Mr. McCarthy is receiving retirement benefits from PERSLA.  
 
Due to the direction given in 2009 by Chief Operating Officer Tim Whitmer, Mr. McCarthy’s 
earnings as Executive Director JFPA were reported to PERSLA as if he was a Parish 
employee.43 An analysis of Parish monthly payroll reports and certifications from May of 2009 
through May of 2017 shows Mr. McCarthy’s earnings were included in the Parish monthly 
earnings report to PERSLA, and Mr. McCarthy’s earnings were certified by the Parish as being a 
bona fide Jefferson Parish employee.44 As a result, PERSLA shows 11.12 years of service by 
Mr. McCarthy instead of the 4.15. Mr. McCarthy may collect retirement benefits of $2,823.29 
per month.45 Table # 5 below depicts Mr. McCarthy’s estimated potential retirement benefits as 
$549,510.46  
 

Table # 5 Retirement Benefits 

  
Life Expectancy 

(Years)47 
Months of 
Payment Benefit48 

Estimated 
Payout 

DROP N/A 13.97  $2,823.29   $39,431.95  
Terry McCarthy 15.3 183.6  $2,823.29   $518,356.04  
Nancy McCarthy 18.1 33.6  $2,823.29   $94,862.54  

Total Estimated Benefits  $652,650.54  
Total Employee Contributions as of 4/2016 49  $103,140.56  

Total Benefits - Employee Contribution  $549,509.98  

 

                                                 
39 JP Payroll -Terry McCarthy. 
40 Employment Agreement (contract) between the JPFA and Terry McCarthy dated 05/05/2009. 
41 PERSLA Salary Contribution report dated 06/15/2017, reflects PERSLA entry into the system was effective 

03/21/2005. 
42 Letter from the Jefferson Parish Office of the Parish Attorney 06/09/2017. 
43 Parish employees are not retained under an employment contract.  Rather, they serve under the Administration of 

the Parish President or that of the Parish Council.  
44 JP Monthly Report of Earnings and Contributions as of 5/31/2009 and 5/31/2017. 
45 PERS Public Records Request-Terry McCarthy. 
46 https://www.ssa.gov/OACT/population/longevity.html 
47 https://www.ssa.gov/OACT/population/longevity.html. 
48 PERS Public Records Request-Terry McCarthy. 
49 PERSLA response to Subpoena Duces Tecum- Terry McCarthy. 
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The JPOIG estimates that these total potential benefits, before the reduction of employee 
contributions, for currently vested employees as of June 2017, is approximately $4 Million 
($4,000,000).   The JPOIG noted that there is a process for government based entities to petition 
PERSLA for eligibility and inclusion. However; as of this audit, the Parish was still sending to 
contributions to PERSLA and affirming participation for all JPFA employees: (1) the Executive 
Director; (2) the Assistant Director; and (3) three JPFA staff employees. While the JPFA is 
reimbursing the Parish for these contributions JPFA’s employees are not Parish employees and 
no authority can be located that permits the Parish to extend benefits to non-Parish employees.  

Excessive Trustee Per Diem Payments 
Under the Trust Indenture, Board members “shall serve without compensation, but may receive a 
reasonable per diem” as determined by the Board and “may be reimbursed for actual expenses 
incurred in the performance of their duties…”50 In accordance with the aforementioned 
authority, the JPFA has authorized per diem reimbursements in the amount of $62,700.00 in 
201551 and $58,050.00 in 2016.52 These amounts represent approximately 9% of the JPFA’s 
annual operating expenses.53  
 
Limitations  
On 06/02/2008, the JPFA Board passed a resolution to “increase the per diem from $100.00 to 
$150.00 per each meeting attended by said member for no more than fifty-two (52) meetings per 
calendar year.”54 The JPFA resolution followed Parish Council Ordinance No. 23211 passed six 
(6) months earlier on 12/12/2007, which also increased per diems to “one hundred fifty dollars 
($150) for each meeting attended . . . for no more than fifty-two (52) meetings per calendar 
year.”55 
 
Expansion  
On 07/13/2009, just one year after the JPFA’s resolution to limit per diems to 52 meetings per 
year, the JPFA passed a resolution approving per diems for members attending “approved 
conferences, Bond Commission Hearings, committee meetings, and the like, when such 
attendance is approved by the Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the JPFA.”56 Based upon 
this action, it is clear that JPFA authorized per diems for committee meetings, hearings, 
conferences “and the like.” It is unclear whether the limit of per diems to 52 meetings was 
inclusive or exclusive of these additional events.  
 
Per Diem Usage 
The vast majority of per diems are paid to members for attendance of JPFA scheduled weekly 
Board meetings. The JPFA’s weekly Board meetings routinely exceeded the monthly board  
meeting schedule of a Capital Area Finance Authority (CAFA) based in East Baton Rouge and 

                                                 
50 JPFA Trust Indenture, Article VII, Section 11. 
51 JPFA Audited Financial Report 2015 Schedule 4, p. 31. 
52 JPFA Audited Financial Report 2016 Schedule 5, p. 31. 
53 JPFA Audited Financial Report 2016 Schedule 4, p. 30. 
54 JPFA Board Resolution 06/02/2008. 
55 Summary No. 22383 Ordinance No. 23211, Sec. 2-517. 
56 JPFA Board Resolution 07/13/2009. 
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performing similar services.57 Recognizing the frequency of the meeting schedule, the JPOIG 
sought to assess the volume of material addressed in the meetings and reviewed all board 
minutes for calendar year 2016. It was determined that the average weekly board meeting was 32 
minutes in length, which equates to on average approximately $4.6 per minute or $281 per hour 
per board member. 
 
Therefore, the JPFA compensates 
Board members with a per diem for 
attendance at weekly Board meetings 
and for members attending committee 
meetings, conferences, and luncheons. 
Per diem was paid for 74 non-Board 
events in 2015 and 44 non-Board 
events in 2016 for a total non-board 
meeting based per diem of $17,700. 
See Table #6. 
Analysis of individual member per diem payments for 2015 revealed four (4) trustees received 
more than the 52 per diem payments in a calendar year. In 2016, two (2) trustees had more than 
52 per diem payments. Per diem payments for calendar years 2015 and 2016 are depicted below. 
See Table #7. 
 

Table #7 Per Diem Meetings and Payments 
  2015 2016   

Trustee Regular Other 
2015 
Total 

2015 
Payments Regular Other 

2015 
Total 

2015 
Payment

s 

2015 & 
2016 

Payments 
Mr. Berthelot 50 17 67  $  10,050  42 6 48 $7,200 $17,250 
Mr. Boyter 50 13 63  $    9,450  46 5 51 $7,650 $17,100 
Mr. DiMarco 41 10 51  $    7,650  38 9 47 $7,050 $14,700 
Mr. Drawe 46 7 53  $    7,950  4 0 4 $600 $8,550 
Mr. Faia 41 8 49  $    7,350  43 10 53 $7,950 $15,300 
Mr. Muscarello 49 10 59  $    8,850  46 8 54 $8,100 $16,950 
Ms. Planer N/A N/A N/A  N/A  39 0 39 $5,850 $5,850 
Mr. Schudmak 42 3 45  $    6,750  42 1 43 $6,450 $13,200 
Mr. Simmons 12 0 12  $    1,800  43 5 48 $7,200 $9,000 
Ms. Woodruff 13 6 19  $    2,850  N/A N/A N/A N/A $2,850 
Totals 344 74 418  $  62,700  343 44 387 $58,050 $120,750 

 
Travel Expenses 
According to the audited financials, JPFA expended $9,900 and $8,600 for calendar years 2015 
and 2016, respectively, for travel-related expenses.58 The JPFA maintains a Travel Policy that 
was adopted on 04/23/2012, and revised on 06/30/2014. The policy provides guidelines under 
which Board members may receive per diems and reimbursement for travel costs to conferences 
                                                 
57 Data based on CAFA's 2016 Consolidated Annual Financial Report (CAFR). See: 

http://www.thecafa.org/assets/uploads/docs/Audited_Financial_Statement_-_2016_2.pdf . 
58 JPFA Audited Financial Report 2016 Schedule 4, p. 30. 

 Table #6 Number of Meetings and Cost of Per Diem 

Event Type 
Number of 
Per Diems rate Total 

2015 Board Meetings 344 x $150 $51,600 
2015 Non-Board Events 74 x $150 $11,100 
2016 Board Meetings 

 
343 x$150 $51,450 

2016 Non-Board Events 44 x $150 $6,600 
Totals: 805 x $150 $120,750 

http://www.thecafa.org/assets/uploads/docs/Audited_Financial_Statement_-_2016_2.pdf
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and seminars.59 JPFA could not identify any such similar policy for JPFA staff including the 
Executive Director.60 
 
Board Travel 
The JPOIG calculated that the JPFA Board members expended $3,363 in 2016 for costs 
associated with attendance at the National Association of Local Housing Finance Authorities 
(NALHFA) conference in Dallas.61 Analysis of documentation revealed that $325 of these 
expenses were incurred due to Board Members’ travel cancelations. Additionally, $75 was spent 
for early airline check-in that was not necessary for travel. 
 
Executive Director Travel 
Mr. McCarthy was reimbursed $5,231 in 2016 for travel, although no JPFA policy existed to 
permit this reimbursement. Mr. McCarthy also received an annual car allowance of  $11,086.  
The costs are assessed below:  
 
CAR ALLOWANCE/RENTAL CAR USAGE 
Mr. McCarthy received an annual car/cell phone allowance of $11,086 for 2016.62 Car 
allowances are typically designed to compensate the employee for all vehicle expenses related to 
work travel. Any additional expenditures would customarily require written justification, 
demonstration that the mileage allotment has been exceeded, and board approval.   
 
However, and notwithstanding the car allowance, records reflect that Mr. McCarthy was 
reimbursed for 5 instances of rental car usage and associated fuel expenses totaling $399. The 
rental car usage appears to be connected with meetings in Calcasieu Parish, estimated to be 
approximately 185 miles from the JPFA offices. Based upon the distance, it is reasonable to 
believe the mileage would reasonably be absorbed within the car allowance range.63  
 
Further, it was observed that while not binding on the JPFA Parish policies in 2016 only 
permitted a maximum car allowance of $8,100.64 Therefore, Mr. McCarthy’s car allowance 
exceeded the Parish maximum allowance by $2,986.  
 
JEFFERSON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE WASHINGTON FLY-IN – WASHINGTON, D.C. 
Mr. McCarthy was reimbursed $1725 for travel to Washington D.C. to participate in the 
Jefferson Chamber of Commerce Washington Fly-In. This annual event is designed to permit 
interaction with members of the Louisiana Congressional delegation. Expenses were reimbursed 
for airfare, lodging and meals.   

                                                 
59 JPFA Travel Policy 06/30/2014. 
60 JP Travel and Training Policy & Procedure. 
61 JPFA Detailed Trial Balance for 2016- Account 6185 Travel Expense. 
62 JPFA Audited Financial Report 2016 Schedule 6, p. 32. 
63 As a point of reference only, the Parish Travel and Training Procedure at  Section 8 states that, “employees who 

anticipate a need for an automobile rental must document the need and gain approval prior to out of town travel. 
…  an employee is eligible to receive mileage reimbursement if they have driven more than the miles reimbursed 
via the monthly car allowance.” Terry McCarthy did not keep records of mileage used, and does not obtain  
written approval prior to renting a car for travel. Under Parish travel policies, reimbursement would not have been 
permitted.  

64 Jefferson Parish’s maximum reimbursement rate for 2016 was calculated on 1,250 miles monthly and IRS mileage 
reimbursement rate of 54 cents per mile. 
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(NALHFA) CONFERENCE - DALLAS  
Mr. McCarthy was reimbursed $1571.29 for expenses related to the NALHFA conference in 
Dallas, TX. Related to this trip, the JPOIG also identified $72 in baggage fees charged to the 
JPFA AMEX card that were for personal travel of the Executive Director and his wife.65 There 
are no transactions in the general ledger or other supporting documentation showing that these 
personal expenses were reimbursed to the JPFA.  
 
An additional reimbursement of $40 was identified based on an AMEX charge dated 5/12/2016, 
for Mr. McCarthy that was found to not have any supporting receipts. The original purpose of the 
charge is unknown.  

Summation - Staff and Board Expenses 
Under the umbrella of JPFA “Staff and Board Expenses,” we examine and analyze JPFA’s 
Executive Director and Assistant Director’s salary costs, the inclusion of certain JPFA 
employees into Civil Service, access to retirement benefits, per diem payments, and travel 
expenses.  

The collective, but uncoordinated actions of the Parish (to include actions by Personnel regarding 
JPFA employees) are the cause of the current, confused state. Classifying, or more correctly 
misclassifying,  the JPFA employees as Parish employees has resulted in the JPFA employees 
accessing Parish benefits. The resulting entanglement of employees between two separate 
systems allows employees to be wrongly entitled to Parish benefits while the Parish lacks 
requisite control. The JPFA has furthered facilitated this situation through the lack of an 
established pay plan, onboarding process for employees, benefits and retirement packages, and 
policies and procedures for various functions. The analysis also demonstrates a history of poor 
internal controls over certain JPFA expenditures and management practices. 

In order to correct the actions taken previously, a series of findings are designed to sever the 
improper carrying of JPFA employees as Parish employees; correct the classification of JPFA 
employees as Parish Civil Servants; and cause the JPFA to establish policies and procedures 
under their own authority to address those areas where voids exist. See finding numbers 1 
through 5.  

 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE FEES  
Professional service fees is the next functional area audited by the JPOIG. Under the Trust 
Indenture, the JPFA possesses the authority to “[a]ppoint attorneys, paying agencies and 
corporate trustees in connection with the issuance of” bonds as well as to “[e]mploy a financial 
advisor, or advisors, to advise and assist the” Board in the marketing of bonds.66 
 
The JPFA engages numerous professionals to provide services to the JPFA staff and Board. 
Detailed testing of the JPFA’s General Ledger transactions show that professionals were 
compensated by JPFA without any competitive process and payments to professionals are not 
reasonably supported by documentation sufficient to justify total expenditures.  
                                                 
65 AMEX Statement 05/12/2016- JP Finance Authority. AMEX details show charges for $36 each for extra baggage 

fees listing the passengers as Terry McCarthy and Nancy McCarthy. 
66 JPFA Trust Indenture, Article VIII, Section 3(a). 
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Table #8, below, reflects professional services payments for fiscal years 2015 and 2016. 

Table #8 Professional Fees 
Vendor Fee Type 2015 2016 Total 

The Konrad Law Firm Monthly Retainer Agreement $42,000.00  $42,000.00  $84,000.00  
The Konrad Law Firm Freddie Mac Program $5,000.00    $5,000.00  
The Konrad Law Firm Bond Rollup Fees   $15,000.00  $15,000.00  
The Becknell Law Firm Freddie Mac Program $25,000.00    $25,000.00  
The Becknell Law Firm Bond Rollup Fees   $65,000.00  $65,000.00  
The Becknell Law Firm Professional Fees-Legal $3,723.75    $3,723.75  
Gov’t Consultants, Inc. Freddie Mac Program   $25,000.00  $25,000.00  
Gov’t Consultants, Inc. Bond Rollup Fees $25,000.00  $45,000.00  $70,000.00  
Sisung Securities Corp. Freddie Mac Program   $25,000.00  $25,000.00  
Sisung Securities Corp. Bond Rollup Fees   $72,500.00  $72,500.00  
Sisung Investment Services Investment Mgt Fees $16,150.02  $14,126.71  $30,276.73  
George K. Baum & Co. Bond Rollup Fees   $72,500.00  $72,500.00  
Postlethwaite & Netterville Professional Fees-Audit $31,000.00  $31,000.00  $62,000.00  

Totals $147,873.77  $407,126.71  $555,000.48  
 
General Counsel Fees: 
The JPFA contracts with Gordon R. Konrad (“Konrad”) to serve as the JPFA’s General Counsel. 
Currently, the JPFA has a three-year contract with Konrad which became effective 10/01/2015 
and expires on 09/30/2018.67  Under the terms of the contract, the Board agrees “to pay Counsel 
a monthly retainer fee of THREE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED AND NO/100 ($3,500) 
DOLLARS.  Counsel agrees to submit monthly invoices” to JPFA.  The fee, under the 
engagement, represents compensation for providing the following services:68  

1. Render all professional services including without limitation advice, consultation, trial 
and such other professional work as JPFA may direct. 

2. Devote whatever time and energy is necessary, required and requested in performing 
professional services under the direction of the JPFA and shall not in any wise act in 
derogation or conflict with the interest of the JPFA. It is understood and agreed that such 
services shall not be on a full-time basis but only as required. 

3. Maintain and support his own office, stenographic services, library and provide for any 
assistance he deems necessary in the performance of his duties. 

4. These legal services are to be provided under the immediate supervision of the JPFA 
Board and the staff. 

Konrad was paid a total of $84,000 in 2015 and 2016 per his engagement as General Counsel.69  
A review of all invoices for calendar year 2016 shows that Konrad was paid a monthly retainer 
fee of $3,500 without any demonstration of hours spent or a detailed description of work 

                                                 
67 Contract for Professional Legal Services- Gordon R. Konrad, 09/08/2015. 
68 Contract for Professional Legal Services- Gordon R. Konrad, 09/08/2015. 
69 Contract for Professional Legal Services- Gordon R. Konrad. 
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performed.70 State guidelines mandate that “specific task and item billing must occur under 
every contract for attorneys even where an attorney is retained by an agency to provide general 
legal  services and advice.”71  JPOIG relies upon state guidelines as most relevant and 
representative of best practices.  
 
In addition to the monthly retainer, the JPFA paid Konrad an additional $20,000 for work on 
legal opinions relating to JPFA’s Freddie Mac Program and three (3) bond retirements. These 
were paid in four (4) $5,000 increments without adequate supporting documentation.72 This 
additional compensation was approved by the Board via resolution.73 There is no record of hours 
spent or detailed description of work performed in connection with these payments. JPOIG wrote 
to Konrad and received the following response: 

“I do not bill on an hourly basis; rather, I receive a flat monthly fee 
in the amount of $3,500. In addition to the flat monthly fee, when I 
am required to issue a legal opinion on behalf of the Authority 
Relative to a new money bond issuance or a refunding transaction, 
I receive an additional fee that is approved by Resolution of the 
Board of Trustees of the Authority.”74 

 
This response is inconsistent with Konrad’s written contract wherein he agreed to protect the 
JPFA’s interest “by providing legal services, including attendance at all of the Authority’s 
meetings and hearings, provide opinions, legal research, and appearances in court, or otherwise, 
on behalf of or in defense of the Authority.”75  In an effort to clarify that there are no other 
internal records, such as time recording of hours and work performed on services for the JPFA, 
the JPOIG sent a follow-up email and received the following response: “As stated in my letter, 
my firm does not track hours spent representing the JPFA.”76 
 
Overall, Konrad was paid $104,000 by the JPFA for services over a two-year period, including 
$20,000 in payments above the executed contract. The JPOIG confirmed that the attorney did not 
keep any detailed records of time and work performed for the JPFA.  
 
Table # 9 reflects payments to The Konrad Law Firm, LLC for fiscal years 2015 and 2016: 

Table # 9 Payments to The Konrad Law Firm, LLC 

 2015 2016 Total 
Monthly Retainer Agreement $42,000 $42,000 $84,000 
Additional Payments $5,000 $15,000 $20,000 

Total $47,000 $57,000 $104,000 

                                                 
70 The Konrad Law Firm Retainer Agreement Invoice Sample 12/13/2016. 
71 La. Administrative Code 47.V.4703(B)(19), Attorney Case Handling Guidelines and Billing Procedures 

applicable to Louisiana State Government use of outside counsel.  
72 The Konrad Law Firm Invoices-Freddie Mac Program; Bond Series 2006C; Bond Series 2006D; Bond Series 

2007C. 
73 JPFA Resolutions-Freddie Mac Program Resolution 08/10/15; Bond Series 2006C 02/01/16; Bond Series 2006D 

09/26/16; Bond Series 2007C 11/14/2016. 
74 Letter from The Konrad Law Firm, LLC 04/21/2017. 
75 Contract for Professional Legal Services- Gordon R. Konrad. 
76 Email Correspondence-The Konrad Law Firm, LLC 04/28/2017. 
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Special – Bond Counsel Fees 

The JPFA engaged Robert Konrad’s wife and father-in-law, Allison Becknell and J. William 
Becknell, II, of the Becknell Law Firm (“Becknell”), to act as “Special Counsel” and to provide 
legal advice on bond programs. The firm was paid a total of $93,723.75 in 2015 and 2016. 77 
Similar to Konrad’s role as General Counsel, the Becknell lawyers attend weekly meetings of the 
JPFA.  Also like the General Counsel, the attorney(s) do not invoice JPFA based upon hours 
spent. The firm receives a flat fee which is established and approved by the Board through a 
resolution.  The Becknell Law Firm confirmed receiving fees from JPFA in a letter to the JPOIG 
signed by J. William Becknell, II.  In the letter, he states:  

“In accordance with industry standard for work performed in 
connection with bond and/or loan financing transactions, we do not 
bill on an hourly basis; rather, a flat fee is established by the 
financial professionals who structure the various transactions. The 
aforesaid fee is then approved by Resolution of the Board of 
Trustees of the Authority prior to payment.”  

The JPOIG followed up on the letter to clarify if the firm keeps any additional internal records, 
and received the following response via email from J. William Becknell, II: “This will confirm 
that our firm does not maintain any other documentation such as recordation of time spent on a 
particular matter for the JPFA…”78 
Advice given by Allison Becknell and J. William Becknell, II of the Becknell Law Firm as 
“Special Counsel” is reviewed by “General Counsel,” Robert Konrad.  Therefore, the General 
Counsel is paid, in addition to his retainer agreement, to provide legal opinions on bond 
retirements and issuances done on the advice and counsel of his wife and father-in-law as 
“Special Counsel.”  See Table #10. 

Table #10 Payments to The Becknell Law Firm 

 
Profession

al Fees 
Freddie 

Mac 
Bond 

Roll-Up Total 
2015 $3,723.75 $25,000  $28,723.75 
2016   $65,000 $65,000.00 

Total $3,723.75 $25,000 $65,000 $93,723.75 
 
Other Third Party Professionals 
In addition to attorneys, the JPFA retained other professional services such as financial advisors, 
consultants and external auditors. Like the engagement of Becknell, these consultants were 
retained by the Board through a resolution without any advertised process to solicit applications 
from other interested professionals.79 The JPOIG identified that $357,276.73 in other 

                                                 
77 Letter from The Becknell Law Firm 04/21/2017. 
78 E-mail Correspondence from J. William Becknell, II 04/26/2017. 
79 JPFA is not obliged to abide by Parish ordinance relating to the engagement of professionals because it is not a 

part of Parish government and its authorities are defined by the Trust Indenture. As a point of reference, however, 
the Jefferson Parish Code of Ordinances (JPCO) Section 2-926 et seq provides that the Parish shall advertise for 
submittals of statement of qualifications from persons or firms interested in providing professional services.  
JPCO 2-933, Contract negotiation and approval,  states that a contract will be negotiated with the persons or firm 
selected, and no work shall be authorized nor no payment made until the contract is executed.  
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professional services retained by way of Board resolution, of which $265,000.00 was paid 
without the benefit of an written contract with detailed billing requirements.   
 
Table #11 below details the procurement, contracting and billing issues identified by vendor: 

Table #11 Other Professional Services Procurement & Billing 

Vendor 
2015 & 2016 

Total 
No Advertised 

Bid 
No Contract or 
Detailed Billing 

Government Consultants, Inc.  $95,000.00   $95,000.00   $95,000.00  
Sisung Securities Corporation  $127,776.73   $127,776.73   $97,500.00  
George K. Baum & Company  $72,500.00   $72,500.00   $72,500.00  
Postlethwaite & Netterville  $62,000.00   $62,000.00   N/A                 

Totals  $357,276.73   $357,276.73   $265,000.00  
 
The JPFA executed a contract with Postlethwaite & Netterville to perform external audits of the 
JPFA financial statements for fiscal years 2015 and 2016.80  The JPFA did not advertise for 
submittals for these services. The JPOIG confirmed directly with the firm that internal billing 
records are maintained.  
 
The JPFA executed a Bidding Agent Engagement Agreement with Sisung Securities Corporation 
and George K. Baum & Company to retire certain bonds. For the Series 2006C Bonds 
transaction, the total value of the contract was $55,000 with a flat fee payment of $27,500.00 
paid to each of the two agents.81  This contract is irregular as to its duality, and it does not 
specify which firm is responsible for performing which duties set forth in the contract. The JPFA 
did not advertise for submittals for these services. 

Summation – Professional Service Fees 
Under the umbrella of JPFA “Professional Service Fees,” we examined and analyzed a variety of 
professional services expenditures which total more than $555,000 for the audit period of 2015 
& 2016.    

The analysis revealed that the JPFA did not engage in efforts to utilize bidding to control costs, 
failed to execute contracts with all retained professionals, and failed to require detailed 
invoicing. Further, the Special Council firm, who was retained without contract, is owned by the 
General Counsel’s spouse and father-in-law. A series of findings relevant to this section are 
designed to guide the JPFA towards the adoption of more effective, efficient and fiscally sound 
procurement and consultant management. See finding number 6.  
 
LOANS 
The next functional area audited is the JPFA’s loan programs.  The JPFA provides programs for 
low-income residents of Jefferson Parish and other neighboring parishes to secure down payment 
assistance (DPA) and mortgage financing. During the audit period, JPFA utilized three separate 
program vehicles to accomplish their mission: the Southern Mortgage Assistance Program 
(“SMAP”), FreddieMac program and the HOME program operated by the federal Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”).  

                                                 
80 Engagement Agreement Postlethwaite & Netterville, 2014 & 2015. 
81 Bidding Agent Agreement Bond Series 2006C. 
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Premium Pricing to Borrowers-Southern Mortgage Assistance Program (SMAP) 
The primary function of the JPFA is to administer the Southern Mortgage Assistance Program 
(SMAP) within the geographic boundaries of Jefferson Parish, St. Tammany Parish, St. Charles 
Parish, Allen Parish, Beauregard Parish, Cameron Parish, Jefferson Davis Parish and Calcasieu 
Parish.82   
 
This program is a down-payment assistance program offered to first-time, low to moderate 
income borrowers whose credit scores are greater than 640, and whose incomes qualify them for 
SMAP funds.  The JPFA provided down-payment assistance for 350 loans in calendar years 
2015 and 2016.  See Table # 12. 

Table # 12 Loan Demographics (2015-2016) 

  
Total 
Loans 

Closed 
2015 

Closed 
2016 

3% 
DPA 

4% 
DPA 

Avg. 
DPA 

Avg. 
Rate 

Monthly 
Pmt (P&I) 

Avg. Loan 
Amt 

Loan Sample 25 10 15 36% 64% $5,300  4.515% $736  $145,000  
Total Loans  350 165 185 35% 65% $5,000  4.463% Unknown $138,000  

 
The JPOIG selected a sample of 25 loans to test for the following attributes: 

• Eligibility for SMAP: credit score of 640 or higher, income met limits at time of loan 
application approval (Exhibit B), and acquisition cost of residence did not exceed 
program parameter. 

• Eligibility documents (SMAP Exhibits A-F) are fully completed, dated prior to the close 
and part of the borrower’s loan file, when applicable.  

• SMAP Exhibit D includes the clause “recognizing that the interest rate on a mortgage 
loan may (or will) be higher than otherwise available due to this benefit.” 

• Validated the loan balance, date of close, property address, interest rate, and monthly 
mortgage note payment.  

• Validated the loan to the pooling report documenting the loan sale to G.K. Baum. 
• Selected a monthly payment on the loan and validated the amount to the Standard 

Mortgage payment remittance detail report and recalculated all funds paid back to the 
JPFA and Standard (4% loans only). 

• Confirmed mortgage rate with the G.K. Baum Rate Sheet calculations. 
 
Down Payment Assistance and Increased Rates 
The Southern Mortgage Assistance Program (SMAP) is promoted by the JPFA as a grant 
program (that does not have to be re-paid) which provides qualified borrowers with down-
payment assistance to purchase their first home.83  However, an evaluation of the program 
reveals that (1) the down-payment assistance is returned to JPFA by borrowers through an 
increased interest rate and fees associated with financing; and (2) the program generates revenue 
to JPFA through these fees paid throughout the life of the borrower’s loan.  
First, borrowers pay an increased mortgage premium (an average additional rate of 1%) for the 
life of the 30-year loan in exchange for the down-payment assistance. The result is that 

                                                 
82 The program for Calcasieu Parish was terminated due to lack of volume of loan transactions in fiscal year 2016. 
83 The JPFA provides two levels of assistance, a 3% DPA program that is repaid in full when the loan is pooled and 

sold in the MBS marketplace, and a 4% DPA program, where the JPFA receives 3% when the loan is pooled and 
sold, and an additional .25% of the remaining loan balance, amortized over the life of the mortgage loan.  
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borrowers are essentially re-paying what has been represented as a grant. The calculated actual 
repayment amount at compounded premium interest rates, result in the borrowers paying 
approximately four (4) times the original grant amount over the life of the loan.   
 
Table # 13 below depicts the monthly payment distribution based upon the sample SMAP loan 
population averages for 2016.  The JPOIG averaged the sample population data elements that 
drive both the borrower’s principal and interest payments as well as the additional fees that are 
amortized into the loan.  Borrowers who opt for the higher down payment assistance amounts 
(4% of the original loan amount) pay additional JPFA fees over the life the loan.84  
 

Table # 13 Assumptions:  $145,000 Loan Closed on 01/01/2016 

  
No 

Assistance 
3% 

Assistance 
4% 

Assistance 
Interest Rate 3.5% 4.3% 4.5% 
P & I Payment $651.11 $713.31 $734.69 
Amortized Cost of Premium Interest  $0 $22,391 $40,668 
Equity Lost $0 $2,924 $4,159 
Cost of Accepting DPA Grant $0 $25,315 $44,827 

 
 
Notice of Down Payment Assistance Premium  
The JPOIG concluded from loan file testing that borrowers were not properly informed of the 
premium interest rate associated with the down payment assistance grant. Review of the “Exhibit 
D” Notice of Down Payment/Closing Cost Assistance Grant documents revealed varied 
statements of disclosure over the audit period, including 4 borrower forms that did not include 
any disclosure language.85  See Table # 14 below. 

Table # 14 Varied Disclosure "Exhibit D" Forms 

Year No 
Disclosure 

"May" Be Higher 
Disclosure 

"Will" Be Higher 
Disclosure Total 

2015 4 6 0 10 
2016 0 3 12 15 
Total 4 9 12 25 

 
 The JPOIG interviewed a sub-set of borrowers from the sample of 25 selected for testing and 
concluded that even when the disclosure statement was included, the borrowers were not aware 
of the premium interest rate associated with the down payment assistance grant.  Additionally, 

                                                 
84 To address the JPFA Board Chairman’s request for clarification, the JPOIG validated the Amortized Cost of 

Premium Interest in Table # 13.  The Amortized Cost of Premium Interest is amortized over a 30-year period with 
interest compounded monthly.  This results in the borrower re-paying in excess of 4 times the amount of the down 
payment assistance if the 3% assistance was elected, and in excess of 8 times the amount of the down payment 
assistance if the 4% assistance was elected. 

85 Borrowers may receive between 3% or 4% of the property loan amount, which is an average dollar amount of 
$5,000 per borrower.  Sample Exhibit D Forms (Redacted) with no disclosure, “May be higher disclosure”, and 
“Will be higher disclosure.” 
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borrowers were not aware of the difference between the 3% assistance grant and the 4% 
assistance grant, which includes an additional .25% premium on the interest rate. Overall, 
borrowers were not provided adequate information to assess the financial impact of accepting the 
DPA grant.   
 
JPFA Paid Back After Loan is Sold   
The down payment assistance provided by JPFA is fully paid back after the loan is closed, 
pooled and sold in the mortgage backed securities (MBS) marketplace. This typically occurs 
within 30-45 days after closing. In addition, the JPFA receives a one-time fee that averages 1% 
of the loan amount. This circular financing method is used to continue to fund future assistance 
for other qualified borrowers. 
Recipients of the higher down-
payment assistance (4%) pay an 
additional fee over the life of the 
loan. This fee equals, on average, to 
4% of the monthly mortgage 
payment.  Thus, the amortized 
monthly loan payment for recipients 
of down-payment assistance includes 
the loan premium (an average of 1%) 
and the JPFA monthly fee, in 
applicable, in addition to all other 
standard monthly. 
 
Summation - Loans 
The SMAP is advertised as a grant that does not have to be repaid. However, the circular 
financing method used, returns the amount of down-payment assistance to the JPFA within 30-
45 days after the loan closes and leaves the borrowers paying for the assistance through 
increased interest rate and fees over the life of the loan.  Based upon the audit, borrowers are not 
fully educated by JPFA, or its lending partners, that a return of the down-payment assistance will 
be built into loan payments.  
 
On 03/03/2017, the HUD OIG issued report number 2017-LA-0003 entitled “FHA Insured 
Loans with Borrower-Financed Downpayment Assistance” that criticized programs like SMAP 
as being non-compliant with HUD requirements. 86  Also included in this report was an analysis 
of the impact that these increased mortgage rate premiums have on disadvantaged borrowers. 
Table # 15 below depicts a comparison of a borrower loan without down payment assistance, and 
the actual cost over time of receiving the cash down payment assistance from a SMAP-model 
program.87 See finding #7. 
  

                                                 
86 HUD OIG Report 2017-LA-0003 p.3. 
87 HUD OIG Report 2017-LA-0003 p. 17. 
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Table # 15 Interest rate cost comparison to a 3.25% interest rate 
mortgage loan with no downpayment assistance 

 

3.75% 
rate with 

downpayment 
assistance 

4.00% 
rate with 

downpayment 
assistance 

4.25% 
rate with 

downpayment 
assistance 

Additional interest at 6 years $4,223 $6,347 $8,477 
Reduced equity at 6 years 1,314 1,948 2,564 
Cash benefit of borrower not 
providing downpayment 5,250 5,250 5,250 
Total 6-year cost to borrower 288 3,044 5,792 
Total 30-year cost to borrower 9,294 16,745 24,314 

 
Overpaid HOME Fund Service Fees 
On 07/12/2016, the JPFA entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (CEA) with the Parish 
to administer the HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME), a federal Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) program which provides funds to expand the supply of 
safe, decent and affordable housing for low-income.88  The HOME program is supervised by the 
Department of Community Development for the Parish.  Under the CEA, JPFA agreed to market 
services for the HUD HOME program and to transfer funds at loan closings for a 10% 
administration fee paid out of federal grant funds.89  
 
The total amount of the federal grant is $1,820,996 and per the CEA, the JPFA may retain up to 
10 % of that amount or $182,100.90 Funds transferred to the JPFA HOME bank account during 
fiscal year 2016 totaled $846,709.91  Funds transferred in 2017 year-to-date were $135,000 as of 
04/30/2017.92   
 
The JPFA transferred HUD HOME funds at loan closings for qualified borrowers, but the JPFA 
did not market the program.  In November of 2016,  the Director of Community Development 
met with the JPFA’s Executive Director.  Subsequently, the JPFA Executive Director sent an 
email 12/14/2016 stating that the majority of the fees retained by the JPFA will need to be 
returned explaining that the JPFA was not performing the advertising and marketing component 
detailed in the CEA.93 
 

                                                 
88 The CEA was authorized by the Parish Council via Resolution No. 127366, dated 06/22/2016. 
89 JPFA Meeting Minutes 06/13/2016 p. 3-4. The resolution approved by the JPFA Board of Trustees on 

06/13/2016, stated “pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Authority will earn a ten (10%) percent 
administrative fee for administering the Program.” Additionally, through review of the recorded board meeting 
minutes, the JPOIG observed that the Executive Director explained to the board that the JPFA would retain the 
full 10% fee since they voted not to hire the external marketing consultant.  

90 CEA for the HOME Investment Partnership Program p.2. 
91 Whitney Statement of Account JPFA FTHB HOME 07/01/2016-12/31/2016 p.4, 6, & 7. 
92 Whitney Statement of Account JPFA FTHB HOME 01/01/2017-01/31/2017 p.4. 
93 Email from TMccarthy@jeffparish.net 12/14/2016. 
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Still, the JPFA retained fees from the HUD HOME 
program.  Mr. McCarthy provided an excel “Time 
Allocation” worksheet listing expenses of 
$8,743.67 incurred administering the program.94  
The JPOIG observed that this sheet shows the 
employees and executive director retained fees of 
$1,843 based on an estimated time study of work 
performed on the program and not true functional 
time sheets. Additionally, the $5,000 in legal fees 
was retained without any supporting 
documentation only stating “Legal Review of 
Agreement and Resolution Preparation.” Recall the section above on legal services and monthly 
retainer fees for Mr. Konrad.  
 
The JPOIG performed an analysis of the two HOME Funds and Fees bank accounts opened by 
the JPFA and confirmed that a total of $73,068.29 was retained as the JPFA fee (10% of the total 
funds wired) in 2016. Therefore, on 12/15/16 the remaining $64,324.62 was transferred back into 
the HOME Funds Program.95 See Table #16 depicting the total HOME program fees collected 
by the JPFA. See finding # 8. 
 
GOVERNANCE  
Governance, including financial sustainability, is the last functional area audited by the JPOIG. 

Agency Financial Position and Future Sustainability 
The JPFA maintains two operating bank accounts, several accounts for the bond debt issuances, 
and two accounts for management of the federal HOME program funds. The JPOIG reviewed all 
bank statements for the calendar year 2016. Analytical procedures were performed on the JPFA’s 
budget and its audited financial statements for fiscal years 2015 and 2016.   
 
Income 
The JPFA receives operational income from three sources: 

1. The recoupment of the down payment assistance provided to borrowers.96 This occurs 
approximately one month after the borrower’s loan closes escrow. 

2. A JPFA fee, averaging 1%, when the loans are sold to the marketplace by the loan servicer.  
This represents approximately $1,500, on average, for each borrower loan assisted by the 
JPFA. 

3. A .25% fee on the higher down payment assistance loans, which is amortized into the 
borrower’s monthly mortgage payments.  The loan servicer collects this fee and remits it 
monthly to the JPFA each time the borrower makes a monthly loan payment. 

                                                 
94 “FTHB” CD Time Allocation 11/09/2016. 
95 Whitney Statement of Account JPFA FTHB HOME 01/01/2017-01/31/2017 p.7. 
96 Down payment assistance given to borrowers is recouped by JPFA after participant-borrowers’ loans are pooled 

and sold at a premium by the loan servicer to the securities marketplace as mortgage-backed securities. 

Table # 16 JPFA HOME Program Fees 
Total Fees Collected (10%) $73,068.29  
JPFA Retained Fees $8,743.67  
JPFA Employees $548.07  
JPFA Executive Director $1,295.60  
  
Legal Review $5,000  
Bank/Wire Fees $1,900  
Fees Returned to HOME $64,324.61  
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Income from operations identified above totaled $181,000 in fiscal year 2016. Operating 
expenses for fiscal year 2016 were $701,000.97 JPFA’s cost of operations exceeds its income by 
approximately $500,000. 
 
The JPFA also receives (1) 
interest earnings on its 
restricted and unrestricted 
investments, and (2) 
premium gains made from 
the sale of investment 
assets (early debt 
retirements).  For the past 
several years, JPFA has 
funded their operations 
through the sale of bond 
assets resulting in a year-
over-year depletion of total 
assets.  This has resulted in 
a depletion of nearly $100 Million between 2012 and 2016.  The depletion of assets is not fully 
captured in the JPFA’s annual budget because the restricted funds have not been included within 
the annual budget prepared by Executive Director McCarthy. See Chart #3 below.  
 
Budget 
The JPFA Executive Director prepares an annual budget for the operation fund only, which is 
adopted by the Board. This process excludes the restricted funds resulting in an incomplete 
budget.98  For each of the previous three years, the budget resulted in a “planned budget deficit”. 
The JPFA Board-approved budget for 2017 contained planned deficits of ($291,560) for the 
operating fund.99 See Table #17. 

 

                                                 
97 JPFA 2016 Audited Financial Report, Schedule 2, page 28. Operating expenses includes salary, benefits, and per 

diems.  
98 The restricted fund balance category includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated 

by constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. – GASB 54. 
99 JPFA Budget 2017. FA Meeting Minutes 12/12/2016 p. 2-3. 

Table #17 Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

 
2017 2016 2015 

Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget 
Total Revenue  $451,639   $473,951   $388,426   $516,679   $442,904  

Total Admin Expenses  $23,792   $29,033   $29,928   $27,055   $30,422  
Total Operating Expenses 
(excluding accrued leave)  $719,407   $667,698   $750,137   $653,247   $717,430  

Grand Total  
(Revenue-Expenses) 

 
$(291,560) 

 
$(222,780) 

 
$(391,639)  $(163,622) 

 
$(304,948) 

$131,680,000 

$88,063,000 
$70,431,000 

$56,376,000 
$37,408,000 
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The JPFA uses the interest earnings and extraordinary gains on asset sales to pay for operational 
deficits, including staff salaries and benefits, per diems and professional service fees.  In 2016, 
interest earnings and extraordinary gains on asset sales amounted to $2,986,000. 100  This activity 
is not reflected in the JPFA budgets. Thus, the asset sale process results in the residual funds 
being transferred to operational accounts.  See Finding # 9. 
 
Questionable Operating Transfers 
For 2016, JPFA transferred residual amounts of $1.3 Million into its operational funds.  
Table # 18 depicts the operating transfers reported in the audited financials for 2016:101 

Table # 18 Operating Transfers FY 2016 

Description 

Unrestricted Restricted Funds 
1991 

Operating 
Fund 

2006B 
Program 

Fund 

2006C 
Program 

Fund 

2006D 
Program 

Fund 

2007B 
Program 

Fund 

2007C 
Program 

Fund 

2008B 
Program 

Fund 

2009ACF 
Program 

Fund 
HOME 

Program 
Transfers 
In (out) $1,397,000  ($717,000) ($500,000) ($5,000) ($11,000) ($18,000) ($2,000) ($144,000) $0  

 
 The JPOIG observed that the JPFA’s budget should include: 

• All anticipated revenues. 
• All anticipated transfers between and among funds should be reflected. 
• All amendments to the budget should be provided to the JPFA Board.102 
• Notice of the budget should be forwarded to the Parish Council as beneficiary.103 

 
Jefferson Parish is the Beneficiary of the Trust, and is currently not informed when trust assets 
are sold, nor are they informed when the respective bonded debt is retired, nor are they informed 
of the net amount of cash remaining in the bond fund and the intended use of these funds. See 
Finding # 10. 
 
Lack of Self-Governance 
Benchmarking—Two Similar Agencies 
The JPOIG performed a benchmarking study of two similar agencies in the state of Louisiana to 
confirm best practices for finance authorities that operate as public trusts, or are direct agencies 
of the state.104 The analysis revealed the following fiscal reporting elements are present in other 
successful finance authorities: 

                                                 
100 JPFA 2016 Audited Financial Report, Schedule 2, page 28 (Total Revenues $3,167,000 less income from 

program operations 181,000 equals $2,986,000. 
101 JPFA Audited Financial Report 2016. 
102 La.R.S. 39:1310 requires that when “there has been a change in operations upon which the original adopted 

budget was developed, the governing authority shall adopt a budget amendment in an open meeting to reflect 
such change…”  See La.R.S. 39:1302, Definitions, “Governing authority” means the body which exercises the 
legislative functions of the political subdivision.  La.r.s. 39:1302(3)(g)-(h) defines “Political subdivision” to 
include a Housing authority and a Mortgage authority, respectively. 

103 Trust Indenture p. 6 The JPFA Trust Indenture Article IV, Section 6 states, “The purposes of this trust are…to 
expend all funds coming into the hands of the Trustees as revenue or otherwise for the payment of any 
indebtedness incurred by the Trustees on behalf of the Trust, and in the payment of the aforesaid costs and 
expenses, and in payment of any other obligation properly chargeable against the Trust’s assets or attributable to 
its operations, and to distribute the residue and remainder of such funds to the Beneficiary of the Trust hereby 
created.” 

104 Louisiana Housing Corporation and Capital Area Finance Authority. http://lhc.la.gov/, http://www.thecafa.org/. 

http://lhc.la.gov/
http://www.thecafa.org/
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●   Development of a strategic plan is considered essential to ensure fiscal growth and 
sustainability.  

●   Policies and procedures for governance, operations, and fiscal accountability.  
●   Develop a process for the onboarding of new employees and board members.  
●   Prepare interim financial statements which are presented to the Board,. 
●   Report on the agency’s investments, investment strategy, and interest earnings are provided 

regularly.   
●   Report on the agency’s bonded debt balances, payments, and interest paid are provided 

regularly.  
●   Monthly meetings of the Board and limit Board per diems.  

 
Lack of Adequate Policies and Procedures   
The JPOIG requested all policies and procedures governing the JPFA in an effort to assess 
whether they are: 

1. Updated 
2. Adequate to prevent and deter fraud, waste and abuse, 
3. Consistent with the current operational processes, and  
4. Formally adopted and reflect author, date of issuance/revision, and governing law or 

authority. 
 
The first request for all policies and procedures was made in August 2016, during the audit 
planning process. The JPFA then provided 15 pages of process narratives and desk 
procedures.105 The process narratives were undated, but authored by the Authority’s external 
auditors.  The desk procedures were dated 12/31/2009, but did not reflect authorship. However, 
neither the process narratives or the desk procedures were formally adopted by the Board.  

 
However, during the course of the audit JPFA staff made references to additional policies and 
procedures beyond those provided. Thus, additional requests were made to again secure all 
copies of current policies adopted by the Board. The process culminated with a final and formal 
request for records dated 04/28/2017.106 This final request was complied with on 05/10/2017. It 
was determined that the JPFA had adopted, through Board resolution(s), the following written 
fiscal policies: 

1. Checking Account Maximum Balance/Transfer of Funds Policy, Adopted 04/22/2013 
2. Cash Investment Policy, Amended 10/20/2014 
3. Transcription of Board Minutes Policy, Adopted 05/16/2016 
4. Reimbursement Per Diems/Expenses Policy, Adopted 07/13/2009 
5. Per Diems Policy, Amended 06/02/2008 
6. Travel Policy, Adopted 06/30/2014 
7. Credit Card Policy, Adopted 06/30/2014107 

 
                                                 
105 JPFA Process Narratives and Desk Procedures. 
106 Request for Records 04/28/2017. 
107 JPFA Board Adopted Policies. 
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The JPOIG reviewed the policies and procedures that were provided by the JPFA and concluded 
that they were not sufficient to support an effective internal control system for an agency of 
JPFA’s size and complexity. Policies that are normally necessary for an organization with over 
$37 million in assets are; a procurement policy, a budget policy, interim financial information 
policy, board orientation policy, funds transfer policy, payroll and timekeeping policy, restricted 
funds policy, and a debt management policy.   

Inadequate Board Information 
The 2016 minutes reflect that there is continuous and escalating discord among the JPFA Board 
with two factions existing between five (5) veteran members and the three (3) newest members.  
The JPOIG observed that one element of the discord was related to the lack of onboarding and 
orientation for new Board members. The JPFA does not have any procedures in place to advise 
new Board members on operations, financials, and programs.   
The JPOIG reviewed all board minutes for 2016, and observed references to multiple heated 
discussions among the Executive Director and the Board. The subject of the conflict was often  
persistent questioning from new board members on the JPFA’s bond retirements, professional 
fees, improper stewardship of resources, fiscal status, and the frequency of meetings.  Unlike 
other public trust finance authorities, the JPFA Board members are not provided with regular 
interim financial or operating reports. At the inception of the JPOIG audit, no evidence was 
found that financial statements or written interim reports were provided to the JPFA Board. 
However, the Executive Director’s employment agreement states, “Reviews for accuracy of all 
financial statements and presents to the Board of Trustees on a quarterly basis a financial report 
on the restricted and unrestricted accounts.”108 The 2016 external auditor recommended in the 
JPFA’s exit conference that the JPFA implement regular financial reporting to the Board.. 
Regular financial and operating reporting is standard information that the Board should receive 
in order to make informed decisions.   

Appointment Term  
Recall from the Background section above that JPFA’s Trust Indenture established 3-year terms 
for board members. Nevertheless, a review of all board appointments showed that members are 
continuing to serve beyond their established 3-year appointment. While all appointments are 
made by the Parish Council or Parish President, JPFA executive management can and should 
officially request action by the appropriate authority in a timely manner.  See Table # 19 below. 

Table #19 JPFA Board Members 

Trustee Name 
Original 

Appointment 

 Appointment/ 
Reappointment 

Date 
Years of 
Service 

Term 
Expiration 

Council 
Representative 

Mr. Jackie Berthelot N/A 1/25/2012 5 1/25/2015 District 1 
Mr. Mitchell Boyter N/A 4/30/2014 3 4/30/2017 At-Large – Div. B 
Mr. Dennis DiMarco 1/25/2012 10/5/2016 5 10/5/2019 Parish President 
Mr. Frank Muscarello 3/22/2006 5/2/2011 11 5/2/2014 At-Large – Div. A 
Mr. Greg Faia 11/3/2010 10/5/2016 6.5 10/5/2019 District 4 
Mr. Sam Schudmak N/A 9/17/2014 2.5 9/17/2017 District 2 
Mr. Dalton Simmons N/A 9/23/2015 1.5 9/23/2018 District 3 
Ms. Marcy Planer N/A 2/17/2016 1 2/17/2019 District 5 

See Finding # 12. 
                                                 
108 Amended Employment Agreement Between The JPFA and Terry McCarthy. 
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FINDINGS AND OBSERVATIONS 
An observation is the result of looking at a process or procedure being performed by others. 
Observations are a form of audit evidence about the performance of a process or procedure, but 
the evidence is limited to the point in time at which the observation takes place. 
A finding indicates a material or significant weakness in controls or compliance that was not 
detected or corrected by an entity in the normal course of performing its duties. Findings can be 
any one or the combination of the following: (1) significant deficiencies in internal controls; (2) 
fraud and illegal acts; (3) violations of contracts and grant agreements; (4) waste; or (5) abuse. 
For certain internal control elements, the JPOIG has utilized the GAO’s “Standards for Internal 
Control in the Federal Government” as a guide to…“improving accountability”…and promoting 
and implementing…“an effective internal control system.” 

Finding #1: JPFA Employees Misclassified as Parish Employees 

Condition:   
Jefferson Parish has carried employees of the JPFA, a non-Parish entity, as Parish employees. 
The JPFA is a separate non-Parish entity governed by a Trust Indenture.  These employees have 
been provided all of the benefits and privileges of being a Parish employee while the JPFA 
controlled the terms and conditions of employment, including, but not limited to salary.  

Criteria:   
The Trust Indenture authorizes the JPFA to appoint a “general manager” or an “administrator” to 
properly operate the business of the JPFA. The trust indenture establishes the legal authority of 
the JPFA, it does not and cannot establish any relationship with Jefferson Parish beyond that of 
the Parish being the beneficiary.  

Cause:  
JPFA employees have been included in the Parish Classified Service since 1988 when Personnel 
directed the inclusion. The inclusion of JPFA employees in the Classified Service is incongruent 
and irreconcilable with the provisions of the Trust Indenture.  The Parish has taken various 
inappropriate and unsupported actions over the years regarding JPFA employees that has created 
and facilitated the misperception that JPFA employees are Parish employees for the purposes of 
classification, benefits and pension. These actions include: 

• The Personnel Board classifying certain employees of the JPFA as civil servants,  
• Tim Whitmer, the former Chief Operating Officer for the former Parish President, created 

a position within the Parish for an outside entity, and  
• The Parish Council creating or assisting the JPFA in creating positions.  

Exposure:   
The Parish carried employees of an outside entity, JPFA, as Parish employees, and the Parish 
reported and represented to third parties, i.e. PERSLA, the IRS, Louisiana Department of 
Revenue, that these individuals were Parish employees even though the Parish had no 
supervisory control over these individuals.  Further, representing JPFA employees as employees 
of the Parish exposes the Parish to liability and the risk of non-compliance with relevant 
regulators, i.e. U.S. Department of Labor, because the Parish had no supervisory control over 
them.   
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Recommendation: 
The JPOIG recommends that the Parish take the following actions based upon the above: 

1. The Parish should recognize the JPFA as a separate entity and sever the inappropriate and 
unsupported relationship with all JPFA employees, 

2. The Parish should ensure that all persons recorded as Parish employees are in fact 
employees of Jefferson Parish government entities established by Charter or Ordinance, 
and 

3. The Parish should seek to clarify and redress any past reporting that has been made to 
third parties concerning JPFA employees. 

The JPOIG recommends that the JPFA Board, based upon its authority as set out in the Trust 
Indenture, should implement the following: 

1. Human Resource policies and procedures for all employees, including the Executive 
Director, and 

2. A salary and benefits plan to include salaries and benefits supported by policy and 
procedure.  
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Finding #2: Executive Director Misclassification as a Parish Employee 

Condition:   
Tim Whitmer, the former Chief Operating Officer for the former Parish President Aaron 
Broussard, directed the Parish Finance Department to create a new position of Executive 
Director of the JPFA within the Parish payroll system, and effect the transfer of accumulated sick 
leave and benefits to his “new department.” 1   

As a result of this legally unsupported action, the newly appointed Executive Director of the 
JPFA, Mr. McCarthy, retained all of the benefits and privileges of being a Parish employee while 
the JPFA controlled the terms and conditions of employment, including, but not limited to salary.  

Criteria:   
The Trust Indenture authorizes the JPFA to appoint a “general manager” or an “administrator” to 
properly operate the business of the JPFA. The Trust Indenture establishes the legal authority of 
the JPFA and does not mention, infer or otherwise impact any relationship with Jefferson Parish 
beyond that of the Parish being the beneficiary. During the audit fieldwork, the Parish Attorney’s 
Office issued a letter as to Mr. McCarthy’s employment status. The Parish Attorney’s Office 
determined that “Terry McCarthy ceased employment with the Parish of Jefferson as of 
05/16/2009. 

Cause:  
Tim Whitmer, the former Chief Operating Officer for the former Parish President, created a 
position within the Parish for an outside entity.  

Exposure:   
The Parish carried Terry McCarthy, an employee of the JPFA, as a Parish employee, reporting 
and representing him as a Parish employee to third parties, i.e. PERSLA, the IRS, Louisiana 
Department of Revenue. Further, representing Mr. McCarthy as an employee of the Parish 
exposes the Parish to liability and the risk of non-compliance with relevant regulators, i.e. the 
U.S. Department of Labor, because the Parish had no supervisory control over him.   

Recommendation: 
The JPOIG recommends that the Parish implement the recommendations identified within 
Finding #1. 

The JPOIG recommends that the JPFA Board, based upon its authority as set out in the Trust 
Indenture, implement the following regarding Mr. McCarthy: 

1. Review the role and responsibilities of the Executive Director and amend the salary and 
benefits package so that it is supported by current policy, the requirements in the 
Executive Director’s contract, and the JPFA operating budget. 

2. Relate the Executive Director’s salary to performance metrics based upon meeting 
JPFA’s mission.  

 
  

                                                           
1 E-Mail from Tim Whitmer to Gwen Bolotte, Director of Finance, dated 05/14/2009. 
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Finding # 3:  Retention of the Assistant Director as a Parish Employee 

Condition:  
Mr. McCarthy, as the JPFA Executive Director, created a job description for the Assistant 
Director which does not list any educational or professional certification requirements, 
commensurate with fiscal and management responsibilities.  The position did include these 
qualifications:  

1. Current employment and permanent civil service status with Jefferson Parish, and 
2. At least seven (7) years of work experience in the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

with responsibility for technical market rate programs and/or bond issues. 
The Parish, at the request of Mr. McCarthy, created the position of the JPFA Assistant Director 
within the Parish Classified Service Pay Plan.2   
 
Criteria:   
The Trust Indenture implicitly creates an affirmative obligation upon the JPFA to retain qualified 
personnel to properly operate the business of the JPFA. The trust indenture establishes the legal 
authority of the JPFA and does not mention, infer or otherwise impact any relationship with 
Jefferson Parish beyond that of the Parish being the beneficiary.  
 
Cause:   
The JPFA does not have a pay plan or a process of creating positions for JPFA employees that is 
separate and distinct from the Parish’s personnel process.  

Mr. McCarthy, the JPFA Executive Director, created a position description which limited the 
applicant pool and which failed to support the retention of an individual with requisite 
professional experience and qualifications. 

The position of Assistant Director is erroneously included in the Jefferson Pay Plan for 
Classified Service. 

Exposure:   
The JPFA retained an individual who was not qualified to perform the essential functions of 
accounting, operations, management, reporting, and compliance as evidenced by the below 
observations:  

• Accounting errors were identified in the books and records maintained by the Assistant 
Director.3 

• A lack of knowledge and skills in basic accounting practices were observed. 
• Resistance to basic audit documentation requests, delays and obstructions to the free 

exchange of information requested. 
The Parish carries the position of Assistant Director within Parish Classified Service when the 
Parish has no supervisory control over the individual retained.  

                                                           
2  Parish Council Ordinance No. 25093, 02/17/2016, eliminating the position of Assistant to the Jefferson Parish 

Finance Authority, Pay Grade 22 and creating the position of Assistant Director-Jefferson Parish Finance 
Authority, Pay Grade 30 with same duties.  Parish Council Ordinance No. 24393, 12/12/2012, the Parish Council 
created the position of Assistant to the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority, Pay Grade 22, under a proposal 
“forwarded to this Council as necessary and in the best interest of Parish Service…”  

3  In fiscal year 2016, the external audit firm made a total of 7 reclassifying journal entries and 2 adjusting journal 
entries, totaling $1,829,342. This amount, while not considered material to the external audit firm, represents 5% 
of the authority’s net assets as of 12/31/2016 and 58% of the authority’s revenues for fiscal year 2016.  
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Recommendation: 
The JPOIG recommends that the Parish implement the recommendations identified within 
Finding #1. 
 
The JPOIG recommends that the JPFA Board, based upon its authority as set out in the Trust 
Indenture, implement the following: 

1. Evaluate all position descriptions, including the Assistant Director, 
2. Revise the current job descriptions to reflect the knowledge, skills and abilities to 

properly operate the business of the JPFA, and 
3. Establish policies and procedures for selection and retention of individuals in a manner 

which does not unnecessarily reduce the applicant pool. 
 

Finding # 4:  Parish Retirement Benefits 

Condition:   
Because JPFA employees are improperly carried as Parish employees, JPFA employees may 
participate and receive retirement benefits from the Parochial Employees Retirement System 
(PERSLA).4 

Criteria:   
Parish employees are eligible to participate in PERSLA through the Jefferson Parish 
government.  All permanent Parish employees who work at least 28 hours a week become 
members of the PERSLA on the date of employment.5 An employee must have seven years of 
service in order to become vested to receive retirement benefits.  
 
Cause:   
The Parish is reporting JPFA employees to the PERSLA as if they are Parish employees.6  As a 
result, the PERSLA shows years of service credit for retirement benefits for all JPFA staff and 
management. 
 
Exposure:   
The JPFA has paid employer contributions using public funds of $96,200 for fiscal years 2015 
and 2016 on behalf of JPFA employees without the JPFA being determined an eligible agency 
by the PERSLA.   The JPOIG estimates that the total employer contributions paid since 1988 is 
in excess of $1.3 million. 

Recommendation:   
The JPOIG recommends that the Parish implement the recommendations identified within 
Finding #1. 

The JPOIG recommends that the JPFA Board, based upon its authority as set out in the Trust 
Indenture, written request that PERSLA make a determination as to whether JPFA may 
participate in PERSLA. 

                                                           
4  There are provisions under state law for eligible entities to petition for participation in PERSLA.  JPFA has not 

petitioned PERSLA for participation. 
5  PERSLA Summary, Section 2 Members.  http://www.persla.org/new_pdf/Summary16.pdf  
6  JP Monthly Report of Earnings and Contributions as of 5/31/2009 and 5/31/2017. 
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Finding # 5:  Excessive Trustee Per Diem Payments 

Condition:   
The JPFA Board authorizes its members to be paid $150.00 each for weekly Board meetings 
which average 32 minutes.  Board members receive additional per diems for attending committee 
meetings, conferences and luncheons.  There are eight (8) Board members.  
 
Criteria:   
Under the Trust Indenture, Board members shall serve without compensation, but may receive a 
“reasonable” per diem.7 The JPFA Board has authorized per diems of $150.00 per each meeting 
attended by said member for no more than fifty-two (52) meetings per calendar year. 

Cause:   
During the audit period, the Board has authorized the payment of per diems for weekly meetings 
when comparable entities meet monthly.  The Board also authorized the payment of per diems 
when members attend meetings of the advertising and marketing committee, administrative 
committee, approved conferences, and realtor luncheons. 
 
Exposure: 
Board members are compensated an average of $7,550/year through per diems which represent 
9% of the JPFA’s annual budget.  This equates to more than $120,000 during the two-year audit 
period and is nearly double the per diems paid by other comparable entities. 
 
Recommendation: 
The JPOIG recommends that the JPFA Board, based upon its authority as set out in the Trust 
Indenture: 

1. Reduce the meetings to monthly, absent exigent circumstances, and  
2. Evaluate and amend the current policy authorizing payment of extra per diems. 

 

  

                                                           
7  JPFA Trust Indenture, Article VII, Section 11. 
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Finding # 6:  Travel Expenses 

Condition:   
JPFA expended $9,900 and $8,600 for calendar years 2015 and 2016, respectively, for travel 
related expenses.8 The JPOIG identified $911 in questionable travel expenses for FY 2016 
below:  

• $72 in baggage fees charged to the JPFA AMEX card that were for personal travel of the 
Executive Director and his wife; 

• $40 in AMEX charges for travel expenses that did not have supporting receipts; 
• $325 in Board member travel cancellation fees;  
• $75 in early airline check-in fees; and  
• $399 for in-state car rental expenses for the Executive Director.9 

 
Criteria:   
The JPFA has a Travel Policy that provides guidelines for the Board to receive reimbursement 
for the cost of attending conferences and seminars. There is no adopted policy regarding the 
travel of the Executive Director and staff.  
 
Cause: 
The JPFA Board has approved, via resolution, travel expenditures for Board members without 
adequate policy and internal control procedures. The Executive Director received travel 
reimbursement without any policy or procedure. 

Exposure: 
The JPFA is reimbursing for travel expenses under inadequate or non-existent policies and 
internal control procedures. The JPFA’s audited financials show that $9,900 and $8,600 was 
expended on travel in calendar years 2015 and 2016.  The audit indicates that $911 is 
questionable. 

Recommendation: 
The JPOIG recommends that the JPFA Board, based upon its authority as set out in the Trust 
Indenture: 

1. Establish and maintain policies and procedures to provide increased control over travel 
expenditures and reimbursements. These should include the following: 
a. Specifications of personal travel such as extended stays, preferred routes and airlines, 

preferred seating, upgrades, and so on. 
b. Specifications on travel advances and the process to follow when airfare and 

accommodations are booked and paid for in advance.  
c. Monitoring of the JPFA AMEX card expenditures including invoice requirements and 

approval procedures.   
2. Evaluate the Executive Director’s receipt of car/cell phone allowance to include: 

a. The amount of the allowance, 
b. A specific allocation of the car allowance from cell phone allowance to ensure 

accurate calculation of mileage reimbursement, and  
c. Require justification for additional vehicle reimbursement and expenditures. 

                                                           
8  JPFA Audited Financial Report 2016 Schedule 4, p. 30 
9  Reimbursement for the rental car was in addition to the monthly car/cell phone allowance paid to Mr. McCarthy 

under his compensation package. Mr. McCarthy received an annual car allowance of $11,086. 
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Finding #7:  Professional Service Fees 

Condition:   
The JPFA expended approximately $555,000 for professional services in fiscal years 2015 and 
2016.  The JPFA: 

• Did not engage in efforts to utilize bidding to control costs;  
• Failed to execute contracts with all retained professionals; and  
• Failed to require detailed invoicing.  

Criteria:   
Under the Trust Indenture, the JPFA possesses the authority to “[a]ppoint attorneys, paying 
agencies and corporate trustees in connection with the issuance of” bonds as well as to “[e]mploy 
a financial advisor, or advisors, to advise and assist the” Board in the marketing of bonds.10 
 
In the absence of JPFA policy, the JPOIG turns to state guidelines which mandate that “specific 
task and item billing must occur under every contract for attorneys even where an attorney is  
retained by an agency to provide general legal services and advice.”11   
 
Cause:   
The JPFA Board has not implemented adequate policy and internal control procedures for 
procurement, contracting and invoicing for professional services.  
 
Exposure: 
The JPFA expended $555,000 on professional services without proper procurement practices. 
The JPFA is not properly safeguarding public resources and funds.  The JPFA’s retention of 
Special Counsel, Becknell, who is related to General Council, Konrad, necessitated that the 
JPFA waive a conflict of interest.  
 
Recommendation: 
The JPOIG recommends that the JPFA Board, based upon its authority as set out in the Trust 
Indenture: 

1. Adopt adequate procurement policies and procedures for professional services such as 
competitive advertisements which includes the scope of work to be performed, the 
minimum qualifications necessary, and the selection criteria that will be used by the 
JPFA. 

2. Adopt adequate policies and procedures for contracting professional services. Contracts 
should be sufficiently detailed to describe the services to be performed (scope of work) 
the final deliverables to be provided, the compensation amounts, and specific 
requirements for invoicing and timekeeping to support the level of effort expended by the 
vendor and the final deliverable required. 

  

                                                           
10 Guidance from La.R.S.39:1621 indicates “Contracts for consulting services which have a total maximum amount 

of compensation of fifty thousand dollars or more for a twelve-month period shall be awarded through a request 
for proposal process under rules and regulations issued by the office of state procurement. Service requirements 
shall not be artificially divided so as to exempt contracts from the request for proposal process.”   

11 La. Administrative Code 47.V.4703(B)(19), Attorney Case Handling Guidelines and Billing Procedures 
applicable to Louisiana State Government use of outside counsel.  
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Finding #8: Premium Pricing to Borrowers-SMAP 

Condition:   
The JPFA advertises the Southern Mortgage Assistance Program (SMAP) as a grant program 
(that does not have to be re-paid) which provides qualified borrowers with down-payment 
assistance to purchase a home.12  The program operates to produce the following results: 

• All grants are reimbursed to the JPFA when the loan is sold to the marketplace. 
• All borrowers pay a premium interest rate over the life of the loan. 
• Borrowers selecting the 4% down-payment assistance grant also pay additional fees over 

the life of the loan which benefits the JPFA. 

Criteria: 
The program is advertised as a grant when, in fact, it operates as a loan with premium interest 
rates compounded over the life of the loan. 

Cause: 
JPFA advertises the program as a grant. Testing and borrower interviews showed that borrowers 
believed that the program was a grant and were unaware of the premium interest financing 
implications.  

Exposure: 
The JPFA provided down payment assistance “grants” for 350 loans in calendar years 2015 and 
2016 at an average amount of $5,000, for an approximate total of $1,750,000.  The JPFA did not 
adequately disclose the premium interest rates that were charged to borrowers. The calculated 
actual repayment amount at compounded premium interest rates, result in the borrowers paying 
approximately 4 times the original grant amount over the life of the loan.   

Recommendation: 
The JPOIG recommends that the JPFA Board develop a process, including: 

1. borrower training courses, as utilized in other similar entities,  
2. “Exhibit D” disclosure language which clearly expresses the higher interest rate 

associated with the assistance to the borrower. 
3. require participating lenders to explain the premium interest rate and the impact this has 

over the life of the loan before the borrower signs the disclosure. 
  

                                                           
12 The JPFA provides two levels of assistance, a 3% DPA program that is repaid in full when the loan is pooled and 

sold in the MBS marketplace, and a 4% DPA program, where the JPFA receives 3% when the loan is pooled and 
sold, and an additional .25% of the remaining loan balance, amortized over the life of the mortgage loan.  
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Finding #9: Overpaid HOME Fund Service Fees  

Condition:  
The JPFA retained a total of $6,843 in questioned Federal HOME funds, as follows:  

• $1,843 in staff time was not supported. 
• $5,000 was paid to the General Counsel who was engaged via a separate monthly 

retainer. 

Criteria: 
The JPFA entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement (CEA) with the Parish to administer 
the HOME Investment Partnership Program (HOME), a federal Department of Housing and 
Urban Development (HUD) program which provides funds to expand the supply of safe, decent 
and affordable housing for low-income.13 Under the CEA, the JPFA agreed to market services 
for the HUD HOME program and to transfer funds at loan closings for a 10% administration fee 
paid out of federal grant funds.14    

Cause: 
The JPFA engaged in a CEA for federal grant funds without compliance protocols or policies. 
An element of these protocols or policies would have included functional time sheets to support 
administrative fees. As a result, the JPFA also charged $5,000 in legal fees to the grant program 
for an attorney previously retained. 
 
Exposure: 
The initial funds available to the JPFA represents 10% of the overall award ($1,820,996) or 
$182,100. Of the $8,743 retained by the JPFA, $6,843 (78%) is identified as unsupported for the 
purposes of the HOME funds grant. 
 
Recommendation: 
The JPOIG recommends that the Parish: 

1. Recover all funds that were expended and not adequately supported by the JPFA. 
2. Implement policies to ensure all CEAs involving the distribution of federal grant funds 

include specific provisions to document the expenditure of funds in accordance with the 
terms of the grant. 

The JPOIG recommends that the JPFA Board, based upon its authority as set out in the Trust 
Indenture: 

1. Return all funds to the Parish that are not supported with adequate documentation.  
2. Implement policies and procedures to assure an effective compliance plan to govern the 

management and expenditure of grant funds in accordance with applicable grant terms. 
  

                                                           
13 The CEA was authorized by the Parish Council via Resolution No. 127366, dated 06/22/2016. 
14 JPFA Meeting Minutes 06/13/2016 p. 3-4. The resolution approved by the JPFA Board of Trustees on 

06/13/2016, stated “pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Authority will earn a ten (10%) percent 
administrative fee for administering the Program.” Additionally, through review of the recorded board meeting 
minutes, the JPOIG observed that the Executive Director explained to the board that the JPFA would retain the 
full 10% fee since they voted not to hire the external marketing consultant.  
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Finding # 10: Agency Financial Position and Future Sustainability 

Condition:  
The JPFA’s Board approved budget for 2017 only covers the operations fund and contained a 
planned deficit of ($291,560).  This has been the case for the three most recent years. 

JPFA’s actual revenue exceeded that budgeted, however, deficits still remained of ($163,622) 
and ($222,780) for calendar years 2015 and 2016.  

Criteria: 
Under state law, a governing authority “shall cause to be prepared a comprehensive budget 
presenting a complete financial plan for each fiscal year.”15  Budgets should account for all 
anticipated funds including interest earnings and anticipated extraordinary gains, not just 
operational revenue. Further, deficit budgeting, especially in the quasi-governmental arena, 
should be accompanied by a fiscal projection and operational plan to address the cost of 
operations relative to future revenue.   

Cause: 
The JPFA has utilized the interest earnings, and extraordinary gains on asset sales, which 
amounted to $2,986,000 in fiscal year 2016, to supplement the authority’s planned deficits. 
However, the budgets do not reflect this use of funds as they should.16  

Exposure: 
To fund operations, the JPFA Board of Trustees and Executive Management have consistently 
sold the agency’s available bond assets while increasing operational spending.  The JPFA has 
eroded its net financial position from $131,680,000 in FY 2012 to $37,408,000 in FY 2016, a 
decline of $94,272,000, a 72% decrease in assets. Continued asset reduction may impact JPFA 
program sustainability. 

Recommendation: 
The JPOIG recommends that the JPFA Board, based upon its authority as set out in the Trust 
Indenture: 

1. Develop and adopt a comprehensive annual budget for the JPFA to include all funds 
under its purview. 

2. Develop and adopt a long-term strategic plan for the JPFA’s management which includes 
fiscal stability and operational programs. 

3. Implement a monitoring plan to track budget to actual expenditures, and inform the JPFA 
                                                           
15  La.R.S. 39:1305(A), Budget preparation. See La.R.S. 39:1302, Definitons, “Governing authority” means the 

body which exercises the legislative functions of the political subdivision.  La.R.S. 39:1302(3)(g)-(h) defines 
“Political subdivision” to include a Housing authority and a Mortgage authority, respectively.  

16  JPFA 2016 Audited Financial Report, Schedule 2, page 28 (Total Revenues $3,167,000 less income from 
program operations 181,000 equals $2,986,000. 

Table # 17 Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

 
2017 2016 2015 

Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget 
Total Revenue  $451,639   $473,951   $388,426   $516,679   $442,904  

Total Admin Expenses  $23,792   $29,033   $29,928   $27,055   $30,422  
Total Operating Expenses 
(excluding accrued leave)  $719,407   $667,698   $750,137   $653,247   $717,430  

Grand Total  
(Revenue-Expenses) 

 
$(291,560) 

 
$(222,780) 

 
$(391,639)  $(163,622) 

 
$(304,948) 
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Board on a monthly basis. 
4. Utilize performance metrics for citizens served, loans closed, time to process, loan 

delinquency rates, etc. 
5. Implement written monthly status reports on the investment pool by fund, and projected 

interest rate spreads for each bond debt instrument and its related investment asset 
designated as collateral for that debt. 

Finding #11: Questionable Operating Transfers 

Condition:  
The JPFA transferred $1.397 million, residual funds related to a bond sale, during fiscal year 
2016 to augment operating revenues of the JPFA. These funds were moved from a restricted 
fund to an unrestricted operating fund without any approval from the JPFA Board.   
 
Criteria: 
According to generally accepted governmental accounting practices, transfers from restricted 
funds to unrestricted funds should be subject to adequate internal controls, to include the proper 
budgetary approvals.  Importantly, the JPFA Trust Indenture Article IV, Section 6, provides that 
a purpose of the trust is to “distribute the residue and remainder of such funds to the Beneficiary 
of the Trust hereby created.”  Jefferson Parish is the Beneficiary of the Trust. 
 
Under state law, La.R.S. 39:1310, Amending the adopted budget, states that when “there has 
been a change in operations upon which the original adopted budget was developed, the 
governing authority shall adopt a budget amendment in an open meeting to reflect such 
change.”17   
 
Cause: 
The JPFA does not have a specific policy on operating transfers between funds nor is there any 
evidence of approvals for these transfers. Further, planned operating transfers are not included in 
the annual budget. 
 
Exposure: 
Transfers that result from the sale of previously restricted asset may conflict with provisions of 
the Trust Indenture. The JPFA does not provide notice to the Trust beneficiary, which is 
Jefferson Parish, of the sale of Trust assets. Transfers of funds that occur to augment operational 
revenues circumvent the required budgetary controls over operational expenditures. Finally, 
these transfers may potentially distort the true financial position of the agency. 
 
Recommendation: 
The JPOIG recommends that the JPFA Board, based upon its authority as set out in the Trust 
Indenture: 

1. Establish a policy and procedure for providing notice to Jefferson Parish, the Trust 
beneficiary, of any anticipated sale of Trust assets. 

2. Establish a policy and procedure to guide the budget process, to include anticipated 
operating transfers. 

3. Ensure that all transfers between funds are made upon resolution of the Board. 
                                                           
17La.R.S. 39:1310(A), Budgetary authority and control. See La.R.S. 39:1302, Definitons, “Governing authority” 
means the body which exercises the legislative functions of the political subdivision.  La.R.S. 39:1302(3)(g)-(h) 
defines “Political subdivision” to include a Housing authority and a Mortgage authority, respectively. 
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Finding #12: Lack of Self-Governance  

Condition:  
JPFA selectively behaves as a department of the Parish.  The JPFA fails to fully perform as an 
independent entity with specific fiduciary responsibilities and associated authorities under the 
Trust Indenture.  
 
Criteria:   
The JPFA has an obligation under the terms of the Trust Indenture to do all things required in 
order to carry out the purposes of the Trust, to include the formation of policies, procedures, 
protocols budgets.  In addition, the JPFA has neglected to fulfill its obligation under its own By-
laws to establish necessary policies and procedures.18  
 
Cause: 
The JPFA has not engaged in self-governance which is supported by adequate policies and 
procedures of an entity of its size and complexity of operations. 
 
Exposure: 
Trust assets are at risk due to the JPFA’s failure to establish a strategic direction, develop 
adequate policies and procedures, and engage in responsible self-governance.  
 
Recommendation: 
The JPOIG recommends that the JPFA Board, based upon its authority as set out in the Trust 
Indenture, sever its inappropriate dependency upon Jefferson Parish government and engage in 
its own governance structure. See Recommendations 1-11. 

                                                           
18 JPFA By-Laws Section Article VII, Miscellaneous, Section 2, Rules and Regulations.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Board of Trustees 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority: 

Report on Financial Statements 

We have audited the aceompanying financial statements of Jefferson Parish Finance Authority (the 
Authority), a component unit of the Parish of Jefferson, as of and for the years ended December 31, 2013 
and 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. ; 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the eircumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no sueh opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffieient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

1 
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Opinion 

la our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the Authority as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As described in Note 5 to the financial statements, the Authority implemented GASB Statement No. 65, 
Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, in 2013. This standard provides guidance for 
reporting the financial statement elements of deferred outflows and inflows of resources and also 
identifies certain items previously reported as assets and liabilities that the GASB determined should be 
recognized as revenues or expenses when incurred and not reported in the statements of net position. 
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 10 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary hiformation in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The supplementary information included 
in Schedules 1 through 4 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. The supplementary information included in Schedules 1 through 4 are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the rmderlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, such information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

m 
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other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated April 23, 2014 on 
our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
April 23,2014 

P&N 081



JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

This section of the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority's (the Authority) financial report presents a 
discussion and analysis of the Authority's financial performance during the fiscal year that ended 
December 31, 2013. Please read it in conjunction with the Authority's financial statements, which 
follow this section. 

FINANCIAL fflGHLIGHTS 

The Authority is a component unit of the Parish of Jefferson, Louisiana. 

2013 

The Authority's net position represents 11% of its total assets. With total assets approximating $88 
million, the Authority had changes in net position of approximately ($4.0) million for the year ended 
December 31, 2013. 

The Authority's financial highlights include: 

• During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Authority created a new program the Jefferson 
Mortgage Assistance Program (JMAP). This program is not a bond program as the Authority has 
utilized in the past. The JMAP program is accounted for in the 1991 program. The program was 
created in September 2013 and reported limited activity for 2013. 

• The Authority's net position decreased by $4.0 million due primarily to- the decrease in 
investment income on mortgage backed securities of $4.3 million in fiscal year 2013. The 
decrease in investment income is a result of the decrease in the balance of mortgage backed 
seeurities of approximately $17.0 million in 2013. 

• During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Authority adopted the GASB Statement No. 65. 
The implementation of GASB Statement No. 65 is reported as a restatement of amounts 
previously reported. See Note 5 to the financial statements. 

2012 

The Authority's net position represents 10% of its total assets. With total assets approximating $132 
million, the Authority had changes in net position of approximately ($3.2) million for the year ended 
December 31,2012. 

The Authority's fiuancial highlights include: 

• During the year ended December 31, 2012, the 2003A, 2003C, and 2004A mortgage backed 
seeurities were sold at a premium. The proceeds from the sales of the mortgage backed securities 
were used to purchase United States Treasmy bills which will mature on the date each bond is 
callable. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012 

• The Authority's net position decreased by $3.2 million due primarily to depreciation in the 
market value of its investments in mortgage backed securities of $3.7 million. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This financial report consists of four parts: management's discussion and analysis (this section), the 
basic financial statements, the notes to the financial statements, and supplementary information. 

The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Authority's overall 
fmancial status. The fmancial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the 
financial statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of other 
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the fmancial statements. 

The Authority's financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted hi the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. 
Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses 
are recognized in the period in which they are incurred, and depreciation of assets is recognized m the 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. All assets and liabilities associated with 
the operation of the Authority are included hi the Statements of Net Position. 

The Statement of Net Position reports the Authority's net position. Net position, the difference between 
the Authority's assets and liabilities, are one way to measure the Authority's financial health or position. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY 

Net Position 

2013 

The Authority's total net position at December 31, 2013 decreased to $9,644, a decrease of 29% from 
December 31, 2012. (See Table A-1) Total assets decreased by $43,617 due primarily to a decrease in 
mortgage-backed securities of $16,948, decrease in investments securities of $17,067 and a decrease in 
cash of $9,599. The liabilities decreased by $39,609 due to the decrease in bonds payable of $39,710 and 
increase in other liabilities of $101. 

Table A-1 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

(in thousands of dollars) 

2012 Increase 
2013 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,894 $ 12,493 $ (9,599) 
Investments 13,965 31,032 (17,067) 
Mortgage-backed securities 70,850 87,798 (16,948) 
Other assets 354 357 (3) 

Total assets 88,063 131,680 (43,617) 

Other liabilities 2,124 2,023 101 
Bonds payable 76,295 116,005 (39,710) 

Total liabilities 78,419 118,028 (39,609) 

Net position 
Restricted for debt 1,692 5,233 (3,541) 
Unrestricted 

Undesignated 1,148 2,631 (1,483) 
Designated 6,804 5,788 1,016 

9,644 13,652 (4,008) 

Total liabilities and net position $ 88,063 $ 131,680 $ (43,617) 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

2012 

The Authority's total net position at December 31, 2012 decreased to $13,652, a decrease of 19% from 
December 31, 2011. (See Table A-1) Total assets decreased by $23,981 due primarily to a decrease in 
mortgage-backed securities of $38,287 and a decrease in cash of $13,557 offset by an increase in 
investment securities of $28,123, and the decrease in other assets of $170. The liabilities decreased by 
$20,669 due to the decrease in bonds payable of $20,794 and increase in other liabilities of $125. 

Table A-2 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

(in thousands of dollars) 

2012 
(as restated) 

2011 
(as restated) 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,493 $ 26,050 $ (13,557) 
Investments 31,032 2,909 28,123 
Mortgage-backed securities 87,798 126,085 (38,287) 
Other assets 357 527 (170) 

Total assets 131,680 155,571 (23,891) 

Other liabilities 2,023 1,898 125 
Bonds payable 116,005 136,799 (20,794) 

Total liabilities 118,028 138,697 (20,669) 

Net position 
Restricted for debt 5,233 9,356 (4,123) 
Unrestricted 

Undesignated 2,631 3,195 (564) 
Desigpated 5,788 4,323 1,465 

13,652 16,874 (3,222) 

Total liabilities and net position $ 131,680 $ 155,571 $ (23,891) 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

Changes in Net Position 

2013 

Table A-3 
Jefferson Parish Finance Anthority 

(in thousands of dollars) 

2013 
2012 

(as restated) 
Increase 

(Decrease) 

Operating revenues: 
Investment income on mortgage loans 
Depreciation in fair value on investments 
Investment income on investments 
Other 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 

Change in net position 

Total net position, beginning of the year 
Total net position, end of the year 

$ 3,385 $ 7,659 $ (4,274) 
(2,653) (3,738) 1,085 

198 174 24 
68 61 7 

998 4,156 (3,158) 

5,006 7378 (2,372) 

(4,008) (3322) (786) 

13,652 16,874 (3,222) 
$ 9,644 $ 13,652 $ (4,008) 

Operating revenues decreased by 76% to $998 thousand. This decrease in revenue is primarily due to the 
decrease in investment income on mortgage loans. 

Table A-4 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

(in thousands of dollars) 

2013 

Interest on debt 
Bond issuance and other costs 
Servicing fees 
Other 

Total operating expenses 

2012 
Increase 

(Decrease) 

$ 3,478 $ 5360 $ (1,782) 
486 387 99 
361 471 (110) 
681 1360 (579) 

$ 5,006 $ 7378 $ (2,372) 

Operating expenses decreased due to $1,782 less of interest payments on debt in 2013 than in 2012. 
Additional decrease of $110 in servicing fees is due to the decrease in mortgage loans as a result of the 
closing of three programs (2003A, 2003C, and 2004A) during 2012. Other expense decreased as the costs 
of the roll-up of bond programs (2003A, 2003C, and 2004A) were incurred during the year ended 
December 31, 2012. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

2012 

Table A-5 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

(in thousands of dollars) 
2012 2011 Increase 

(as restated) (as restated) (Decrease) 

Operating revenues: 
Investment income on mortgage loans $ 7,659 $ 7,082 $ 577 
Appreciation (depreciation) in fair value on 
investments (3,73 8) 1,725 (5,463) 
Investment income on investments 174 160 14 
Other 61 356 (295) 

Total operating revenues 4,156 9,323 (5,167) 

Operating expenses: 7,378 7,201 177 

Change in net position (3,222) 2,122 (5,344) 

Total net position, beginning of the year 16,874 14,752 2,122 
Total net position, end of the year $ 13,652 $ 16,874 $ (3,222) 

Operating revenues decreased by 55% to $4,156 million. This decrease in revenue is primarily due 
depreciation in fair value of investments. Decrease in other revenue is due to income earned during the 
prior year on warehoused loans in the 2009A program. 

Table A-6 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

(in thousands of dollars) 
2012 2011 Increase 

(as restated) (as restated) (Decrease) 

Interest on debt $ 5,260 $ 5,105 $ 155 
Bond issuance and other costs 387 458 (71) 
Savicingfees 471 614 (143) 
Other 1,260 1,024 236 

Total operating expenses $ 7,378 $ 7,201 $ 177 

Operating expenses decreased due to $155 more of interest payments on debt in 2012 than in 2011. 
Additional decrease of $143 in servicing fees is due to the closing of three programs during 2010 and an 
additional three programs in 2011. Other expenses increased due to the additional costs of the roll-up of 
the bonds programs (2003A, 2003C, and 2004A) during the year ended December 31,2012. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

2013 

Total indebtedness for bonds payable was $76 million as of December 31, 2013 compared to $116 
million at December 31, 2012. The decrease in bonds payable is the result of payoff of the 2003A and 
2003 C Programs during fiscal year 2013. All bond debt and lease covenants have been met. 

2012 

Total indebtedness for bonds payable was $116 million as of December 31, 2012 compared to $137 
million at December 31, 2011. The decrease in bonds payable is the result of higher than normal 
prepayments for Series 2006B, 2006D, 2007B, and 2007C during 2012. All bond debt and lease 
covenants have been met. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

The Authority considered the following factors and next year's budget, rates and fees. These factors and 
indicators include: 

• Mortgage rates remain low creating continued pressure on the existing Programs to reduce user 
fees through mortgage rate refinancing (reductions). 

• Long term planning for bond programs continues to be difficult due to the uncertainty of the 
future of government backed securities. However, as market conditions continue to improve, the 
Authority should be able to offer new bond programs. 

• Due to the current market conditions not being conductive to the issuance of new bond programs, 
the Authority offered a market rate program which provides fees to the Authority as each loan is 
sold. 

• The overall operating expenses of the Authority were reduced in 2013. The revenues for 2014 
should be sufficient to meet budget needs and allow for the continuation of the cmrent market 
rate program or allow for the introduction of new bond programs when market conditions permit. 

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our bondholders, patrons, and other interested parties with a 
general overview of the Authority's finances and to demonstrate the Authority's accountability for the 
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, 
contact the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority at (504) 736-6311. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
m THOUSANDS! 

AS OF DECEMBER 31.2013 AND 2012 

2013 2012 
Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment securities at fair value 
Mortgage-backed securities 
Accrued interest receivable 
Other receivable 

Total assets 

$ 2,894 
13,965 
70,850 

298 
56 

$ 12,493 
31,032 
87,798 

357 

$ 88,063 $ 131,680 

Liabilities and Net Position 

Liabilities; 
Bonds payable, net 
Accrued interest payable 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Net Position: 
Restricted for debt 
Unrestricted 

Undesignated 
Designated 

Total net position 

Total liabilities and net position 

$ 76,295 
1,980 
144 

78,419 

1,692 

1,148 
6,804 

9,644 13,652 

$ 88,063 $ 131,680 

$ 116,005 
1,897 

126 
118,028 

5,233 

2,631 
5,788 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
riN THOUSANDS) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

2013 2012 

Operating revenues: 
Investment income on mortgage loans 
Depreciation in fair market value of investments 

in mortgage-backed securities 
Investment income on investment securities 
Other revenue 

$ 3,385 

(2,653) 
198 

68 

$ 7,659 

(3,738) 
174 
61 

Total operating revenues 998 4,156 

Operating expenses: 
Interest on debt 
Bond issuance costs and other costs 
Servicing fees 
Trustee fees 
Other operating expenses 

3,478 
486 
361 

52 
629 

5,260 
387 
471 
81 

1,179 

Total operating expenses 5,006 7,378 

Change in net position before other financing sources: (4,008) (3,222) 

Other financing sources: 
Operating transfers - -

Total other financing sources - -

Change in net position (4,008) (3,222) 

Net position at heginning of the year (restated. Note 5) 13,652 16,874 

Net position at end of the year $ 9,644 $ 13,652 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(IN THOUSANDS) 

AS OF DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012 

Cash flows from operating activities; 
Cash receipts for: 

Investment income on mortgage loans 
Investment income on investment securities 
Other revenue 

Cash payments for: 
Interest on debt 
Servicing fees 
Other operating expenses 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Bond payments 

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 
Proceeds from mortgage loan repayments 
Acquisition of investment securities 
Acquisition of mortgage loans 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Reconciliation of changes in net position to net cash 
used in operating activities: 

Changes in net position 
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net position to 

net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Amortization of bond premium and discount 
Unrealized losses (gains) on investments in mortgage-backed securities 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Accrued interest receivable 
Other liabilities 
Accrued interest payable 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

2013 2012 

$ 3,441 $ 7,866 
244 138 
12 17 

(4,289) (5,520) 
(361) (438) 

(1,150) (1,651) 

(2,103) 412 

(38,819) (20,364) 

(38,819) (20,364) 

26,184 262 
20,745 45,857 
(9,140) (28,404) 
(6,466) (11,320) 

31,323 6,395 

(9,599) (13,557) 

12,493 26,050 

$ 2,894 $ 12,493 

$ (4,008) $ (3,222) 

(893) (430) 
2,694 3,769 

3 170 
18 4 
83 121 

$ (2,103) $ 412 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Authorizing Legislation 

The Jefferson Parish Finance Authority (the Authority) is a public trust, created pursuant to 
the Constitution and Laws of the State of Louisiana, particularly Chapter 2-A of Title 9 of 
Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended, and the Trust Indenture, dated February 9, 
1979, with Jefferson Parish, Louisiana as beneficiary. Pursuant to the Trust Indenture, the 
Authority is authorized to undertake various programs to assist in the financing and 
development of home ownership in the public interest within the boundaries of Jefferson 
Parish, Louisiana. 

The Authority has the power to designate its management, the ability to significantly 
influence its operations and primary accountability for its fiscal matters. However, the 
Council of the Parish of Jefferson has the ability to remove members of the Authority's 
Board at will. Consequently, the financial statements of the Authority are included as a 
component unit of the Parish of Jefferson, Louisiana. This report includes all of the funds of 
the Authority. 

The Authority began operations on August 1, 1979 and currently has separate bond programs 
as shown with original issuance amormts below: 

Date Issue Name 
Amount 

fin thousands) 

December 31, 1991 Single Family Mortgage Revenue 
Bonds, Series 1991 (1991 Program) _$ 19,175 

May 29, 2003 Single Family Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2003A 
(2003A Program) $ 15,000 

December 12, 2003 Single Family Mortage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2003C 
(2003 C Program) 30,000 

August 4, 2004 Single Family Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2004A 
(2004A Program) $ 20,000 

July 21, 2005 Single Family Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2005A 
(2005A Program) 20,000 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012 

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Amount 
Date 

August 10, 2006 

March 15, 2007 

June 28, 2007 

Issue Name 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2006B 
(2006B Program) $ 28,645 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2006C 
(2006C Program) $ 20,000 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2006D 

(2006D Program) $ 20,000 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue 

Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B 

(2007B Program) $ 20,000 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue 

Reftinding Bonds, Series 2007C 

(2007C Program) $ 30,000 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2008B (Federally 
Taxable (2008B Program) $ 10,000 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2009A Converted to 
Fixed Rate (2009ACF Program) $ 25,000 

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the 2003A, 2003C, and 2004A mortgage backed securities 
were sold at a premium. The proceeds from the sales of the mortgage backed securities were used to 
purchase United States Treasury Bills which will mature on the date each bond is callable. Therefore, on 
the date the investments mature their proceeds will be used to redeem the bonds in full. The respective 
maturity dates are 2003A — June 1, 2013, 2003C — December 1,2013, and 2004A — June 1,2014. 
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JEFFERSON PAItlSH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Bonds and other obligations issued under the provisions of the Trust Indenture are not a debt 
or liability of the State of Louisiana, the Parish of Jefferson, or any other political 
subdivision. The Authority's Board of Trustees is empowered under the Trust Indentures and 
the bond program agreements to contract with outside parties to conduct the day-to-day 
operations of the bond programs it initiates. In cormection with the programs, the Authority 
utilizes area financial institutions to originate and service the mortgage notes acquired. In 
addition, a financial institution has been designated as trustee of the individual bond 
programs and has the fiduciary responsibility for the custody and investment of funds. 

(b) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The accounting policies of the Authority conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governments. The government-
wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization, are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. The Authority has no government or 
fiduciary funds. 

The Authority uses fund accounting to report its financial position and results of operations. 
The accounts of the Authority are organized on the basis of individual programs. The 
programs, which are administered by a trustee bank, provide for a separate set of self-
balancing accormts which account for bonds issued, debt service and bond redemption 
requirements, investments, and related revenues and operating expenses. These individual 
programs are aggregated in the financial statements to comprise the fund of the Authority. 

The Authority's accounts are organized into a single proprietary fund. The enterprise fund (a 
proprietary fund) is used to account for operations (a) that are operated in a maimer similar to 
private business where the intent of the governing hody is that the cost (expense, including 
depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public is financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges or (b) where the governing body has decided that the periodic 
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or changes in net position is 
appropriate for capital maintenance. 

The Authority's prineipal operating revenues are the interest and appreciation (depreciation) 
related to investments and mortgages/mortgage-backed securities. 

(c) Cash Equivalents 

Cash equivalents consist of all money market accounts and highly-liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less at date of purchase. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued') 

(d) Investment Securities 

Investments are reported at fair value except for money markets and short-term investments, 
consisting primarily of financial instruments with a maturity of one year or less at time of 
purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on quoted market prices. If quoted 
prices are not available, fair value is estimated based on similar securities. The investment 
securities are restricted for the use of the respective programs with the exception of the 
investment securities in the 1991 Residual Accormt which are unorestricted. 

(e) Bond Issuance Costs 

Bond issuance costs, including underwriters' discounts on bonds sold, are expensed as 
incurred. 

(f) Refinancing Gains (Losses) 

Gains and losses associated with refundings and advance refundings are being deferred and 
amortized as a component of interest expense based upon the methods used to approximate 
the interest method over the term of the new bonds or the remaining term on any refunded 
bond, whichever is shorter. The new debt is reported net of the deferred amount on the 
refunding. 

(g) Real Estate Owned 

Real estate owned, comprised of real estate acquired in partial settlement of loans, is 
recorded at the related unpaid loan principal balance at the time of foreclosure. Substantially 
all costs of maintaining real estate owned are reimbursed under various insurance coverages. 
The excess of the unpaid principal and accrued interest balances over sales proceeds realized 
is also reimbursed under various insurance coverages. The Authority has no real estate 
owned properties at December 31,2013 and 2012. 

(h) Compensated absences 

It is the Authority's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused annual and 
sick pay benefits. Employees may cany over aimual leave up to forty days and an unlimited 
amount of sick leave. However, at the time of an employee's separation they are only paid 
for up to twenty days of annual leave and forty days of sick leave. The compensated 
absences policy of the Authority is consistent with the compensated absences policy of 
Jefferson Parish. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, compensated absences of $56,000 are 
included in other liabilities. 

(i) Estimates 

The Authority has made estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to prepare the balance sheet 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Actual amounts could be different from the estimates. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012 

(2) Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable 

(a) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Deposits 

Cash deposits and cash equivalents of $2,894 and $12,493 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively, are held in financial institutions. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the 
Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that 
are in the possession of an outside parly. The Authority's investments are held by the 
custodial bank as an agent for the Authority, in the Authority's name and are thereby not 
exposed to custodial credit risk. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Authority's deposits 
with banks consisted of cash of $52 and $91 and money market funds of $2,842 and $12,402. 
Of the cash balance at December 31, 2013 and 2012, $52 and $91 is covered by federal 
depository insurance. The remaining amount of the Authority's cash balances were 
comprised of cash equivalents that were invested in money market funds, of which the 
underlying assets are guaranteed investments in securities issued by the U.S. Government. 

(b) Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable 

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, investments were held as specifically as required under 
terms of the Trust Indentures and the State of Louisiana investment laws. These investments 
include U.S. Treasury bills, U.S. Treasury notes, guaranteed investment contracts, and 
certificates of deposit. 

Statutes authorize the Authority to invest in bonds, debentures, notes or otherwise evidence 
of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal agencies and provided such obligations are 
backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S., (1) Direct U.S. Treasury obligations; which 
obligations include but are not limited to (2) U.S. Export-Import Bank; (3) Farmers Home 
Administration; (4) Federal Financing Bank; (5) Federal Housing Administration 
Debentures; (6) General Services Administration; (7) Govermnent National Mortgage 
Association - guaranteed mortgage-backed bonds and guaranteed pass-through obligations; 
(8) U.S. Maritime Administration - guaranteed Title XI financing, and (9) U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban Development. 

Bonds, debentures, notes, or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by U.S. 
government instrumentalities, which are federally sponsored and such obligations include 
but are not limited to (1) Federal Home Loan Bank System; (2) Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation; (3) Federal National Mortgage Association; (4) Student Loan 
Marketing Association; and (5) Resolution Funding Corporation. 
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•JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012 

(2) Cash, Cash Equivalents., Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued) 

The following are the eomponents of the Authority's cash, investments, and mortgage loan 
receivable at December 31, 2013 and 2012 (in thousands): 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 
2013 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,921 $ 973 $ 2,894 
Investments 3,849 10,116 13,965 
Mortgage loan receivable 2,239 68,611 70,850 

Total $ 8,009 $ 79,700 $ 87,709 

2012 
Cash and cash equivalents $ • 1,400 $ 11,093 $ 12,493 
Investments 2,449 28,583 31,032 
Mortgage loan receivable 4,673 83,125 87,798 

Total $ 8,522 $ 122,801 $ 131,323 

The composition and carrying value of guaranteed investment contracts is as follows: 

2013 2012 
(in thousands) (in thousands) 

Guaranteed Investment Contracts: 
2005A Program 588 335 
2006B Program 699 784 
2006C Program 99 373 
2006D Program 309 579 
2007B Program 405 411 
2007C Program 5^ 748 

$ 2,625 $ 3,230 

Mortgage loan receivable for the 2005A, 2006B, 2006C, 2006D, 2007B, 2007C, 2008B and 
2009ACF programs represents mortgage pass-through certificates (GNMA, FNMA, and 
FHLMC certificates) backed by certain qualifying mortgage loans for single-family 
residences located within the Parish of Jefferson. The GNMA certificates are fully 
guaranteed by the United States govermnent; the Authority is not responsible for mortgage 
loan insurance. The FNMA and FHLMC certificates are fully guaranteed by the Federal 
National Mortgage Association, a federally chartered and stockholder-owned corporation. In 
the 1991 Program, each mortgage loan purchased by the Authority is insured for mortgage 
default under various policies. Additionally, mortgage loans are insured under a master 
policy of supplemental mortgage insurance and under a master policy of special hazard 
insurance. Each participating mortgage lender services those loans purchased from it by the 
Authority and receives compensation for services rendered. 
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JEFFERSON PAMSH FMANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

(2) Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued) 

The fair values of GNMA and FNMA certificates and mortgage loans receivable at December 31 
are as follows: 

2013 2012 
(in thousands) (in thousands) 

GNMA Certificates: 
1991 Program $ 1,410 $ 1,625 
2005A Program 6,553 8,428 
2006B Program 4,058 5,242 
2006C Program 2,518 3,656 
2006D Program 2,654 3,846 
2007B Program 3,118 3,866 
2007C Program 8,243 10,449 
2008B Program 2,294 3,550 
2009ACF Program 20,545 15,602 

51,393 56,264 
FNMA Certificates: 

1991 Program 827 1,276 
2005A Program 1,627 2,153 
2006B Program 2,032 3,471 
2007B Program 589 837 

5,075 7,737 
FHLMC Certificates: 

1991 Program - 1,750 
2006B Program 2,312 3,526 
2006C Program 4,346 6,503 
2006D Program 2,632 4,576 
2007B Program 3,483 4,815 
2007C Program 1,607 2,605 

14,380 23,775 
Mortgage Loans: 

1991 Program 2 22 
$ 70,850 $ 87,798 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FESTANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012 

(2) Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued') 

Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable - laterest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 
of an investment. In general, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity 
of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The Authority manages interest rate risk by 
matching the expected future maturity of the investments and mortgage loan receivable to the 
expected cash flow needs and bonds payable requirements. The Authority also limits the maximum 
maturity of investments in accordance with their investment policy. 

The following table shows the Authority's investments and mortgage loan receivable and the 
related maturities in actively managed accounts at December 31, 2013; 

Remaining Maturity in Years 
(in thousands) Fair value Less Than 1 1-5 5-10 >10 

Mortgage- backed securities $ 70,850 $ - $ 828 $ $ 70,022 
Mortage loan receivables 2 - 2 - -
Fixed income investments 3,849 1,362 2,487 - -
U.S. Treasury investments 7,489 7,489 - - -
Guaranteed investment contracts 2,625 - - 2,625 
Money market funds 2,842 2,842 - - -

Total $ 87,657 $ 11,693 $ 3,317 $ $ 72,647 

The Authority's investments in guaranteed investment contracts are not subject to interest rate risk 
since the financial institutions guarantee the principal and interest on the investment. 

The Authority receives a rate equal to the stated interest rate net the .50% servicer/administrator 
fee retained by the Servicer for GNMA, FNMA, and FHLMC securities. The mortgage loans have 
stated interest rates to the Authority as follows: 

2005A Program 5.90% 
2006B Program 5.84% 
2006C Program 5.63% 
2006D Program 5.86% 
2007B Program 6.39% 
2007C Program 6.36% 
2008B Program 6.75% 
2009ACF Program 3.50% 
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JEFFERSON PAMSH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012 

(2) Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued) 

Investments - Credit Quality Risk 

Credit quality risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill 
its obligation to the Authority. Obligations of the U.S. Government or obligations explicitly 
guaranteed by the U.S. Government are not assigned credit quality ratings. Credit quality ratings 
are reported on obligations of U.S. Government agencies not explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. 
Government. 

The following table provides information on the credit ratings associated with the Authority's 
investments in debt securities at December 31, 2013 (in thousands of dollars): 

Mortgage-backed 
S&P Rating Total Securities QIC 

AAA $ 70,850 $ 70,850 $ 
AA- 687 - 687 
A 1,938 1,938 

$ 73,475 $ 70,850 $ 2,625 

Failure of the financial institutions to meet minimum credit ratings requires the institutions to 
provide collateral to support the investment contract. During the year ended December 31, 2012 
the GICs invested in/held by the Authority were downgraded. At December 31, 2013, the GICs 
met the minimum credit ratings required by the Authority. 

Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable- Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Authority's Investment Policy does not allow for more than 70% of the total investment 
portfolio to be invested in Bonds, debentures, note or otherwise evidence of indebtedness issued or 
guaranteed by federal agencies and provided such obligations are backed by the full faith and 
credit of the United States of America. 

As of December 31, 2013, management believes all investments held and purchased for the 
Authority's portfolio during 2013, as it relates to Acts 374 and 1126 (effective June 29, 1995) 
adhered to the permitted investments section of LSA-R.S. 33:2955. In particular, securities held or 
purchased during the year ruclude only U.S. Treasuiy bills, U.S. Treasury Notes, Hancock Horizon 
Treasury Securities Money Market Funds, and Federated Prime Obligation Funds. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

(3) Bonds PaYable 

Bonds payable are as follows at December 31: 
2013 2012 

(in thousands) (in thousands) 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2003A dated May 29, 2003 — 
bonds paid in full during 2013 $ - $ 6,740 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2003C dated December 11, 2003 
- bonds paid in full during 2013 - 10,524 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2004A dated June 17, 2004 -
$380 due June 1, 2015 at 4.7%, $1,460 due 
December 1, 2024 at 5.1%, $1,530 due 
December 1, 2034 at 5.25%, $1,525 due June 
1, 2035 at 5.25%, and $2,350 due December 1, 
2035 at 5.9% (plus premium on bonds of $250) 7,495 7,603 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2005A dated July 21, 2005 -
$400 due June 1, 2015 at 4.0%, $4,680 due 
December 1, 2035 at 4.65%, and $2,680 due 
June 1, 2036 at 5.55% (plus premium on bonds 
of$382) 8,142 10,128 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2006B dated July 26, 2006 -
$4,185 due December 1, 2032 at 5.25%, $3,000 
due June 1, 2037 at 4.60% (plus premium on 
bonds of $790) 7,975 11,773 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2006C dated October 31, 2006 -
$3,690 due June 1, 2033 at 5.0%, and $1,995 
due December 1, 2038 at 5.0% (plus premium 
on bonds of $572) 6,257 9,728 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2006D dated March 1, 2007 -
$5,600 due June 1, 2038 at 5.0% (plus 
premium on honds of $3 84) 5,984 8,599 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHOIIITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012 

(3) Bonds Payable (continued) 
2013 2012 

(in thousands) (in thousands) 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2007B dated June 1, 2007 -
$6,890 due December 1, 2048 at 5.7% (plus 
premium on bonds of $444) 7,334 9,430 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2007C dated October 31, 2007 -
$525 due December 1, 2017 at 4.25%, $1,670 
due December 1, 2027 at 4.85%, $3,680 due 
June 1, 2039 at 5.70%, and $3,435 due 
December 1, 2039 at 5.50% (plus premium on 
bonds of $822) 10,132 13,393 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2008B dated November 10, 2008 
- $2,073 due December 1, 2040 at 6.03 (plus 
premium on bonds of $243) 2,316 3,447 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2009ACF dated November 22, 
2011 - $20,660 due December 1, 2041 at 
2.32%. 20,660 24,640 

Total bonds payable $ 76,295 $ 116,005 

The Authority is in compliance with its bond covenants. 

The bonds in the 1991 Program (sold in 2002) are secured by an assignment and pledge of and 
secmity interest in: (i) all mortgage loans and the income therefrom (including all insurance 
proceeds with respect to the mortgage loans), (ii) the Authority's rights and interests in and to the 
agreement and (iii) all monies and securities held imder the Trust Indentures, including monies in 
the funds and accounts created pursuant thereto (excluding certain monies representing excess 
investment earnings, if any, required to be remitted to the United States Government in accordance 
with the Trust Indentures). 

Under the Trust Indentures, the Authority has the option to redeem bonds maturing on or after June 
1, 2015 (2005A) at 101% of the then outstanding balance and subsequently lesser prices declining 
to par; June 1, 2016 (2006B) at 103.0% of the then outstanding balance and subsequently lesser 
prices declining to par; and June 1, 2016 (2006C) at 103% of the then outstanding balance and 
subsequently lesser prices declining to par. 

Under the Trust Indentures for the 2007B, 2007C, 2008B, and 2009ACF programs, the Authority 
has the option to redeem bonds maturing on or after any date as a whole at a redemption price 
equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof being redeemed, plus mterest accrued to the date 
fixed for redemption. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012 

(3) Bonds Payable (continued) 

The other bond programs have early bond calls based on the timing of the receipt of mortgage loan 
principal and interest payments. As excess cash is accumulated, the Authority is required to issue 
bond calls. 

The principal balance on defeased bonds outstanding at December 31 are as follows: 

2013 2012 
1985 Program -

(defeased by the 1994 "1985" Program) $ 32,595,000 $ 32,595,000 

(4) Net Position 

The net position included in the 1991 Program, totaling $7,952,000 and $8,419,000 as of 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, are for the benefit of all Programs and available to the 
Authority for its purpose of promoting and providing residential housing in the Parish of Jefferson. 
Although unrestricted to a particular program, the unrestricted net position must be maintained by 
the Authority until all bonds and programs are liquidated. The remaining net position is restricted 
for specific operating uses as described in the trust indentures. 

(5) Change in Accounting Principles 

The Authority has implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities, in 2013. This standard provides guidance for reporting the financial statement elements 
of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, required by GASB Statement 
No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Net Position. GASB Statement No. 65 also identifies certain items previously reported as 
assets and liabilities that the GASB determined should be recognized as revenues, expenses, or 
expenditures when incurred and not reported in statements of net position. 

The Authority implemented this standard effective January 1, 2012. The impact as follows: 

Previously reported net position as of January 1, 2012 $ 20,239,000 
Adjustment to net position as a result of the implementation of GASB Statement 

No. 65 (3,365,000) 
Net position as of January 1, 2012, as restated $ 16,874,000 

Previously reported change in net position for the year ended December 31, 2012 $ (3,124,000) 
Adjustment as a result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 65 (98,000) 
Change in net position for the year ended December 31,2012, as restated $ (3,222,000) 

26 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012 

(5) Change in Accounting Principles (continued) 

The GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections - 2012 in March 2012. The objective 
of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for a governmental financial 
reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two 
pronouncements. Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
Definitions, and No. 62, Codifiication of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained 
in Pre-November SO, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The provisions of this Statement 
are effective for 2013. There was no impact to the Authority with the implementation of this 
statement. 

(6) Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were 
available to be issued, April 23, 2014, and determined there were no items requiring disclosure. 

27 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF BOARD MEMBERS' COMPENSATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2012 

Schedule 4 

The members of the Authority's Board of Trustees receive per diem payments for weekly Board meetings 
attended; approved committee meetings and services rendered and are also reimbursed for actual 
expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as members of the Board of Trustees. For the year 
ended December 31, 2013, the following per diem payments were made to the members of the 
Authority's board: 

Number of Meetings: 

Regular Extra 
Board Approved 2013 

Per Diems Per Diems Total 

Berthelot, Jackie 49 7 56 
DiMarco, Dennis 47 9 56 
Drawe, Michael F. 46 8 54 
Faia, Gregory 43 5 48 
Jackson, Girod H. 16 2 18 
Lawson, Arthur S. 39 4 43 
Lawson, James E. 49 10 59 
Muscarello, Frank L. 49 10 59 
Woodruff, Ebony 1 0 1 

Per Diem Pavments: 

Berthelot, Jackie 
DiMarco, Dennis 
Drawe, Michael F. 
Faia, Gregory 
Jackson, Girod H. 
Lawson, Arthur S. 
Lawson, James E. 
MuscareHo, Frank L. 
Woodruff, Ebony 

2013 

8,400 
8,400 
8,100 
7,200 
2,700 
6,450 
8,850 
8,850 
150 

S 59.100 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Postlethwaite 
& Netterville 

A Professional Accouniing Corporclion 
Associoled Offices in Principal Cities of the United States 

www.pncpa.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Trustees 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority (the Authority), as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the Authority's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 23, 
2014. 

Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's 
intemal control over financial reporting to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's intemal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's 
intemal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance. 

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be 
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

30th Floor - Energy Centre • 1100 Poydras Street • New Orleans, lA 70163-3000 • Tel: 504.569.2978 
One Galleria Blvd., Suite 2100 • Metairie, LA 70001 • Tel: 504.837.5990 • Fax: 504.834.3609 110



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control 
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
April 23, 2014 
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A Professional Accounting Corporation 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Board of Trustees 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority: 

Report on Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jefferson Parish Finance Authority (the 
Authority), a component unit of the Parish of Jefferson, as of and for the years ended December 31,2014 
and 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fi-aud or 
error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fmancial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

30th Floor - Energy Centre • 1100 Poydras Street • New Orleans, lA 70163-3000 • Tel: 800.201.7332 
One Gaileria Blvd., Suite 2100 • Metairie, LA 70001 • Tel: 504.837.5990 • Fax: 504.834.3609 115



Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the Authority as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 10 he presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting 
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Om audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The supplementary information included 
in Schedules 1 through 5 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the basic financial statements. The supplementary information included in Schedules 1 through 5 are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied ia the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America. In our opinion, such information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

P&N 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated March 21, 2015 
on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority's internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
March 27, 2015 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FMAJ^CE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

This section of the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority's (the Authority) financial report presents a 
discussion and analysis of the Authority's financial performance during the fiscal years that ended 
December 31, 2014 and 2013. Please read it in conjunction with the Authority's financial statements, 
which follow this section. 

FINANCIAL fflGHLIGHTS 

The Authority is a component unit of the Parish of Jefferson, Louisiana. 

2014 

The Authority's net position represents 15% of its total assets. With total assets approximating $70 
million, the Authority had changes in net position of approximately $1 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2014. 

The Authority's financial highlights include: 

• During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Authority ereated a new program the Jefferson 
Mortgage Assistanee Program (JMAP). In 2014, the JMAP program had $176 thousand in 
revenues and $40 thousand in expenses. 

• The Authority's net position increased by $961 thousand due primarily to investment income and 
appreciation in fair value of investments in excess of interest expense and other operating 
expenses. 

2013 

The Authority's net position represents 11% of its total assets. With total assets approximating $88 
million, the Authority had ehanges in net position of approximately ($4.0) million for the year ended 
December 31, 2013. 

The Authority's financial highlights include: 

• During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Authority created a new program the Jefferson 
Mortgage Assistance Program (JMAP). This program is not a bond program as the Authority has 
utilized in the past. The JMAP program is accounted for in the 1991 program. The program was 
created in September 2013 and reported limited activity for 2013. 

• The Authority's net position decreased by $4.0 million due primarily to interest expense and 
other operating expenses in excess of investment income and depreciation in fair value of 
investments. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This financial report consists of four parts; management's discussion and analysis (this section), the 
basic financial statements, the notes to the financial statements, and supplementary information. 

The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Authority's overall 
financial status. The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the 
financial statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of other 
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. 

The Authority's financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. 
Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses 
are recognized in the period in which they are incurred, and depreciation of assets is recognized in the 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. All assets and liabilities associated with 
the operation of the Authority are included in the Statements of Net Position. 

The Statement of Net Position reports the Authority's net position. Net position, the difference between 
the Authority's assets and liabilities, are one way to measure the Authority's financial health or position. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY 

Net Position 

2014 

The Authority's total net position at December 31, 2014 increased to $10,605, an increase of 10% from 
December 31, 2013. (See Table A-1) Total assets decreased by $17,632 due primarily to a decrease in 
mortgage-backed securities of $22,394 and increase in investment securities at fair value of $6,649. The 
liabilities decreased by $18,593 due to the decrease in bonds payable of $18,779 and increase in other 
liabilities of $186. 

Table A-1 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

(in thousands of dollars) 

2014 2013 
Increase 

(Decrease) 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 968 $ 2,894 $ (1,926) 
Investments 20,614 13,965 6,649 
Mortgage-backed securities 48,456 70,850 (22,394) 
Other assets 393 354 39 

Total assets 70,431 88,063 (17,632) 

Other liabilities 2,310 2,124 186 
Bonds payable 57,516 76,295 (18,779) 

Total liabilities 59,826 78,419 (18,593) 

Net position 
Restricted for debt 2,369 1,692 677 
Unrestricted 

Undesignated 1,021 1,148 (127) 
Designated 7,215 6,804 411 

10,605 9,644 961 

Total liabilities and net position $ 70,431 $ 88,063 $ (17,632) 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31. 2014 AND 2013 

2013 

The Authority's total net position at December 31, 2013 decreased to $9,644, a decrease of 29% from 
December 31, 2012. (See Table A-2) Total assets decreased by $43,617 due primarily to a decrease in 
mortgage-backed securities of $16,948, decrease in investments securities of $17,067 and a decrease in 
cash of $9,599. The liabilities decreased by $39,609 due to the decrease in bonds payable of $39,710 and 
increase in other liabilities of $101. 

Table A-2 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

(in thousands of dollars) 

Increase 
2013 2012 (Decrease) 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,894 $ 12,493 $ (9,599) 
Investments 13,965 31,032 (17,067) 
Mortgage-backed securities 70,850 87,798 (16,948) 
Other assets 354 357 (3) 

Total assets 88,063 131,680 (43,617) 

Other liabilities 2,124 2,023 101 
Bonds payable 76,295 116,005 (39,710) 

Total liabilities 78,419 118,028 (39,609) 

Net position 
Restricted for debt 1,692 5,233 (3,541) 
Unrestricted 

Undesignated 1,148 2,631 (1,483) 
Designated 6,804 5,788 1,016 

9,644 13,652 (4,008) 

Total liabilities and net position $ 88,063 $ 131,680 $ (43,617) 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31. 2014 AND 2013 

Changes in Net Position 

2014 

Table A-3 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

(in thousands of dollars) 

2014 2013 
Increase 

(Decrease) 

Operating revenues: 
Investment income on mortgage loans $ 3,813 $ 3,385 $ 428 
Appreciation (depreciation) in fair value on 
investments 231 (2,653) 2,884 
Investment income on investments 204 198 6 
Other 176 68 108 

Total operating revenues 4,424 998 3,426 

Operating expenses: 3,463 5,006 (1,543) 

Change in net position 961 (4,008) 4,969 

Total net position, begiiming of the year 9,644 13,652 (4,008) 
Total net position, end of the year $ 10,605 $ 9,644 $ 961 

Operating revenues increased by 343% to $4,424. This increase in revenue is primarily due to the 
appreciation in fair value on investments. 

Table A-4 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

(in thousands of dollars) 
Increase 

2014 2013 (Decrease) 

Interest on debt $ 2,168 $ 3,478 $ (1,310) 
Bond issuance and other costs 39 486 (447) 
Servicing fees 271 361 (90) 
Other 985 681 304 

Total operating expenses $ 3,463 $ 5,006 $ (1,543) 

Operating expenses decreased due to $1,310 less of interest payments on debt in 2014 than in 2013. 
Other expense increased as the costs of the roll-up of bond programs (2005A and 2006B) were incurred 
during the year ended December 31,2014. 

122



JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

2013 

Table A-5 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

(in thousands of dollars) 

2013 2012 
Increase 

(Decrease) 

Operating revenues: 
Investment income on mortgage loans $ 3,385 $ 7,659 $ (4,274) 
Depreciation in fair value on investments (2,653) (3,738) 1,085 
Investment income on investments 198 174 24 
Other 68 61 7 

Total operating revenues 998 4,156 (3,158) 

Operating expenses; 5,006 7,378 (2,372) 

Change in net position (4,008) (3,222) (786) 

Total net position, beginning of the year 13,652 16,874 (3,222) 
Total net position, end of the year $ 9,644 $ 13,652 $ (4,008) 

Operating revenues decreased by 76% to $998 thousand. This decrease in revenue is primarily due to the 
decrease in investment income on mortgage loans. 

Table A-6 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

(in thousands of dollars) 
Increase 

2013 2012 (Decrease) 

Interest on debt $ 3,478 $ 5,260 $ (1,782) 
Bond issuance and other costs 486 387 99 
Servicing fees 361 471 (110) 
Other 681 1,260 (579) 

Total operating expenses $ 5,006 $ 7,378 $ (2,372) 

Operating expenses decreased due to $1,782 less of interest payments on debt in 2013 than in 2012. 
Additional decrease of $110 in servicing fees is due to the decrease in mortgage loans as a result of the 
closing of three programs (2003A, 2003C, and 2004A) during 2012. Other expense decreased as the costs 
of the roll-up of bond programs (2003A, 2003 C, and 2004A) were incurred during the year ended 
December 31,2012. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

2014 

Total indebtedness for bonds payable was $58 million as of December 31,2014 compared to $76 million 
at December 31, 2013. The decrease in bonds payable is the result of payoff of the 2004A Program 
during fiscal year 2014. All bond debt and lease covenants have been met. 

2013 

Total indebtedness for bonds payable was $76 million as of December 31, 2013 compared to $116 
million at December 31, 2012. The decrease in bonds payable is the result of payoff of the 2003A and 
2003 C Programs during fiscal year 2013. All bond debt and lease covenants have been met. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

The Authority considered the following factors and next year's budget, rates and fees. These factors and 
indicators include: 

• Mortgage rates remain low creating continued pressure on the existing Programs to reduce user 
fees through mortgage rate refinancing (reductions). 

• Long term plaiming for bond programs continues to be difficult due to the uncertainty of the 
future of government backed securities. However, as market conditions continue to improve, the 
Authority should be able to offer new bond programs. 

• Due to the current market conditions not being conductive to the issuance of new bond programs, 
the Authority continues to offer a market rate program, JMAP, which provides fees to the 
Authority as each loan is sold. 

• To increase fees, the Authority introduced a new market rate program, SMPA, in 2014. This 
program is offered in St. Charles Parish and St. Tammany Parish through agreements to share 
fees. 

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our bondholders, patrons, and other interested parties with a 
general overview of the Authority's finances and to demonstrate the Authority's accoimtability for the 
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, 
contact the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority at (504) 736-6311. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
ON THOUSANDS) 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investment securities at fair value 
Mortgage-backed securities 
Accrued interest receivable 
Other receivable 

Total assets 

Liabilities and Net Position 

Liabilities; 
Bonds payable, net 
Accrued interest payable 
Other liabilities 

Total liabihties 

Net Position: 
Restricted for debt 
Unrestricted 

Undesignated 
Designated 

Total net position 

Total liabihties and net position 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

2014 2013 

$ 968 $ 2,894 
20,614 13,965 
48,456 70,850 

202 298 
191 56 

$ 70,431 $ 88,063 

$ 57,516 $ 76,295 
2,138 1,980 
172 144 

59,826 78,419 

2,369 1,692 

1,021 1,148 
7,215 6,804 

10,605 9,644 

$ 70,431 $ 88,063 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
riN THOUSANDS) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013 

2014 2013 

Operating revenues: 
Investment income on mortgage loans 
Appreciation (depreciation) in fair market value of investments 

in mortgage-backed securities 
Investment income on investment securities 
Other revenue 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Interest on debt 
Bond issuance costs and other costs 
Servicing fees 
Trustee fees 
Other operating expenses 

Total operating expenses 

Change in net position before other financing sources: 

Other financing sources: 

3,813 

231 
204 
176 

4,424 

2,168 
39 
271 
49 
936 

3,463 

961 

3,385 

(2,653) 
198 
68 

998 

3,478 
486 
361 
52 
629 

5,006 

(4,008) 

Total other financing sources 

Change in net position 961 (4,008) 

Net position at beginning of the year 9,644 13,652 

Net position at end of the year $ 10,605 : S 9,644 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
(INTHOUSANDSI 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013 

2014 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Cash receipts for: 

Investment income on mortgage loans 
Investment income on investment securities 
Other revenue 

Cash payments for: 
Interest on debt 
Servicing fees 
Other operating expenses 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Bond payments 

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 
Proceeds from mortgage loan repayments 
Acquisition of investment securities 
Acquisition of mortgage loans 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Reconciliation of changes in net position to net cash 
used in operating activities: 

Changes in net position 
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net position to 

net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Amortization of bond premium and discount 
Unrealized losses (gains) on investments in 

mortgage-backed securities 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Accrued interest receivable 
Other liabilities 
Accrued interest payable 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 

3,864 
243 
41 

(2,327) 
(265) 
(996) 

560 

(18,462) 

(18,462) 

8,107 
22,768 

(14,795) 
(104) 

15,976 

(1,926) 

2,894 

968 

961 

(317) 

(231) 

(39) 
28 
158 

560 

2013 

3,441 
244 
12 

(4,289) 
(361) 

(1,150) 

(2,103) 

(38,819) 

(38,819) 

26,184 
20,745 
(9,140) 
(6,466) 

31,323 

(9,599) 

12,493 

2,894 

$ (4,008) 

(893) 

2,694 

3 
18 
83 

$ (2,103) 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Authorizing Legislation 

The Jefferson Parish Finance Authority (the Authority) is a public trust, created pursuant to 
the Constitution and Laws of the State of Louisiana, particularly Chapter 2-A of Title 9 of 
Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended, and the Trust Indenture, dated February 9, 
1979, with Jefferson Parish, Louisiana as beneficiaiy. Pursuant to the Trust Indenture, the 
Authority is authorized to undertake various programs to assist in the financing and 
development of home ownership in the public interest within the boundaries of Jefferson 
Parish, Louisiana; St. Charles Parish, Louisiana; and St. Tammany Parish, Louisiana. 

The Authority has the power to designate its management, the ability to significantly 
influence its operations and primary accountability for its fiscal matters. However, the 
Council of the Parish of Jefferson has the ability to remove members of the Authority's 
Board at will. Consequently, the financial statements of the Authority are included as a 
component unit of the Parish of Jefferson, Louisiana. This report includes all of the funds of 
the Authority. 

The Authority began operations on August 1, 1979 and currently has separate bond programs 
as shown with original issuance amounts below: 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued^ 

(a) Authorizing Legislation (continued) 

Date 

July 21,2005 

August 10,2006 

November 14,2006 

March 15, 2007 

June 28,2007 

November 20,2007 

November 10,2008 

November 22,2011 

Issue Name 

Single Famify Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2005A 
(2005A Program) 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue 
Reftinding Bonds, Series 2006B 
(2006B Program) 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2006C 
(2006C Program) 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2006D 
(2006D Program) 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B 
(2007B Program) 

Single Famify Mortgage Revenue 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2007C 
(2007C Program) 

Single Famify Mortgage Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2008B (Federalfy 
Taxable (2008B Program) 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2009A Converted to 
Fixed Rate (2009ACF Program) 

Amount 
(in. 

thousands) 

$ 20,000 

$ 28.645 

$ 20.000 

$ 20.000 

$ 20.000 

$ 30.000 

$ 10.000 

$ 25,000 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies fcontinueiD 

(a) Authorizing Legislation (continued) 

During the year ended December 31,2014, the 2005A and 2006B mortgage backed securities 
were sold at a premium. The proceeds from the sales of the mortgage backed securities were 
used to purchase United States Treasury Bills or Guaranteed Investment Contracts which 
will mature on the date each bond is callable. Therefore, on the date the investments mature 
their proceeds will be used to redeem the bonds in full. The respective maturity dates are 
2005A-June 1, 2015 and 2006B - June 1, 2016. 

Bonds and other obligations issued under the provisions of the Trust Indenture are not a debt 
or liability of the State of Louisiana, the Parish of Jefferson, or any other political 
subdivision. The Authority's Board of Trustees is empowered under the Trust Indentures and 
the bond program agreements to contract with outside parties to conduct the day-to-day 
operations of the bond programs it initiates. In connection with the programs, the Authority 
utilizes area finaneial institutions to originate and service the mortgage notes acquired. In 
addition, a fmancial institution has been designated as trustee of the individual bond 
programs and has the fiduciary responsibility for the custody and investment of funds. 

(b) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The accounting policies of the Authority conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governments. The government-
wide and proprietary ftind fmancial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed 
and expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization, are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. The Authority has no government or 
fiduciary funds. 

The Authority uses fund accounting to report its financial position and results of operations. 
The accounts of the Authority are organized on the basis of individual programs. The 
programs, which are administered by a trustee bank, provide for a separate set of self-
balancing accounts which account for bonds issued, debt service and bond redemption 
requirements, investments, and related revenues and operating expenses. These individual 
programs are aggregated in the financial statements to comprise the fund of the Authority. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31,2014 AND 2013 

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued^ 

(b) Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
(continued) 

The Authority's accounts are organized into a single proprietary fund. The enterprise fund (a 
proprietary fund) is used to account for operations (a) that are operated in a manner similar to 
private business where the intent of the governing body is that the cost (expense, including 
depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public is financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges or (b) where the governing body has decided that the periodic 
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred and/or changes in net position is 
appropriate for capital maintenance. 

The Authority's principal operating revenues are the interest and appreciation (depreciation) 
related to investments and mortgages/mortgage-backed securities. 

(c) Cash Equivalents 

Cash equivalents consist of all money market accormts and highly-liquid investments with a 
maturity of three months or less at date of purchase. 

(d) Investment Securities 

Investments are reported at fair value except for money markets and short-term investments, 
consisting primarily of financial instruments with a maturity of one year or less at time of 
purchase, which are reported at cost. Fair value is based on quoted market prices. If quoted 
prices are not available, fair value is estimated based on similar securities. The investment 
securities are restricted for the use of the respective programs with the exception of the 
investment securities in the 1991 Residual Account which are unrestricted. 

(e) Bond Issuance Costs 

Bond issuance costs, including underwriters' discounts on bonds sold, are expensed as 
incurred. 

(f) Refinancing Gains (Losses) 

Gains and losses associated with refundings and advance refundings are being deferred and 
amortized as a component of interest expense based upon the methods used to approximate 
the interest method over the term of the new bonds or the remaining term on any refunded 
bond, whichever is shorter. The new debt is reported net of the deferred amormt on the 
refunding. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(1) Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(g) Real Estate Owned 

Real estate owned, comprised of real estate acquired in partial settlement of loans, is 
recorded at the related unpaid loan principal balance at the time of foreclosure. Substantially 
all costs of maintaining real estate owned are reimbursed under various insurance coverages. 
The excess of the unpaid principal and accrued interest balances over sales proceeds realized 
is also reimbursed under various insurance coverages. The Authority has no real estate 
owned properties at December 31,2014 and 2013. 

(h) Compensated absences 

It is the Authority's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused annual and 
sick pay benefits. Employees may carry over annual leave up to forty days and an unlimited 
amount of sick leave. However, at the time of an employee's separation they are only paid 
for up to twenty days of aimual leave and forty days of sick leave. The compensated 
absences policy of the Authority is consistent with the compensated absences policy of 
Jefferson Parish. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, compensated absences of $65 and $56 
are included in other liabilities, respectively. 

(i) Estimates 

The Authority has made estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to prepare the balance sheet 
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Actual amounts could be different from the estimates. 

(2) Cash. Cash Equivalents. Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable 

(a) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Deposits 

Cash deposits and cash equivalents of $968 and $2,894 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, 
respectively, are held in financial institutions. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(2) Cash. Cash Equivalents. Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued') 

(a) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Deposits (continued) 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the 
Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that 
are in the possession of an outside party. The Authority's investments are held by the 
custodial bank as an agent for the Authority, in the Authority's name and are thereby not 
exposed to custodial credit risk. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Authority's deposits 
with banks consisted of cash of $63 and $52 and money market funds of $899 and $2,842. 
Of the cash balance at December 31, 2014 and 2013, $63 and $52 is covered by federal 
depository insurance. The remaining amount of the Authority's cash balances were 
comprised of cash equivalents that were invested in money market funds, of which the 
underlying assets are guaranteed investments in securities issued by the U.S. Government. 

(b) Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable 

At December 31, 2014 and 2013, investments were held as specifically as required under 
terms of the Trust Indentures and the State of Louisiana investment laws, more particularly, 
Louisiana Revised Statutes 33:2955, as amended. 

These investments include, but are not limited to: Direct U.S. Treasury obligations, which 
include but are not limited to 1) U.S. Export-Import Bank; (2) Farmers Home 
Administration; (3) Federal Financing Bank; (4) Federal Housing Administration 
Debentures; (5) General Services Administration; (6) Government National Mortgage 
Association - guaranteed mortgage-backed bonds and guaranteed pass-through obligations; 
(7) U.S. Maritime Administration - guaranteed Title XI financing, and (8) U.S. Department 
of Housing and Urban Development as well as U.S. government instrumentalities which 
obligations include but are not limited to (1) Federal Home Loan Bank System; (2) Federal 
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation; (3) Federal National Mortgage Association; (4) Student 
Loan Marketing Association; and (5) Resolution Funding Corporation. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(2) Cash. Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities., and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued^ 

(b) Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued) 

The following are the components of the Authority's cash, investments, and mortgage loan 
receivable at December 31,2014 and 2013 (in thousands): 

Unrestricted Restricted Total 
2014 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 687 $ 281 $ 968 
Investments 5,149 15,465 20,614 
Mortgage loan receivable 2,343 46,113 48,456 

Total $ 8,179 $ 61,859 $ 70,038 

2013 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,921 $ 973 $ 2,894 
Investments 3,849 10,116 13,965 
Mortgage loan receivable 2,239 68,611 70,850 

Total $ 8,009 $ 79,700 $ 87,709 

The composition and carrying value of guaranteed investment contracts is as follows: 

2014 2013 
(in thousands) (in thousands) 

Guaranteed Investment Contracts: 
2005A Program - 588 
2006B Program 7,506 699 
2006C Program 206 99 
2006D Program 197 309 
2007B Program 212 405 
2007C Program 212 525 

$ 8,333 $ 2,625 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(2) Cash. Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable fcontinued') 

(b) Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued) 

Mortgage loan receivable for the 2006C, 2006D, 2007B, 2007C, 2008B and 2009ACF 
programs represents mortgage pass-through certificates (GNMA, FNMA, and FHLMC 
certificates) backed by certain qualifying mortgage loans for single-family residences located 
within the Parish of Jefferson. The GNMA certificates are fully guaranteed by the United 
States government; the Authority is not responsible for mortgage loan insurance. The 
FNMA and FHLMC certificates are fully guaranteed by the Federal National Mortgage 
Association, a federally chartered and stockholder-owned corporation. In the 1991 Program, 
each mortgage loan purchased by the Authority is insured for mortgage default under various 
policies. Additionally, mortgage loans are insured under a master policy of supplemental 
mortgage insurance and under a master policy of special hazard insurance. Each participating 
mortgage lender services those loans purchased fi-om it by the Authority and receives 
compensation for services rendered. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(2) Cash. Cash Equivalents. Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued') 

(b) Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued) 

The fair values of GNMA and FNMA certificates and mortgage 
December 31 are as follows; 

2014 2013 
(in thousands) (in thousands) 

GNMA Certificates: 
1991 Program $ 1,265 $ 1,410 
2005A Program - 6,553 
2006B Program - 4,058 
2006C Program 2,311 2,518 
2006D Program 2,147 2,654 
2007B Program 2,501 3,118 
2007C Program 6,559 8,243 
2008B Program 1,636 2,294 
2009ACF Program 20,601 20,545 

37,020 51,393 
FNMA Certificates: 

1991 Program 826 827 
2005A Program - 1,627 
2006B Program - 2,032 
2007B Program 584 589 

1,410 5,075 
FHLMC Certificates: 

1991 Program 252 -
2006B Program - 2,312 
2006C Program 3,996 4,346 
2006D Program 1,801 2,632 
2007B Program 2,796 3,483 
2007C Program 1,181 1,607 

10,026 14,380 
Mortgage Loans: 

1991 Program - 2 
$ 48,456 $ 70,850 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(2) Cash. Cash Equivalents. Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued^ 

(b) Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued) 

Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable - Interest Rate Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair 
value of an investment. In general, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the 
sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The Authority manages 
interest rate risk by matching the expected future maturity of the investments and mortgage 
loan receivable to the expected cash flow needs and bonds payable requirements. The 
Authority also limits the maximum maturity of investments in accordance with their 
investment policy. 

The following table shows the Authority's investments and mortgage loan receivable and 
the related maturities in actively managed accounts at December 31,2014: 

Remaining Maturity in Years 
(in thousands) Fair value Less Than 1 1-5 5-10 >10 

Mortgage- backed securities $ 48,456 $ $ 1,078 $ $ 47,378 
Fixed income mvestments 4,899 2,439 2,460 -
U.S. Treasury investments 7,378 7,127 251 -
Guaranteed investment contracts 8,333 - - 8,333 
Money market funds 898 898 - -

Total $ 69,964 $ 10,464 $ 3,789 $ $ 55,711 

The Authority's investments in guaranteed investment contracts are not subject to interest 
rate risk since the financial institutions guarantee the principal and interest on the 
investment. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FRANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(2) Cash. Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued') 

(b) Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued) 

Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable - Interest Rate Risk ("continued^ 

The Authority receives a rate equal to the stated interest rate net the .50% 
servicer/administrator fee retained by the Servicer for GNMA, FNMA, and FHLMC 
securities. The mortgage loans have stated interest rates to the Authority as follows: 

2006C Program 5.63% 
2006D Program 5.34% 
2007B Program 6.39% 
2007C Program 6.36% 
2008B Program 6.75% 
2009ACF Program 3.50% 

Investments - Credit Oualitv Risk 

Credit quality risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not 
fulfill its obligation to the Authority. Obligations of the U.S. Government or obligations 
explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government are not assigned credit quality ratings. Credit 
quality ratings are reported on obligations of U.S. Government agencies not explicitly 
guaranteed by the U.S. Government. 

The following table provides information on the credit ratings associated with the 
Authority's investments in debt securities at December 31, 2014 (in thousands of 
dollars): 

Mortgage-backed 
S&P Rating Total Securities GIC 

AAA $ 48,456 $ 48,456 $ 
AA- 8,333 8,333 

$ 56,789 $ 48,456 $ 8,333 

Failure of the financial institutions to meet minimum credit ratings requires the institutions to 
provide collateral to support the investment contract. At December 31, 2014, the GlCs met 
the minimum credit ratings required by the Authority. 

24 

138



JEFFERSON PAMSH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(2) Cash. Cash Eauivalents. Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable ("continued^ 

(b) Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable (continued) 

Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable- Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Authority's Investment Policy does not allow for more than 70% of the total investment 
portfolio to be invested in Bonds, debentures, note or otherwise evidence of indebtedness 
issued or guaranteed by federal agencies and provided such obligations are backed by the full 
faith and credit of the United States of America. 

As of December 31, 2014, management believes all investments held and purchased for the 
Authority's portfolio during 2014, as it relates to Acts 374 and 1126 (effective June 29, 
1995) adhered to the permitted investments section of LSA-R.S. 33:2955. In particular, 
securities held or purchased during the year include only U.S. Treasury bills, U.S. Treasury 
Notes, Hancock Horizon Treasury Securities Money Market Funds, and Federated Prime 
Obligation Funds. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(3) Bonds Payable 

Bonds payable are as follows at December 31: 

2014 2013 
(in thousands) (in thousands) 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2004A dated June 17, 2004 - Bonds paid in 
foil during 2014. $ - $ 7,495 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2005A dated July 21, 2005 - $275 due June 
1, 2015 at 4.0%, $4,435 due December 1, 2035 at 
4.65%, and $2,370 due June 1, 2036 at 5.55% 
(plus premium on bonds of $347) 7,277 8,142 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2006B dated July 26, 2006 - $2,250 due 
December 1, 2032 at 5.25%, $3,000 due Jime 1, 
2037 at 4.60% (plus premium on bonds of $724) 5,974 7,975 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2006C dated October 31, 2006 - $3,040 due 
June 1, 2033 at 5.0%, and $1,995 due December 
1,2038 at 5.0% (plus premium on bonds of $518) 5,553 6,257 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2006D dated March 1, 2007 - $3,615 due 
June 1, 2038 at 5.0% (plus premium on bonds of 
$354) 3,969 5,984 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2007B dated June 1, 2007 - $5,135 due 
December 1, 2048 at 5.7% (plus premium on 
bonds of $419) 5,735 7,334 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2007C dated October 31, 2007 - $390 due 
December 1, 2017 at 4.25%, $1,395 due 
December 1, 2027 at 4.85%, $2,390 due June 1, 
2039 at 5.70%, and $2,870 due December 1, 2039 
at 5.50% (plus premium on bonds of $747) 7,792 10,132 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(3) Bonds Payable (continued) 

2014 2013 
(in thousands) (in thousands) 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2008B dated November 10, 2008 -
$1,450 due December 1, 2040 at 6.03% (plus 
premium on bonds of $226) 1,676 2,316 

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2009ACF dated November 22, 2011 -
$19,540 due December 1, 2041 at 2.32%. 19,540 20,660 

Total bonds payable $ 57,516 $ 76,295 

The Authority is in compliance with its bond covenants at December 31, 2014 and 2013. 

The bonds in the 1991 Program (sold in 2002) are secured by an assigmnent and pledge of and 
security interest in: (i) all mortgage loans and the income therefrom (including all insurance 
proceeds with respect to the mortgage loans), (ii) the Authority's rights and interests in and to the 
agreement and (iii) all monies and securities held under the Trust Indentures, including monies in 
the funds and accounts created pursuant thereto (excluding certain monies representing excess 
investment earnings, if any, required to be remitted to the United States Government in accordance 
with the Trust Indentures). 

Under the Trust Indentures, the Authority has the option to redeem bonds maturing on or after June 
1, 2015 (2005A) at 101% of the then outstanding balance and subsequently lesser prices declining 
to par; June 1, 2016 (2006B) at 103.0% of the then outstanding balance and subsequently lesser 
prices declining to par; and June 1, 2016 (2006C) at 103% of the then outstanding balance and 
subsequently lesser prices declining to par. 

Under the Trust Indentures for the 2007B, 2007C, 2008B, and 2009ACF programs, the Authority 
has the option to redeem bonds maturing on or after any date as a whole at a redemption price 
equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof being redeemed, plus interest accrued to the date 
fixed for redemption. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE APTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
fIN THOUSANDS') 

DECEMBER 31. 2014 AND 2013 
(3) Bonds Payable (continued) 

A summary of scheduled bond maturities (in thousands) as of December 31,2014 is as follows: 

Principal: 

Interest: 

2020- 2025- 2030- 2035- 2040- 2045-
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2024 2029 2034 2039 • 2044 2049 Premiums Total 

2005A Program $ 125 $ $ $ S $ $ $ $ 6,805 $ - $ $ 347 $ 7,277 
2006B Program - - - - - - - 2,250 3,000 - - 724 5,974 
2006C Program - - - - - - - 3,040 1,995 - - 518 5,553 
2006D Program - - - - - - - - 3,615 - - 354 3,969 
2007B Program - - - - - - - - - - 5,316 419 5,735 
2007C Program - - 390 • • - 1,395 - 5,260 - - 747 7,792 
2008B Program - - - - - - - - - 1,450 - 226 1,676 
2009ACF Program 1,940 1,830 1,660 1,480 1,360 5,250 3,560 2,460 - - - - 19,540 

Total due each year 2,065 1,830 2,050 1,480 1,360 5,250 4,955 7,750 20,675 1,450 5,316 3,335 57,516 

2005A Program 343 338 338 338 338 1,689 1,689 1,689 469 7,231 
2006B Program 256 256 256 256 256 1,281 1,281 1,044 414 - - - 5,300 
2006C Program 252 252 252 252 252 1,259 1,259 955 399 - - - 5,132 
2006D Program 181 181 181 181 181 904 904 904 723 - - - 4,340 
2007B Program 303 303 303 303 303 1,515 1,515 1,515 1,515 1,515 1,211 10,301 
2007C Program 378 378 378 362 362 1,809 1,673 1,470 1,470 - - - 8,280 
2008B Program 87 87 87 87 87 437 437 437 437 87 - - 2,270 
2009ACF Program 467 422 381 345 312 1,157 653 306 - . . _ 4,043 

Total due each year 2,267 2,217 2,176 2,124 2,091 10,051 9,411 8,320 5,427 1,602 1,211 46,897 

Total due $ 4,332 $ 4,047 $ 4,226 $ 3,604 $ 3,451 $ 15,301 $ 14,366 $ 16,070 $ 26,102 $ 3,052 $ 6,527 $ 3,335 S 104,413 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31.2014 AND 2013 

(3) Bonds Payable (continued') 

The other bond programs have early bond calls based on the timing of the receipt of mortgage loan 
principal and interest payments. As excess cash is accumulated, the Authority is required to issue 
bond calls. 

The principal balance on defeased bonds outstanding at December 31 are as follows: 

2014 2013 
1985 Program-

(defeased by the 1994 "1985" Program) $ 32,595,000 $ 32,595,000 

(4) Net Position 

The net position included in the 1991 Program, totaling $8,326,000 and $7,952,000 as of 
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, are for the benefit of all Programs and available to the 
Authority for its purpose of promoting and providing residential housing in the Parish of Jefferson. 
Although unrestricted to a particular program, the unrestricted net position must be maintained by 
the Authority until all bonds and programs are liquidated. The remaining net position is restricted 
for specific operating uses as described in the trust indentures. 

(5) Subsequent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were 
available to be issued, March 27, 2015, and determined there were no items requiring disclosure. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET PGSITIGN BY PROGRAM 
fIN THOUSANDS^ 

(SEE ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS 

Schedule 1 

1991 
Program 

2004 A 
Program 

2005A 
Program 

2006B 
Program 

2006C 
Program 

2006D 
Program 

2007B 
Program 

2007C 
Program 

2008B 
Program 

2009ACF 
Program Total 

Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investment securities at fair value 

Mortgage-backed securities 

Accrued interest receivable 

Other receivable 

$ 687 

5,149 

2,343 

38 

191 

$ $ 1 

7,132 

1 

$ 
7,507 

$ 88 

206 

6,307 

25 

$ 82 

197 

3,948 

16 

$ 3 

212 

5,881 

26 

$ 
211 

7,740 

34 

$ 10 

1,636 

8 

$ 97 

20,601 

54 

S 968 

20,614 

48,456 

202 

191 

Total assets $ 8,408 $ $ 7,134 $ 7,507 $ 6,626 $ 4,243 $ 6,122 $ 7,985 $ 1,654 $ 20,752 $ 70,431 

Liabilities and Net Position 

Liabilities: 
Bonds payable, net 

Accrued interest payable 

Other liabilities 

$ 

172 

$ $ 7,278 

29 

$ 5,974 

1,168 

$ 5,553 

824 

$ 3,969 

15 

$ 5,734 

25 

$ 7,792 

32 

$ 1,676 

7 

$ 19,540 

38 
$ 57,516 

2,138 

172 

Total liabilities $ 172 • $ $ 7,307 $ 7,142 $ 6,377 $ 3,984 $ 5,759 $ 7,824 $ 1,683 S 19,578 $ 59,826 

Net Position: 
Restricted for debt 

Unrestricted 

Undesignated 

Designated 

$ 

1,021 

7,215 

$ $ (173) $ 365 $ 249 $ 259 $ 363 $ 161 $ (29) $ 1,174 $ 2,369 

1,021 
7,215 

Total net position 8,236 . (173) 365 249 259 363 161 (29) 1,174 10,605 

Total liabilities and net position $ 8,408 $ $ 7,134 $ 7,507 $ 6,626 $ 4,243 $ 6,122 $ 7,985 $ 1,654 $ 20,752 $ 70,431 
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JIEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE ATITHORITY 

SCHEDTTTR OF REVENTJES. EXPENSES. AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY PROGRAM 
fTN THOTISANDS1 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 
fSEE ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS 

Schedule 2 

1991 2004A 2005A 2006B 2006C 2006D 2007B 2007C 2008B 2009ACF 
Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Total 

Operating revenues: 
Investment income on mortgage loans $ 88 $ $ 612 $ 1,001 $ 320 $ 181 $ 321 $ 429 $ 94 $ 767 $ 3,813 

Appreciation (depreciation) in market value 

of investments (38) (1) (474) (472) 98 38 13 (79) (16) 1,162 231 

Investment income on investment securities 79 6 66 5 13 19 7 9 - - 204 

Other revenue 176 . . . . . - . . . 176 

Total operating revenues 305 5 204 534 431 238 341 359 78 1,929 4,424 

Operating expenses: 

Interest on debt - (41) 324 230 225 184 319 373 87 467 2,168 

Bond issuance costs and other costs 39 - - - - - - - - 39 

Servicing fees - 6 33 31 20 30 40 9 102 271 
Trustee fees 29 - 2 2 1 3 3 1 8 49 
Other operating expenses 936 - - - - - - - . 936 

Total operating expenses 1,004 (41) 330 265 258 205 352 416 97 577 3,463 

Change in net assets before other 

financing sources (uses) (699) 46 (126) 269 173 33 (11) (57) (19) 1,352 961 

Other financing sources (uses) 

Operating transfers 983 (25) (676) (28) (20) (13) (16) (27) (3) (175) 

Change in net assets 284 21 (802) 241 153 20 (27) (84) (22) 1,177 961 

Net position at beginning of the year 7,952 (21) 629 124 96 239 390 245 (7) (3) 9,644 

Net position at end of the period S 8,236 $ $ (173) $ 365 $ 249 S 259 $ 363 $ 161 S , .. .(?9}. $ 1,174 S 10,605 
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SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS BY PROGRAM 
fIN THOUSANDS^ 

FQR THt; YgAR Em?FP PECTWggR 31, 20J'( 
fSEE ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT) 

1951 2004 A 2005A 2006B 2006C 2006D 2007B 2007C 2008B 2009ACF 
Proeram Proeram Proeram Proeram Proeram Proeram Proeram Proeram Proeram Proeram Total 

Casil flows from operating activities: 

Cash receipts for: 

Investment income on mortgage loans S 81 $ $ 606 $' 1,037 $ 323 $ 188 $ 329 $ 439 S 94 $ 767 S 3,864 
Investment income on investment securities 79 6 100 5 13 19 7 9 3 2 243 

Other revenue 41 - - 41 

Cash payments for: 
Interest on debt - 8 (364) (170) (185) (223) (352) (463) (108) (470) (2,327) 

Servicing fees - (33) (31) (20) (30) (40) (9) (102) (265) 
Other operating expenses (976) - (2) (2) rn (3) (3) (I) (8) (996) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating 
activities (775) 14 342 837 118 (37) (49) (58) (21) 189 560 

Cash flows from noncapital flnancing activities: 

Bonds payments (7,495) (827) (1,932) (647) (1,984) (1,575) (2,260) (622) (1,120) (18,462) 

Opiating transfers 983 (25) (676) (28) (20) (13) (16) (27) (3) (175) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 

noncapital financing activities 983 (7.320) (1.503) (1.960) (667) (i.997) (1.591) (2.287) (625) (1.295) (18.462) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 7,488 - - ill 194 314 . 8,107 
Proceeds from mortgage loan repayments - 7,706 7,930 655 1,376 1,322 2,031 642 1,106 22,768 
Acquisition of investment securities (1,338) (6,544) (6,807) (106) - - - (14,795) 
Acquisition of mortgage loans (104) - . (104) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
investing activities (1.442) 7.488 1.162 1.123 549 1.487 1.516 2.345 642 1.106 15,976 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalents (1.234) (18) • 1 - (547) (124) - (4) - (1.926) 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1.921 18 88 629 127 . 14 97 2.894 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year S 687 $ S 1 S S 88 S 82 S 3 $ S 10 $ 97 5 968 

Reconciliation of changes in net position to net cash 

used in operating activities: 

Changes In net position $ (699) $ 46 S (126) $ 269 $ 173 $ 33 $ (11) $ (57) $ (19) l; 1,352 $ 961 
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net position to 

net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Amortization of bond premium (37) (69) (57) (31) (25) (80) (18) (217) 

Umealized (gains) losses on investments 38 1 474 472 (98) (38) (13) -79 16 (1,162) (231) 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest 

and other receivables (142) - 34 36 3 7 8 10 3 2 (39) 
Increase in other liabilities 28 - - - 28 
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable (33) (3) 129 97 (8) (8). (10) (3) (3) 158 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
$ (775) S 14 $ 342 837 $ 118 S (37) $ (49) S f581 $ (21) $ 189 S 560 
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Schedule 4 

JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

SCHERTITE OF BOARD MEMBERS' COMPENSATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014 

The members of the Authority's Board of Trustees receive per diem payments for weekly Board meetings 
attended; approved committee meetings and services rendered and are also reimbursed for actual 
expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as members of the Board of Trustees. For the year 
ended December 31, 2014, the following per diem payments were made to the members of the 
Authority's board: 

Number of Meetings: 

Regular Extra 
Board Approved 2014 

Per Diems Per Diems Total 

Berthelot, Jackie 49 15 64 
Boyter, Mitchell 33 2 35 
DiMarco, Dennis 43 6 49 
Drawe, Michael F. 46 10 56 
Faia, Gregory 37 6 43 
Lawson, Arthur S. 6 2 8 
Lawson, James E. 33 9 42 
Muscarello, Frank L. 51 12 63 
Woodruff, Ebony 36 4 40 
Schudmak, Sam 10 0 10 

Per Diem Pavments: 

Berthelot, Jackie 
Boyter, Mitchell 
DiMarco, Dennis 
Drawe, Michael F. 
Faia, Gregory 
Lawson, Arthur S. 
Lawson, James E. 
Muscarello, Frank L. 
Woodruff, Ebony 
Schudmak, Sam 

2014 

9,600 
5250 
7,350 
8,400 
6,450 
1200 
6,300 
9,450 
6,000 
1.500 

S 61.500 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 

33 

147



Schedule 5 

JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION. BENEFITS. AND OTHER PAYMENTS 
TO AGENCY HEAD OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31.2014 

Agency Head Name: Terry McCarthy, Executive Director 

Purpose Amount 
Salaiy $121,993.22 
Benefits-insurance 3,000.00 
Benefits-retirement 12,040.45 
Benefits 
Car allowance 11,086.08 
Vehicle provided by government 
Per diem 
Reimbursements 
Travel 
Registration fees 525.00 
Conference travel 2,040.83 
Continuing professional education fees 
Housing 
Unvouchered expenses 
Special meals ^ 

$150,685.58 

See accompanying independent auditors' report. 
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Postlethwaite 
Uiilkl & Netterville 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 
Associated Offices in Principal Cities of the United States 

www.pncpa.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

Board of Trustees 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 

We have audited in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority (the Authority), as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the Authority's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 27, 
2015. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's 
internal control over financial reporting to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's fmancial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, hi internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

30th Floor - Energy Centre • 1100 Poydras Street • New Orleans, LA 70163-3000 • Tel: 800.201.7332 
One Galleria Blvd., Suite 2100 • Metairie, LA 70001 • Tel: 504.837.5990 • Fax: 504.834.3609 149



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are 
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of 
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct 
and material effect on the detennination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, 
we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Purpose of this report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control 
and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Metahie, Louisiana 
March 27, 2015 

P&N 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
The Board of Trustees 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Jefferson 
Parish Finance Authority (the Authority), a component unit of the Parish of Jefferson, as of and for the 
year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.   
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to on the previous page present fairly, in all 
material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Authority, 
as of December 31, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America.  
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 1-7 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The Schedule of Assets, Liabilities 
and Net Position by Program, Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position by 
Program, Schedule of Cash Flows by Program, Schedule of Operating Expenses, Schedule of 
Board Members’ Compensation and Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments 
to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is 
not a required part of the basic financial statements.    
 
The Schedule of Assets, Liabilities and Net Position by Programs, Schedule of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position by Program, Schedule of Operating Expenses, Schedule 
of Cash Flows by Program, Schedule of Board Members’ Compensation and Schedule of 
Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head are the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
 
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
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In our opinion, the Schedule of Assets, Liabilities and Net Position by Programs, Schedule of 
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position by Program, Schedule of Cash Flows by 
Program, Schedule of Operating Expenses, Schedule of Board Members’ Compensation and 
Schedule of Compensation, Benefits and Other Payments to Agency Head is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 
7, 2017, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not 
to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
Prior Period Financial Statements 
 
The financial statements of the Authority as of December 31, 2015, were audited by other auditors 
whose report dated April 11, 2016, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements. 
 
 

 
 
Camnetar & Co., CPAs 
a professional accounting corporation 
 
   
Gretna, Louisiana 
April 7, 2017 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 

 

4 
 

This section of the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority’s (the Authority) financial report presents a 
discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial performance during the fiscal years that ended 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, and should be in conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements 
which follow this section. Throughout the financial report, dollar amounts will be expressed in thousands, 
unless otherwise noted. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
The Authority is a component unit of the Parish of Jefferson, Louisiana. 
 
2016 
 
The Authority’s net position represents 28% of its total assets. With total assets approximating $37 Million, 
the Authority has an increase in net position of approximately $878 thousand for the year ended 
December 31, 2016. 
 
The Authority’s financial highlights include: 
 

 During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Authority created a new program the Jefferson 
Mortgage Assistance Program (JMAP) and during the year ended December 31, 2014, the 
Authority created Southern Mortgage Assistance Program (SMAP) which transacted its first 
mortgage down payment assistance in January 2015. JMAP and SMAP were merged in 
September 2015 with SMAP as the current name of the program. In 2016, the programs had $181 
thousand in revenues and $4 thousand in direct administrative expenses. The Authority utilizes 
its current operational budget and administration to support this program. 

 
 The Authority’s net position increased by $878 thousand due to the excess of revenues over 

expense during the fiscal year. 
 

 The Authority’s total assets decreased by $18,968 thousand primarily due to the sale of mortgage-
backed securities, the proceeds of which were used to redeem bonds during the fiscal year. 
 

 The Authority’s total liabilities decreased by $19,846 thousand primarily due to the redemption of 
bonds in the fiscal year. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued) 
 
2015 
 
The Authority’s net position represents 17% of its total assets. With total assets approximating $56 Million, 
the Authority has a decrease in net position of approximately $879 thousand for the year ended 
December 31, 2015. 
 
The Authority’s financial highlights include: 
 

 During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Authority created a new program the Jefferson 
Mortgage Assistance Program (JMAP) and during the year ended December 31, 2014 the 
Authority created Southern Mortgage Assistance Program (SMAP) which received its first loan in 
January 2015. JMAP and SMAP were merged in September 2015 with SMAP as the current 
name of the program. In 2015, the programs had $185 thousand in revenues and $80 thousand 
in expenses. 

 
 The Authority’s net position decreased by $879 thousand due primarily to decrease in investment 

income depreciation in fair value of investments. 
 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
This financial report consists of four parts:  management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the 
basic financial statements, the notes to the financial statements, and supplementary information. 
 
The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Authority’s overall 
financial status. The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the 
financial statements and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of 
supplementary information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. 
 
The Authority’s financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. 
Under the basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses 
are recognized in the period in which they are incurred, and depreciation of assets is recognized in the 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. All assets and liabilities associated 
with the operation of the Authority are included in the Statements of Net Position. 
 
The Statements of Net Position reports the Authority’s net position. Net Position, the difference between 
the Authority’s assets and liabilities, is one way to measure the Authority’s financial health or position. 
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FINANCIAL ANAYLSIS OF THE AUTHORITY 
 
Net Position 
 
2016 
 
The Authority’s total net position at December 31, 2016, increased to $10,604, an increase of 9% from 
December 31, 2015. (See Table A-1) Total assets decreased by $18,968 due primarily to a decrease in 
mortgage-backed securities of $17,687 and decrease in investment securities at fair value of $1,568. 
During 2016 the Authority liquidated investments of $7,961 and mortgage-backed securities of $8,338 in 
the bond programs 2006B, 2006C, and 2006D. These liquidations were used to decrease bonds in these 
respective programs in the amount of $13,710.  During 2016, the Authority liquidated mortgage-backed 
securities of $6,228 in the bond program 2007C, this liquidation was used to purchase $5,495 in 
investments in the program. Liabilities decreased by $19,846 due to the decrease in bonds payable of 
$17,655 and decrease in other liabilities of $2,191. 
 

lncrease
 2016 2015 (Decrease) 

Cash and cash equivalents 1,164$        917$           247$             
lnvestments 12,747        14,315        (1,568)          
Mortgage-backed  securities 22,885        40,572        (17,687)        
Other assets 612             572             40                 

Total assets 37,408$      56,376$      (18,968)$      

Other liabilities 348$           2,539$        (2,191)$        
Bonds payable 26,456        44,111        (17,655)        

Total liabilities 26,804        46,650        (19,846)        

Net position
Restricted for debt 1,681          1,769          (88)               
Unrestricted

Undesignated 968             1,141          (173)             
Designated 7,955          6,816          1,139            
Total net position 10,604        9,726          878               
Total liabilities and net position 37,408$      56,376$      (18,968)$      

Jefferson Parish Finance Authority
Table A-1

(in thousands of dollars)
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued) 
 
Net Position  
 
2015 
 
The Authority’s total net position at December 31, 2015, decreased to $9,726, a decrease of 8% from 
December 31, 2014. (See Table A-2) Total assets decreased by $14,055 due primarily to a decrease in 
mortgage-backed securities of $7,884 and decrease in investment securities at fair value of $6,299. 
During 2015 the Authority liquidated investments in the bond program 2005A in the amount of $7,131. 
Liabilities decreased by $13,176 due to the decrease in bonds payable of $13,405, with an offset by an 
increase in other liabilities of $229. 
 

lncrease
 2015 2014 (Decrease) 

Cash and cash equivalents 917$           968$           (51)$             
lnvestments 14,315        20,614        (6,299)          
Mortgage-backed  securities 40,572        48,456        (7,884)          
Other assets 572             393             179               

Total assets 56,376$      70,431$      (14,055)$      

Other liabilities 2,539$        2,310$        229$             
Bonds payable 44,111        57,516        (13,405)        

Total liabilities 46,650        59,826        (13,176)        

Net position
Restricted for debt 1,769          2,369          (600)             
Unrestricted

Undesignated 1,141          1,021          120               
Designated 6,816          7,215          (399)             
Total net position 9,726          10,605        (879)             
Total liabilities and net position 56,376$      70,431$      (14,055)$      

Jefferson Parish Finance Authority
Table A-2

(in thousands of dollars)
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued) 
Changes in Net Position 
 
2016 
As seen in Table A-3, operating revenues increased by 111% to $3,167. This increase in revenue is 
primarily due to revenue recognized on the unamortized bond premium of bonds redeemed during 2016 
offset by depreciation in fair value on investments. During the year, Investment income on mortgage 
loans and investments increased due to market conditions. 

lncrease
2016 2015 (Decrease) 

Operating revenues
Investment income on mortgage loans 2,656$      1,934$      722$           
(Depreciation) appreciation in fair market value 

of investments in mortgage backed securities (1,001)       (719)          (282)            
Investment income on investment securities 176           101           75               
Other 1,336        185           1,151          

Total operating revenues 3,167        1,501        1,666          
Operating expenses 2,289        2,380        (91)              
Change in net position 878           (879)          1,757          

Total net position, beginning of the year 9,726        10,605      (879)            
Total net position, end of the year 10,604      9,726        878             

Jefferson Parish Finance Authority
Table A-3

(in thousands of dollars)

 
As seen in Table A-4, total operating expenses decreased $91 due to a decrease in bond interest and 
servicing fees. The decrease in interest payments on debt is due to the redemption of bond programs 
2006B, 2006C and 2006D. The redemption of bonds realized an increase in bond retirement costs. 

lncrease
2016 2015 (Decrease) 

Interest on debt 1,138$      1,385$      (247)$          
Bond issuance costs and other costs -            80             (80)              
Bond retirement costs 285           -            285             
Servicing fees 152           202           (50)              
Trustee fees 46             53             (7)                
Other operating expenses 668           660           8                 

Total operating expenses 2,289$      2,380$      (91)$            

Jefferson Parish Finance Authority
Table A-4

(in thousands of dollars)
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued) 
Changes in Net Position 
 
2015 
As seen in Table A-5, total operating revenues decreased by 66% to $1,501. This decrease in revenue 
is primarily due to the decrease in investment income on mortgage loans and depreciation in fair value 
on investments. Investment income on mortgage loan decreased due to the liquidation of the 2005A 
investments and market conditions. 

lncrease
2015 2014 (Decrease) 

Operating revenues
Investment income on mortgage loans 1,934$      3,813$        (1,879)$       
(Depreciation) appreciation in fair market value 

of investments in mortgage backed securities (719)          231             (950)            
Investment income on investment securities 101           204             (103)            
Other 185           176             9                 

Total operating revenues 1,501        4,424          (2,923)         
Operating expenses 2,380        3,463          (1,083)         
Change in net position (879)          961             (1,840)         

Total net position, beginning of the year 10,605      9,644          961             
Total net position, end of the year 9,726$      10,605$      (879)$          

Jefferson Parish Finance Authority
Table A-5

(in thousands of dollars)

 
As seen in Table A-6, total operating expenses decreased due to $783 less of interest payments on debt 
in 2015 than in 2014. The decrease in interest payments on debt is due to the roll-up of bond program 
2005A. Other expense decreased due to $297 in expenses related to roll-up bond programs were 
incurred in 2014, and only $25 in expenses related to the continuation of the roll-up of bond program 
2006B incurred in 2015 

lncrease
2015 2014 (Decrease) 

Interest on debt 1,385$      2,168$      783$           
Bond issuance costs and other costs 80             39             (41)              
Bond retirement costs -            
Servicing fees 202           271           69               
Trustee fees 53             49             (4)                
Other operating expenses 660           936           276             

Total operating expenses 2,380$      3,463$      1,083$        

Jefferson Parish Finance Authority
Table A-6

(in thousands of dollars)
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DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
2016 
 
Total indebtedness for bonds payable was $26 million as of December 31, 2016, compared to $44 million 
at December 31, 2015. The decrease in bonds payable is the result of payoff of the 2006B, 2006C and 
2006D programs during fiscal year 2016. All bond debt covenants have been met. 
 
2015 
 
Total indebtedness for bonds payable was $44 million as of December 31, 2015, compared to $58 million 
at December 31, 2014. The decrease in bonds payable is the result of payoff of the 2005A program 
during fiscal year 2015. All bond debt and lease covenants have been met. 
 
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET 
 
The Authority considered the following factors and next year’s budget, rates and fees. These factors and 
indicators include: 
 

 Mortgage rates remain low creating continued pressure on the existing programs to reduce user 
fees though mortgage rate refinancing (reductions). 
 

 Long term planning for bond programs continues to be difficult due to the uncertainty of the future 
of government backed securities. However, as market conditions continue to improve, the 
Authority should be able to offer new bond programs. 
 

 Because the current market condition is not conducive to the issuance of new bond programs, 
the Authority continues to offer its SMAP program which provides a fee to the Authority as each 
loan is sold. The JPFA also continues to look for opportunities to partner with other regional 
parishes to administer the SMAP program. 
 

 In 2016 the JPFA cancelled the agreement with the Calcasieu Parish Public Trust Authority to 
offer its SMAP program in the parishes of Allen, Beauregard, Calcasieu, Cameron, and Jefferson 
Davis, due to lack of interest and low productivity in the SMAP program in those areas.   

 
 
 

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our bondholders, patrons, and other interested parties with a 
general overview of the Authority’s finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability for the 
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact 
the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority at (504) 736-6311. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
(In Thousands)
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015

Cash and cash equivalents 1,164$     917$        
Investment securities at fair value 12,747     14,315     
Mortgage-backed securities 22,885     40,572     
Accrued interest receivable 112          180          
Down payment assistance and other receivables 500          392          

Total Assets 37,408$   56,376$   

Liabilities and Net Position

Liabilities
Bonds payable 25,278$   41,375$   
Premium on bonds payable 1,178       2,736       
Accrued interest payable 75            2,325       
Other liabilities 273          214          

Total Liabilities 26,804     46,650     

Net Position
Restricted for debt 1,681       1,769       
Unrestricted 

Undesignated 968          1,141       
Designated 7,955       6,816       

Total Net Position 10,604     9,726       

Total Liabilities and Net Position 37,408$   56,376$   

Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
(In Thousands)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015
Operating Revenues

Investment income on mortgage loans 2,656$      1,934$       
(Depreciation) appreciation in fair market value of investments 

and mortgage backed securities (1,001)       (719)           
Investment income on investment securities 176           101            
JMAP and SMAP revenue 181           185            
Gain on bond premium recognized on early debt retirement 1,144        -             
Other revenue 11             -             

Total Operating Revenues 3,167        1,501         

Operating Expenses
Interest on debt 1,138        1,385         
Bond issuance costs and other costs -            80              
Bond retirement costs 285           25              
Servicing fees 152           202            
Trustee fees 46             53              
Other operating expenses 668           635            

Total Operating Expenses 2,289        2,380         

Change in Net Position 878           (879)           

Net Position at the Beginning of the Year 9,726        10,605       

Net Position at theEnd of the Year 10,604$    9,726$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(In Thousands)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts for:
Investment income on mortgage loans 2,742$        1,950$       
Investment income on investment securities 161             107            
JMAP and SMAP income 181             185            
Jefferson Parish Community Development Program 107             -             
Other revenue 11               -             

Cash payments for:
Down payment assistance (108)            (201)           
Interest on debt (3,566)         (1,515)        
Bond retirement costs (285)            -             
Servicing fees (152)            (202)           
Trustee fees (46)              -             
Other operating expenses (716)            (751)           

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (1,671)         (427)           

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Bond principal payments (16,096)       (13,088)      
Bond premium transferred at redemption (240)            -             

Net cash (used in) provided by noncapital financing activities (16,336)       (13,088)      

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 15,791        14,786       
Proceeds from sale of mortgage backed securities 12,721        -             
Proceeds from mortgage loan repayments 3,986          7,186         
Acquisition of investment securities (14,244)       (1,084)        
Acquisition of mortgage loans -              (7,424)        

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 18,254        13,464       

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 247             (51)             

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 917             968            

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,164$        917$          

Reconciliation of changes in net position to net cash used in operating activities
Changes in net position 878$           (879)$         
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net position to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Amortization of bond premium and discount (174)            (317)           
Bond premium recognized on early debt retirement (1,144)         -             
(Depreciation) appreciation in investments and mortgage backed securities 1,001          719            
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Change in accrued interest receivable 68               (179)           
Change in down payment assistance receivable (108)            -             

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Change in accrued expenses and accounts payable (48)              42              
Change in accrued interest payable (2,251)         187            
Change in due to Jefferson Parish Community Development 107             -             

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (1,671)$       (427)$         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Authorizing Legislation 

The Jefferson Parish Finance Authority (the Authority) is a public trust, created pursuant to the 
Constitution and Laws of the State of Louisiana, particularly Chapter 2-A of Title 9 of Louisiana Revised 
Statutes of 1950, as amended, and the Trust Indenture, dated February 9, 1979, with Jefferson Parish 
Louisiana as beneficiary. Pursuant to the Trust Indenture, the Authority is authorized to undertake various 
programs to assist in the financing and development of home ownership in the public interest within the 
boundaries of Jefferson Parish, St. Charles Parish, St. Tammany Parish, Allen Parish, Beauregard 
Parish, Calcasieu Parish, Cameron Parish, and Jefferson Davis Parish all of which are located in 
Louisiana. 
 
The Authority has the power to designate its management, the ability to significantly influence its 
operations and primary accountability for its fiscal matters. However, the Council of the Parish of 
Jefferson appoints the Authority’s Board members for a three-year term and thereafter has the ability to 
remove members of the Authority’s Board at will. Consequently, the financial statements of the Authority 
are included as a component unit of the Parish of Jefferson, Louisiana. This report includes all of the 
funds of the Authority. 
 
The Authority began operations on August 1, 1979, and currently has separate bond programs as shown 
with original issuance amounts below: 

 
 

Amount
Date Issue Name (in thousands)

June 28, 2007 Single Family Mortgage Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2007B
(2007B Program) 20,000$            

November 20, 2007 Single Family Mortgage Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2007C
(2007C Program) 30,000$            

November 10, 2008 Single Family Mortgage Revenue
Bonds, Series 2008B (Federally
Taxable ) (2008B Program) 10,000$            

November 22, 2011 Single Family Mortgage Revenue
Bonds, Series 2009A Converted
to Fixed Rate (2009ACF Program) 25,000$            

Authorizing Legislation
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the 2005A and 2006B mortgage backed securities were sold 
at a premium. In 2014, the proceeds from the sales of the mortgage backed securities were used to 
purchase United States Treasury Bills or Guaranteed Investment Contracts. In June 2015, the 2005A 
investments matured and the proceeds were used to redeem the bonds in full. In June 2016, the 2006B 
investments matured and the proceeds were used to redeem the bonds in full.  
 
During the year ended December 31, 2016, the 2006C, 2006D, and 2007C mortgage backed securities 
were sold at a premium. In June 2016, the proceeds from the sales of the 2006C mortgage backed 
securities were used to redeem the 2006C bonds in full. In December 2016, the proceeds from the sales 
of the 2006D mortgage backed securities were used to redeem the 2006D bonds in full. In 2016, the 
proceeds from the sales of the mortgage backed securities of the 2007C program were used to purchase 
United States Treasury Bills and Guaranteed Investment Contracts. The Authority has plans to sell the 
investments and retire the 2007C bond in June of 2017. 
 
Bonds and other obligations issued under the provisions of the Trust Indenture are not a debt or liability 
of the State of Louisiana, the Parish of Jefferson, or any other political subdivision. The Authority’s Board 
of Trustees is empowered under the Trust Indentures and the bond program agreements to contract with 
outside parties to conduct the day-to-day operations of the bond program it initiates. In connection with 
the programs, the Authority utilizes area financial institutions to originate and service the mortgage notes 
acquired. In addition, a financial institution has been designated as trustee of the individual bond 
programs and has the fiduciary responsibility for the custody and investment of funds. 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 

The accounting policies of the Authority conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America as applicable to governments. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements are reported using economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses, excluding depreciation and 
amortization, are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. The 
Authority has no government or fiduciary funds. 
 
The Authority uses fund accounting to report its financial position and results of operations. The accounts 
of the Authority are organized on the basis of individual programs. The programs, which are administered 
by a trustee bank, provide for a separate set of self-balancing accounts which account for bonds issued, 
debt service and bond redemption requirements, investments, and related revenues and operating 
expenses. These individual programs are aggregated in the financial statements to comprise the fund of 
the Authority. 
 
The Authority’s accounts are organized into a single propriety fund. The enterprise fund (a proprietary 
fund) is used to account for operations (a) that are operated in a manner similar to private business where 
the intent of the governing body is that the cost (expense, including depreciation) of providing goods and 
services to the general public is financed or recovered primarily through user charges or (b) where the 
governing body had decided that the periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred 
and/or changes in net position is appropriate for capital maintenance. 
 
. 
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

The Authority’s principal operating revenues are the interest and appreciation (depreciation) related to 
investments and mortgage/mortgage-backed securities. 
 
Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash equivalents consist of all money market accounts and highly-liquid investments with a maturity of 
three months or less at date of purchase. 
 
Investment Securities 
 
Investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market prices. If quoted prices are 
not available, fair value is estimated based on similar securities. The investment securities are restricted 
for the use of the respective programs with the exception of the investment securities in the 1991 Residual 
Account which are unrestricted. 
 
Bond Issuance Costs 
 
Bond issuance cost, including underwriters’ discounts on bonds sold, are expensed as incurred. 
 
Bond Retirement Costs 
 
Bond retirement cost, including professional, legal, bond counsel, investment and financial advisory fees, 
on bonds sold, are expensed as incurred. 
 
Refinancing Gains (Losses) 
 
Gains and losses associated with refundings are advance refundings and are being deferred and 
amortized as a component of interest expense based upon the methods used to approximate the interest 
method over the term of the new bonds or the remaining term on any refunded bond, whichever is shorter.  
The new debt is reported net of the deferred amount on the refunding. 
 
Gain or Loss on Debt Retirement 
 
Gains or losses associated with bond retirement, as shown in the statement of revenues, expenses, 
and changes in net position, represent the unamortized portion of either the bond premium (gain) or 
bond discount (loss). The gain or loss on the unamortized portion is recognized when the bonds are 
retired. 
 
Real Estate Owned 
 
Real estate owned, comprised of real estate acquired in partial settlement of loans, is recorded at the 
related unpaid loan principal balance at the time of foreclosure. Substantially all costs of maintaining real 
estate owned are reimbursed under various insurance coverages. The excess of the unpaid principal and 
accrued interest balances over sales proceeds realized is also reimbursed under various insurance 
coverages. The Authority has no real estate owned properties at December 31, 2016 and 2015. 
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Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Estimates 
 
The Authority has made estimates and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabilities and 
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities to prepare the balance sheet in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Actual amounts could be 
different from the estimates. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
Accumulated vacation and sick leave are accrued as an expense of the period in which incurred. The 
Parish of Jefferson employees, who work on behalf of the Authority, earn vacation pay and sick pay 
based upon their length of employment and is earned ratably during the span of employment. Upon 
termination, these individuals are paid full value for any accrued leave earned. 
 
At December 31, 2016, the amount of compensated absence liability recorded by the Authority was $74 
thousand. 
 
Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable 
 
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Deposits 
 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Authority will not be 
able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party. The Authority’s investments are held by the custodial bank as an agent for the Authority, in the 
Authority’s name, and are thereby not exposed to custodial credit risk. The remaining amount of the 
Authority’s cash balances were comprised of cash equivalents that were invested in money market funds, 
of which the underlying assets are guaranteed investments in securities issued by the U.S. Government. 
 
At December 31, 2016, the Authority had no cash deposits at a local bank in excess of FDIC (Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation) coverage. 
 
Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable 
 
At December 31, 2016 and 2015, investments were held as specifically required under terms of the Trust 
Indentures and the State of Louisiana investment laws, more particularly, Louisiana Revised Statutes 
33:2955, as amended. 
 
These investments include, but are not limited to: Direct U.S. Treasury obligations, which include but are 
not limited to (1) U.S. Export-Import Bank; (2) Farmers Home Administration; (3) Federal Financing Bank; 
(4) Federal Housing Administration Debentures; (5) General Service Administration; (6) Government 
National Mortgage Association-guaranteed mortgage-backed bonds and guaranteed pass-through 
obligations; (7) U.S, Maritime Administration-guaranteed Title XI financing, and (8) U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development as well as U.S. government instrumentalities which obligations include 
but are not limited to (1) Federal Home Loan Bank System; (2) Federal Home Loan Mortgage 
Corporation; (3) Federal National Mortgage Association; (4) Student Loan Marketing Association; and (5) 
Resolution Funding Corporation. 
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable 
(Continued) 
 
Components of Cash, Investments, and Mortgage loan receivable 
 
The following are the components of the Authority’s cash, investments, and mortgage loan receivable at 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands): 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Total
2016

Cash and cash equivalents 546$           618$         1,164$      
Investments 6,815          5,932        12,747      
Mortgage loan receivable 1,194          21,691      22,885      

8,555$        28,241$    36,796$    

2015
Cash and cash equivalents 361             556           917           
Investments 5,973          8,342        14,315      
Mortgage loan receivable 1,408          39,164      40,572

7,742$        48,062$    55,804$    

 
 
Components of Cash 
 
The following are the components of the Authority’s cash and cash equivalents by program at December 
31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands): 
 

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total
Cash & Cash 
Equivalents

1991 Program 539$          -$       539$      361$          -$       361$      
2006C Program -            -         -         -            88           88          
2006D Program -            391         391        -            82           82          
2007B Program -            2             2            -            3             3            
2007C Program -            26           26          -            -         -         
2008B Program -            10           10          -            9             9            
2009ACF Program -            82           82          -            374         374        
HOME Program 7                107         114        -            -         
Total Cash & 
Cash Equivalents 546$          618$       1,164$   361$          556$       917$      

2016
(in thousands)

2015
(in thousands)
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable 
(Continued) 
 
Components of Unrestricted Investments 
 
The following are the components of the Authority’s unrestricted investments, reported at fair value, by 
program at December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands): 
 

US 
Treasury 

Notes
Municipal 

Bonds Total

US 
Treasury 

Notes/Bills

Federal 
Home 
Loan 
Bank

Municipal 
Bonds Total

Unrestricted 
Investments

1991 Program 250$       6,565$   6,815$ 251$        153$      5,569$   5,973$ 

2016
(in thousands)

2015
(in thousands)

 
 
Components of Restricted Investments 
 
The following are the components of the Authority’s restricted investments, reported at fair value, by 
program at December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands): 
 

Guranteed 
Investment 
Contracts

US 
Treasury 

Bills Total

Guranteed 
Investment 
Contracts

US 
Treasury 

Bills Total
Restricted 
Investments

2006B Program -$         -$      -$        7,425$     -$      7,425$   
2006C Program -           -        -          364          -        364
2006D Program -           -        -          172          -        172
2007B Program 145          -        145 89            -        89
2007C Program 3,000       2,787    5,787 292          -        292
Total Restricted 
Investments 3,145$     2,787$  5,932$    8,342$     -$      8,342$   

2016
(in thousands)

2015
(in thousands)
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable 
(Continued) 
 
Components of Mortgage Loan Receivable 
 
The following are the components of the Authority’s mortgage-backed securities, reported at fair value, 
by program at December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):

Unrestricted Restricted Total Unrestricted Restricted Total
 Mortgage 
Receivable 

GNMA Certificates
1991 Program 842$          -$        842$       1,059$       -$        1,059$    
2006C Program -             -          -          -             2,095      2,095      
2006D Program -             -          -          -             1,832      1,832      
2007B Program -             1,749      1,749      -             2,145      2,145      
2007C Program -             -          -          -             5,084      5,084      
2008B Program -             1,416      1,416      -             1,459      1,459      
2009ACF Program -             16,314    16,314    -             18,062    18,062    

842            19,479    20,321    1,059         30,677    31,736    

FNMA Certificates
1991 Program 100            -          100         99              -          99           
2007B Program -             412         412         -             578         578         

100            412         512         99              578         677         

FHLMC Certificates
1991 Program 252            -          252         250            -          250         
2006C Program -             -          -          -             3,132      3,132      
2006D Program -             -          -          -             1,279      1,279      
2007B Program -             1,800      1,800      -             2,354      2,354      
2007C Program -             -          -          -             1,144      1,144      

252            1,800      2,052      250            7,909      8,159      

 Total Mortgage 
Receivable 1,194$       21,691$  22,885$  1,408$       39,164$  40,572$  

(in thousands)
2016

(in thousands)
2015
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable 
(Continued) 
 
Components of Mortgage Loan Receivable (Continued) 
 
Mortgage loan receivable for 2007B, 2007C, 2008B and 2009ACF programs represents mortgage pass-
through certificates (GNMA, FNMA, and FHLMC certificates) backed by certain qualifying mortgage loans 
for single-family residences located within the Parish of Jefferson. 
 
The GNMA certificates are fully guaranteed by the United States government; the Authority is not 
responsible for mortgage loan insurance. The FNMA and FHLMC certificates are fully guaranteed by the 
Federal National Mortgage Association, a federally chartered and stockholder-owned corporation. 
rendered. 

Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable- Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. In general, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 
to changes in market interest rates. The authority manages interest rate risk by matching the expected 
future maturity of the investments and mortgage loan receivable to the expected cash flow needs and 
bonds payable requirements. The Authority also limits the maximum maturity of investments in 
accordance with their investment policy. 
 
The following tables shows the Authority’s investments and mortgage loan receivable and the related 
maturities in actively managed accounts at December 31, 2016: 
 

Fair Value Less Than 1 1-5 5-10 >10

Investments & Mortgage 
Loan Receivable

U.S. Treasury Notes & Bills 3,037$      2,787$         250$        -$        -$        
Municipal Bonds 6,565        -               6,565       -          -          
Guaranteed investment  
contracts 3,145        3,000           145          -          -          
Mortgage-backed securities 22,885      -               -          -          22,885     

35,632$    5,787$         6,960$     -$        22,885$   

Remaining Maturity in Years

(in thousands)
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable 
(Continued) 
 
Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable- Interest Rate Risk (Continued) 
 
The Authority’s investments in guaranteed investment contracts are not subject to interest rate risk since 
the financial institutions guarantee the principal and interest on the investment. 
 
The Authority receives a rate equal to the stated interest rate net the .50% servicer/administrator fee 
retained by the Servicer for GNMA, FNMA, and FHLMC securities. The mortgage loans have stated 
interest rates to the Authority as follows: 

 
 
Investments- Credit Quality Risk 
 
Credit quality risk is the risk that the issuer or other counterparty to a debt security will not fulfill its 
obligation to the Authority.  Obligations of the U.S. Government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by 
the U.S. Government are not assigned credit quality ratings. Credit quality ratings are reported on 
obligations of U.S. Government agencies not explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government. 
 
The following table provides information on the credit ratings associated with the Authority’s 
investments in debt securities at December 31, 2016. (in thousands of dollars): 
 

S&P Rating Total
Mortgage-backed 

Securities GIC
AAA 22,885$              22,885$                 -$                        
AA- 3,145                  -                             3,145                  

26,030$              22,885$                 3,145$                

 
 
Failure of the financial institutions to meet minimum credit ratings requires the institutions to provide 
collateral to support the investment contract. At December 31, 2016, the GICs met the minimum credit 
ratings required by the Authority. 
 
  

Program Interest Rates
2006C Program 5.13%
2006D Program 5.34%
2007B Program 6.89%
2007C Program 5.86%
2008B Program 6.25%
2009ACF Program 3.40%
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Note 2. Cash, Cash Equivalents, Investment Securities, and Mortgage Loan Receivable 
(Continued) 
 
Investments and Mortgage Loan Receivable-Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The Authority’s Investment Policy does not allow for more than 70% of the total investment portfolio to 
be invested in Bonds, debentures, notes or otherwise evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by 
federal agencies and provided such obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States 
of America. 
 
As of December 31, 2016, management believes all investments held and purchased for the Authority’s 
portfolio during 2016, as it relates to Acts 374 and 1126 (effective June 29,1995) adhered to the permitted 
investments section of LSA-R.S. 33:2955. In particular, securities held or purchased during the year 
include only U.S. Treasury bills, U.S. Treasury Notes, Hancock Horizon Treasury Securities Money 
Market Funds, and Federated Prime Obligation Funds. 
 
Note 3. Bonds Payable 
  
Bonds payable are as follows at December 31: 

2016 2015
Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds,

Series 2006B dated July 26, 2006 - 
$2,250 due December 1, 2032 at 5.25%, and
$3,000 due June 1, 2037 at 4.60% (plus premium on bonds 
of $661) -$                5,911$            

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2006C dated October 31, 2006 - 
$3,040 due June 1, 2033 at 5.0%, and 
$1,995 due December 1, 2038 at 5.0% (plus premium on 
bonds of $468) -                  4,608              

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2006D dated March 1, 2007 - 
$3,615 due June  1, 2038 at 5.0% (plus premium  on bonds 
of $326) -                  3,191              
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Note 3. Bonds Payable(Continued) 
 
Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds,

Series 2007B dated June 1, 2007 - 
$3,495 due December 1, 2048 at 5.7% (plus premium on 
bonds of $372) 3,867              4,901              

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2007C dated October 31, 2007 - 
$110 due December 1,   2017 at   4.25%, and
$1,395 due December  1, 2027 at 4.85%, and
$590 due June 1,2039 at 5.70%, and
$2,870 due December  1, 2039 at 5.50%  (plus premium on 
bonds of $613)                5,578 6,472              

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2008B dated November  10, 2008 -
$1,258 due December 1, 2040 at 6.03%  (plus premium on 
bonds of $193) 1,451              1,498              

Single Family Mortgage Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series   2009ACF   dated  November   22, 2011- 
$15,560 due December 1, 2041 at 2.32%. 15,560$          17,530            

Total bonds payable and premium on bonds payable 26,456$          44,111$          
 

 
The Authority is in compliance with its bond covenants at December 31, 2016 and 2015. 
 
The bonds in the 1991 Program (sold in 2002) are secured by an assignment and pledge of and security 
interest in: (i) all mortgage loans and the income therefrom (including all insurance proceeds with respect 
to the mortgage loans), (ii) the Authority’s rights and interest in and to the agreement and (iii) all monies 
and securities held under the Trust Indentures, including monies in the funds and accounts created 
pursuant thereto (excluding certain monies representing excess investment earnings, if any required to 
be remitted to the United States Government in accordance with the Trust Indentures). 
 
Under the Trust Indentures for the 2007B, 2007C, 2008B, and 2009ACF programs, the Authority has the 
option to redeem bonds maturing on or after any date as a whole at a redemption price equal to 100% of 
the principal amount thereof being redeemed, plus interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption. 
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Note 3. Bonds Payable(Continued) 
 
A summary of scheduled bond maturities (in thousands) as of December 31, 2016, is as follows: 
 

2022 - 2027 - 2032 - 2037 - 2042 - 2047 -
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2026 2031 2036 2041 2046 2051 Total

Principal:
2007B Program -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$             -$          -$          -$           -$          3,495$ 3,495$    
2007C Program 110       -        -        -        -        -          1,395    -        3,460    -        -        4,965      
2008B Program -        -        -        -        -        -          -        -        1,258    -        -        1,258      
2009ACF Program 969       1,669    1,630    1,592    1,555    7,251      894       -         -        -        15,560    
Total due each year 1,079    1,669    1,630    1,592    1,555    7,251      2,289    -        4,718    -        3,495    25,278    

Interest
2007B Program 199       199       199       199       199       995         995       995       995        995       398       6,368      
2007C Program 264       259       259       259       259       1,296      1,025    957       574        -        -        5,152      
2008B Program 76         76         76         76         76         379         379       379       303        -        -        1,820      
2009ACF Program 361       339       300       262       225       601         21         -         -        -        2,109      
Total due each year 1,631    1,579    1,546    1,516    1,516    7,212      6,542    5,377    3,723    1,284    770       32,851    

Total due 2,710$ 3,248$ 3,176$ 3,108$ 3,071$ 14,463$ 8,831$ 5,377$ 8,441$  1,284$ 4,265$ 58,129$ 

 
The other bond programs have early bond calls based on the timing of the receipt of mortgage loan 
principal and interest payments. As excess cash is accumulated, the Authority is required to issue bond 
calls. 
 
The principal balance on defeased bonds (in thousands) outstanding at December 31 are as follows: 
 

 
Note 4. Net Position 
 
The net position included in the 1991 Program, totaling $8,923 thousand and $7,957 thousand as of 
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, are for the benefits of all Programs and available to the 
Authority for its purpose of promoting and providing residential housing in the Parish of Jefferson. 
Although unrestricted to a particular program, the unrestricted net position must be maintained by the 
Authority until all bonds and programs are liquidated.  The remaining net position is restricted for specific 
operating uses as described in the trust indentures. 
 
Note 5. Related Party Transactions 
 
The Parish of Jefferson paid employee salaries and related expenses on behalf of the Authority in the 
amount of (in thousands) $425.3 and $389.9 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively.  
 
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Authority had other liabilities due to the Parish of Jefferson for 
the employee expenses in the amount of (in thousands) $51 and $49 respectively. 

2016 2015
1985 Program - 32,595$          32,595$           
(Defeased by the 1994 "1985" Program)
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Note 5. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 
 
The Authority pays the Parish of Jefferson for rent of its office space. The amounts (in thousands) were 
$17 and $17 for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.  
 
The Authority pays the Parish of Jefferson for security. The amounts (in thousands) were $5 and $7 for 
years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. 
 
During the year 2016, the Authority entered into a cooperative endeavor agreement with the Parish of 
Jefferson. The Authority on behalf of the Parish of Jefferson’s Department of Community Development 
shall administer the HOME investment Partnerships Program. 
 
Note 6. Subsequent Events 
 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were 
available to be issued, April 7, 2017, and determined there were no items requiring disclosure. No events 
occurring after this date have been evaluated for inclusion in these financial statements. 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE 1
SCHEDULE OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION BY PROGRAM
(In Thousands)
As of December 31, 2016

1991 2006B 2006C 2006D 2007B 2007C 2008B 2009ACF HOME
Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 539$          -$      -$      391$       2$              26$            10$            82$              114$       1,164$         
Investment securities at fair value 6,815         -        -        -          145            5,787         -             -               -          12,747         
Mortgage-backed securities 1,194         -        -        -          3,961         -             1,416         16,314         -          22,885         
Accrued interest receivable 41              -        -        -          18              4                7                42                -          112              

500            -        -        -          -             -             -             -               -          500              

Total Assets 9,089$       -$      -$      391$       4,126$       5,817$       1,433$       16,438$       114$       37,408$       

Liabilities and Net Position

Liabilities
Bonds payable -$           -$      -$      -$        3,495$       4,965$       1,258$       15,560$       -$        25,278$       
Premium on bonds payable -             -        -        -          372            613            193            -               -          1,178           
Accrued interest payable -             -        -        -          17              22              6                30                -          75                
Other liabilities 166            -        -        -          -             -             -             -               107         273              

Total Liabilities 166            -        -        -          3,884         5,600         1,457         15,590         107         26,804         

Net Position
Restricted for debt -             -        -        392         241            218            (25)             848              7             1,681           
Unrestricted 

Undesignated 968            -        -        -          -             -             -             -               -          968              
Designated 7,955         -        -        -          -             -             -             -               -          7,955           

Total Net Position 8,923         -        -        392         241            218            (25)             848              7             10,604         

Total Liabilities and Net Position 9,089$       -$      -$      392$       4,125$       5,818$       1,432$       16,438$       114$       37,408$       

Down payment assistance and other 
receivables
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE 2
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION BY PROGRAM
(In Thousands)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

1991 2006B 2006C 2006D 2007B 2007C 2008B 2009ACF HOME
Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Total

Operating Revenues
Investment income on mortgage loans 60$          -$         390$        387$        221$        889$        85$          624$         -$         2,656$         

(57)           -           (294)         (176)         (3)             (386)         (10)           (75)            -           (1,001)          
Investment income on investment securities 84            20            31            27            5              9              -           -            -           176              
JMAP and SMAP revenue 181          -           -           -           -           -           -           -            -           181              
Bond premium recognized on early debt retirement -           568          383          193          -           -           -           -            -           1,144           
Other revenue 2              -           -           -           -           -           -           -            9              11                

Total Operating Revenues 270          588          510          431          223          512          75            549           9              3,167           

Operating Expenses
Interest on debt -           82            66            102          218          224          61            385           -           1,138           
Bond retirement costs -           -           115          95            -           75            -           -            -           285              
Servicing fees -           -           2              13            21            25            7              84             -           152              
Trustee fees 33            -           -           -           2              2              -           7               2              46                
Other operating expenses 668          -           -           -           -           -           -           -            -           668              

Total Operating Expenses 701          82            183          210          241          326          68            476           2              2,289           

(431)         506          327          221          (18)           186          7              73             7              878              

Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers 1,397       (717)         (500)         (5)             (11)           (18)           (2)             (144)          -           -               

Change in Net Assets 966          (211)         (173)         216          (29)           168          5              (71)            7              878              

Net Position at Beginning of Year 7,957       211          173          176          270          50            (30)           919           -           9,726           

Net Position at End of Year 8,923$     -$         -$         392$        241$        218$        (25)$         848$         7$            10,604$       

(Depreciation) appreciation in fair market value of 
investments and mortgage backed securities

Change in net assets before other financing 
sources (uses)
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE 3
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS BY PROGRAM
(In Thousands)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

1991 2006B 2006C 2006D 2007B 2007C 2008B 2009ACF HOME
Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Program Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts for:

Investment income on mortgage loans 56$           23$              412$         400$          224$          913$          85$        629$          -$         2,742$         
Investment income on investment securities 84             -              31             27              10              9                -         -             -           161              
JMAP and SMAP income 181           -              -           -             -             -             -         -             -           181              
Jefferson Parish Community Development Program 107          107              
Other revenue 2               -           -             -             -             -         -             9              11                

Cash payments for:
Down payment assistance (108)         -              -           -             -             -             -         -             -           (108)             
Interest on debt -           (1,413)         (1,006)      (139)          (249)          (293)          (77)         (389)          -           (3,566)          
Bond retirement costs (115)         (95)             -             (75)             -         -             -           (285)             
Servicing fees -           -              (2)              (13)             (21)             (25)             (7)           (84)             -           (152)             
Trustee fees (33)           -              -           -             (2)               (2)               -         (7)               (2)             (46)               
Other operating expenses (716)         -              -           -             -             -             -         -             -           (716)             

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (534)         (1,390)         (680)         180            (38)             527            1            149            114          (1,671)          

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Bond principal payments -           (5,250)         (4,140)      (2,865)       (1,010)       (830)          (31)         (1,970)       -           (16,096)       
Bond premium transferred at redemption -           (67)              (65)           (108)          -             -             -         -             -           (240)             
Operating transfers 1,397        (717)            (500)         (5)               (11)             (18)             (2)           (144)          -           -               

Net cash (used in) provided by noncapital financing activities 1,397        (6,034)         (4,705)      (2,978)       (1,021)       (848)          (33)         (2,114)       -           (16,336)       

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of investment securities 2,210        7,424          364           3,484         1,137         1,172         -         -             -           15,791         
Proceeds from sale of mortgage backed securities 4,722        2,790         -             5,209         -         -             -           12,721         
Proceeds from mortgage loan repayments 178           211           146            1,114         631            33          1,673         -           3,986           
Acquisition of investment securities (3,073)      (3,313)       (1,193)       (6,665)       -         -             -           (14,244)       

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (685)         7,424          5,297        3,107         1,058         347            33          1,673         -           18,254         

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 178           -              (88)           309            (1)               26              1            (292)          114          247              

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 361           -              88             82              3                -             9            374            917              

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 539$        -$           -$        391$          2$             26$           10$       82$           114$       1,164$        

Reconciliation of changes in net position to net cash used in operating activities:
Changes in net position (431)$       506$           327$         221$          (18)$          186$          7$          73$            7$            878$            
Adjustments to reconcile changes in net position to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Amortization of bond premium and discount -           (25)              (20)           (25)             (23)             (65)             (16)         -             -           (174)             
Bond premium recognized on early debt retirement -           (568)            (383)         (193)          -             -             -         -             -           (1,144)          
(Depreciation) appreciation in investments and mortgage backed securities 57             -              294           176            3                386            10          75              -           1,001           
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Change in accrued interest receivable (4)              3                  22             13              5                24              -         5                -           68                
Change in down payment assistance receivable (108)         -              -             -             -             -         -             -           (108)             

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Change in accrued expenses and accounts payable (48)           -              -             -             -             -         -             -           (48)               
Change in accrued interest payable -           (1,306)         (920)         (12)             (5)               (4)               -         (4)               -           (2,251)          
Change in due to Jefferson Parish Community Development -           -              -           -             -             -             -         -             107          107              

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (534.0)$   (1,390.0)$   (680.0)$   180.0$      (38.0)$      527.0$      1.0$      149.0$      114.0$    (1,671.0)$   
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE 4
SCHEDULE OF OPERATING EXPENSES
(In Thousands)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

2016 2015
Operating Expenses

Advertising 26.4$       26.2$       
Auto Expense 11.7         11.7         
Computer Expense 2.7           3.2           
Dues and Subscriptions 2.3           0.9           
Education and Seminars 2.8           5.7           
Insurance 52.7         48.9         
Miscellaneous Expense 2.1           1.2           
Office Expense 2.6           3.5           
Pension and Retirement 47.6         48.6         
Postage 0.9           1.0           
Professional Fees 94.1         92.6         
Rent 19.6         19.5         
Salaries and Wages 325.8       292.6       
Telephone 3.1           2.9           
Travel 8.6           9.9           
State Bond Commission Fee -           (7.5)          
Capital Acquisitions 2.0           5.4           
Security 4.6           6.7           
Board Per Diem 58.1         62.7         

Total Operating Expenses 667.7$     635.7$     
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE 5
SCHEDULE OF BOARD MEMBERS' COMPENSATION
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Number of Meetings:

Regular 
Board Per 

Diems

Extra 
Approved 
Per Diems 2016 Total

Berthelot, Jackie 42 6 48
Boyter, Mitchell 46 5 51
DiMarco, Dennis 38 9 47
Drawe, Michael F. 4 0 4
Faia, Gregory 43 10 53
Muscarello, Frank L. 46 8 54
Planer, Marcy L. 39 0 39
Schudmak III, Sam 42 1 43
Simmons, Dalton 43 5 48

Per Diem Payment:
2016

Berthelot, Jackie 7,200$      
Boyter, Mitchell 7,650        
DiMarco, Dennis 7,050        
Drawe, Michael F. 600           
Faia, Gregory 7,950        
Muscarello, Frank L. 8,100        
Planer, Marcy L. 5,850        
Schudmak III, Sam 6,450        
Simmons, Dalton 7,200        

58,050$    

The members of the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority's (the Authority) Board of Trustees receive per diem
payments for weekly Board meetings attended; approved committee meetings and services rendered and
are also reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as members of the
Board of Trustees. For the year ended December 31, 2016, the following per diem payments were made to
the members of the Authority's board:
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY
SCHEDULE 6

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Agency Head Terry McCarthy

Purpose Amount

Salary 134,743$  
Benefits-Medical Insurance 3,000        
Benefits-Retirement 19,911      
Benefits-Life Insurance 108           
Benefits-Other 371           
Car Allowance 11,086      
Vehicle Provided by Government -                
Per Diem -                
Reimbursements 505           
Conference Travel 1,453        
Registration Fees 625           
Travel-Other Meetings 3,137        
Continuing Professional Education Fees -                
Unvoucherd Expense -                

174,939$  

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
 GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
Board of Trustees 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the business-type activities of the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority (the Authority) 
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report 
thereon dated April 7, 2017. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s 
internal control.  
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
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Compliance and Other Matters  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance 
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Governmental Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Under the Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a 
public document. 
 
 

 
 
Camnetar & Co., CPAs 
a professional accounting corporation 

 
 
Gretna, Louisiana 
April 7, 2017 
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We have audited the financial statements of Jefferson Parish Finance Authority (the Authority) as of 
and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated April 7, 2017. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States. Our audit of the financial statements as of December 31, 2016, resulted 
in an unqualified opinion. 
 
Section I Summary of Auditor’s Reports 

 
a. Report on Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 

 
Internal Control 
 Material Weakness   Yes  No Significant Deficiencies   Yes  No 
 
Compliance 
 Compliance Material to Financial Statements   Yes  No 

 
 Was a management letter issued?   Yes  No 
 

b. Federal Awards 
 
The Authority did not expend federal awards exceeding $750,000 during the year ended 
December 31, 2016, and therefore is exempt from the audit requirements under the Single Audit 
and the Uniform Guidance. 
 

Section II Financial Statement Findings 
 

a. Issues of Noncompliance 
 

None 
 

b. Significant Deficiencies 
 

None 
 

Section III Federal Award Findings and Questions Costs 
 

None
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Section I – Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 
 
None 
 
Section II – Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Federal Awards 
 
None 
 
Section III – Management Letter 
 
None 
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JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY 

RESOLUTION 

On Motion of Mrs. Margaret Bicknell, seconded by Mr. Garv Lala, 
the following resolution was offered: 

A resolution of the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority to 
increase the per diem from $100.00 to $150.00 per each 
meeting attended by said member for no more than fifty-two 
(52) meetings per calendar year and shall become effective 
as of June 1, 2008, in accordance with the Jefferson Parish 
Council Ordinance No. 23211, adopted on December 12, 
2007. 

WHEREAS, the Jefferson Parish Council gives the Jefferson Parish Finance 
Authority the authority to grant its members a per diem of $150.00 per meeting 
attended; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the 
Jefferson Parish Finance Authority, acting as the governing authority of the Authority, 
that: 

SECTION 1. the Authority desires to increase the amount of per diems paid to 
each trustee of the Authority from $100.00 to $150.00 per meeting for no more than 
fifty-two (52) meetings per calendar year and shall become effective as of June 1, 2008. 

The foregoing resolution having been submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was 
as follows: 

YEAS: ( 5) NAYS:(O) ABSTAIN: ( 1 ) 
Margaret Bicknell 

ABSENT: ( 2) 
Lester Dunn, Jr. 
Ricky Templet 

WHEREUPON, the Resolution was declared adopted this the 2nd day of June, 
2008. 
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- -----

STATE OF LOUISIANA 

PARISH OF JEFFERSON 

I, the undersigned Secretary of the Board of Trustees of Parish of 

Jefferson Home Mortgage Authority, do hereby certify that the foregoing 

one page, constitutes a true and correct copy of a resolution of the Parish 

of Jefferson Home Mortgage Authority entitled "A resolution of the 

Jefferson Parish Finance Authority to increase the per diem to $150.00 

per each meeting attended by said member for no more than fifty-two 

(52) meetings per calendar year and shall become effective as of June 1, 

2008, in accordance with the Jefferson Parish Council Ordinance No. 

23211, adopted on December 12, 2007". 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my official signature as Secretary of 

this Board of Trustees of the Authority on this, the 2"d day of June, 2008 

~~~ 
Margaret R. Bicknell, Secretary 
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On joint motion of all Councilmembers present the following ordinance was 
offered as amended: 

SUMMARY NO. 22383 ORDINANCE NO. 23211 
An ordinance to amend various provisions of the Jefferson Parish Code of 
Ordinances, including but not limited to Sec 2-517, relative to amending 
the amount of the fee received by board members for serving on the 
Personnel Board and the Board of Standards and Appeals, and to provide 
for related matters. (Parishwide) 
THE JEFFERSON PARISH COUNCIL HEREBY ORDAINS: 
SECTION 1. That Section 2-517 of the Code of Ordinances be and the same is 

hereby amended to read as follows: 
Sec. 2-517. Per diem and expense limitations for boards, committees, 
commissions and other authorities. 
(a) Except as otherwise provided in subsection (b), each member of 
any Jefferson Parish board, committee, commission or other authority who 
is authorized to receive a per diem shall receive no more than one 
hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) for each meeting attended by said member 
for no more than fifty-two (52) meetings per calendar year. The parish 
shall not reimburse any expenses incurred by any board, committee, 
commission or other authority or by any member thereof, unless said 
expenses are reasonable and necessary and are approved by the parish 
council prior to payment by the parish. 
(b) (1) Each member of the Planning Advisory Board shall be paid 

by the parish a compensation of one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) 
per board meeting at which they serve in accordance with the 
provisions of Sec. 40-776. 
(2) Each member of the Board of Zoning Adjustments shall be 
paid by the parish a compensation of one hundred fifty dollars 
($150.00) per board meeting at which they serve in accordance 
with the provisions of Sec. 40-798. 

The foregoing ordinance having been submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was 
as follows: 

YEAS: 6 NAYS: None ABSENT: (1) Lee 
The ordinance was declared to be adopted on this the 12'h day of December, 

2007, and shall become effective as follows; if signed forthwith by the Parish President, 
ten (10) days after adoption, thereafter upon signature by the Parish President, or, if not 
signed by the Parish President, upon expiration of the time for ordinances to be 
considered finally adopted without the signature of the Parish President, as provided in 
Section 2.07 of the Charter. If vetoed by the Parish President and subsequently 
approved by the Council, this ordinance shall become effective on the day of such 
approval. 
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The following resolution was offered by Mr. Michael Drawe, seconded by 
Mr. Garv Lala: 

RESOLUTION 

A resolution authorizing the Administration of the Jefferson Parish 
Finance Authority to reimburse normal and customary expenses and per 
diems to all Authority Trustees, who attend approved conferences, Bond 
Commission Hearings, committee meetings, and the like, when such 
attendance is approved by the Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the 
JPFA. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the Jefferson Parish Finance Authority 
wishes to authorize, in addition to all regular JPF A meetings, that the per diems are 
extended to all Authority Trustees who attend approved conferences, Bond Commission 
Hearings, committee meetings, and the like, when such attendance is approved by the 
Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the JPF A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE Jefferson Parish Finance 
Authority hereby desires to authorize, in addition to all regular JPF A meetings, that the 
per diems are extended to all Authority Trustees who attend approved conferences, Bond 
Commission Hearings, committee meetings, and the like, when such attendance is 
approved by the Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the JPFA. 

The foregoing resolution having been submitted to a vote, the vote thereon was as 
follows: 

Yeas: ( 5) Nays: ( 2) 
Mr. Frank Muscarello 
Mr. Ricky Templet 

Absent: ( 1 ) 
Mr. Arthur Lawson, Jr. 

The resolution was declared to be adopted on this the 13th day of July, 2009. 
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From: Gordon Konrad
To: Ashley Neyland
Cc: Susan Andrews
Subject: Re: JPOIG Audit-JPFA
Date: Friday, April 28, 2017 9:45:18 AM

Ms. Neyland,

As stated in my letter, my firm does not track the hours spent representing the JPFA.  Please let me know
if you have any additional questions.  

GORDON ROB KONRAD 
Attorney At Law 
5813 Citrus Blvd.
Suite 200 
Harahan, LA 70123 
504.684.6006 
504.837.1213 fax

233

mailto:rob@gkonradlaw.com
mailto:aneyland@jpoig.net
mailto:sandrews@jpoig.net


 

 

 

 

 

Letter From Becknell 
Law Firm 

  Attachment O 
  

234



235



 

 

 

 

 

Bidding Agent 
Agreement 

Bond Series 2006C 

  Attachment P 
  

236



GKB 021716 

BIDDING AGENT ENGAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

 

This Bidding Agent Engagement Agreement (“Agreement”) is made this 1st day of February, 

2016, by and between JEFFERSON PARISH FINANCE AUTHORITY (“Issuer”), and 

SISUNG SECURITIES CORPORATION (“Sisung”) located at 201 St. Charles Ave, Suite 

4240, New Orleans, Louisiana 70170, and GEORGE K. BAUM & COMPANY, (“GKB”) 

located at 1400 Wewatta Street, Suite 800, Denver, Colorado 80202 (collectively the “Bidding 

Agents”).   

PURPOSE: The Issuer has identified certain specific mortgaged backed securities (“MBS”) that it 

holds, but wishes to sell (the “Transaction”), in conjunction with a possible redemption of certain 

of the Issuer’s outstanding bonds, including its Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 

2006C (the “Bonds”). The Issuer deems it in its best interest to engage and retain Sisung and GKB, 

qualified investment banking firms, to provide certain bidding agent services for or related to the 

Transaction, including but not limited to the preparation of supporting data and documentation 

and/or mortgage loan market information. 

CONSIDERATION: Consideration for this Agreement includes the services, compensation, and 

mutual exchange of promises of the parties specified herein. 

SPECIFIC PROVISIONS: The provisions of the above “Purpose” section are material and 

binding terms of this Agreement. 

1. Bidding Agent Obligations. The Bidding Agents shall provide the Issuer with bidding 

agent services for and related to the Transaction, including: 

A. Work with the Issuer and others as directed by the Issuer, concerning the legal and 

financial issues associated with the Transaction; 

B. Attend meetings and be available to the Issuer, its Administration and other agents 

for consultation and conference at times and places mutually agreed upon 

throughout the Transaction proceedings; 

C. Assist the Issuer, when necessary, in the preparation, coordination and distribution 

of printed matter for or related to the Transaction, including bid specifications, 

circulars, press releases, special mailings, etc., in order to notify potential 

counterparties about the potential Transaction; 

D. Prepare financial information and schedules necessary to acquaint the Issuer with 

the benefits of the Transaction,  

 E. Receive and collect bids for the Transaction from respondents at a pre-determined 

time at the direction of the Issuer, and award the Transaction at and upon the 

direction of the Issuer, 

F. Coordinate the closing of the Transaction with the Issuer, Issuer’s counsel, bond 

counsel, and, if applicable, the trustee; 
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G. Provide the Issuer with regular updates of mortgage market conditions, analysis of 

financial or accounting factors of importance for or related to the Transaction,  

 H. It is expressly understood and agreed that this Agreement does not intend, and is 

not under any circumstances to be construed as requiring the Bidding Agents to 

perform services which may constitute the practice of law. The Bidding Agents are 

employed in an expert financial capacity only; 

I. It is expressly understood and agreed that, under this Agreement, the Bidding 

Agents are acting as a consultant to the Issuer for bidding agent services only, and 

are not providing the Issuer with any advice or recommendation on the issuance 

of municipal securities or a municipal financial products. 

J.  It is expressly understood and agreed that the Bidding Agents will not limit their 

work to the steps outlined but will extend its services as necessary to ensure that 

all appropriate bidding agent services for and related to the Transaction are 

provided to or on behalf of the Issuer in a professional and satisfactory manner. 

 

2. Issuer’s Obligations. The Issuer’s obligations shall include the following: 

A. Retain Sisung and GKB as its bidding agents for and related to the Transaction; 

B. Cooperate with the Bidding Agents in the proper development of the Transaction 

and provide all pertinent information needed to support the Transaction;  

C. Employ a nationally recognized firm of bond attorneys and utilize the services of 

the Issuer’s attorney; 

D. Pay for all costs of legal advice, other professional services, and for printed material 

for or related to the Transaction; 

E. Pay Sisung a bidding agent fee of $27,500.00 and GKB a bidding agent fee of 

$27,500.00, at the time of the closing of the Transaction.   

3. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence on February 1, 2016 and shall expire 

on the completion of the Transaction, subject to the termination provisions in Section 4 

below. 

4. Termination. Either party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in full for any 

reason by providing written notice to the other party at least thirty (30) days prior to the 

stated termination date. In the event of any violation or default of the terms of this 

Agreement by the Bidding Agents, the Issuer shall provide written notice to the Bidding 

Agents of any such violation or default, and the Bidding Agents shall have thirty (30) days 

to cure such default. If the Bidding Agents are not able to cure the default to the Issuer’s 

satisfaction by the end of such cure period, the Issuer thereafter shall have the right to 

immediately terminate this Agreement. At the termination of this Agreement, in any such 

manner, the Issuer shall reimburse the Bidding Agents such reasonable costs and expenses 
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incurred to the date of such termination, and shall pay the Bidding Agents such 

compensation earned to the date of such termination, which payment shall be in full 

satisfaction of all claims against the Issuer under this Agreement. 

5. Execution. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts and together such 

counterparts will be deemed an original. 

 

  [THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK.] 
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